f.’ S Sy
’ TOWS OF ‘\

ams,,

FLORIDA - o
I

g ]
\‘J; e ‘\\,0

ity N

Town of Surfside
Town Commission Meeting
AGENDA
SUPPLEMENTAL # 1
February 12, 2013
7 p.m.
Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2™ Floor
Surfside, FL 33154

1. Opening
A. Call to Order
B. Roll Call of Members
C. Pledge of Allegiance
D. Mayor and Commission Remarks — Mayor Daniel Dietch
E. Agenda and Order of Business Additions, deletions and linkages
F. Community Notes — Mayor Daniel Dietch
G. Employee of the Quarter — Dina Goldstein and Alfred Cooper — Roger M.
Carlton, Town Manager
H. Officer of the Month of October 2012 — Sgt. Jose Pacheco and Officer Lesmes

o
.

ol

© Zz ZEFFR

Ruiz Chief of Police David Allen

Officer of the Month of November 2012 - Officer Craig Lovellette — Chief of
Police David Allen

Civilian of the Month of December 2012 — Executive Assistant Dina Goldstein —
Chief of Police David Allen

Officer of the Year — To be announced — Chief of Police David Allen

Civilian of the Year — To be announced — Chief of Police David Allen

. Recognition of Feral Cat Program Volunteers — Executive Assistant Dina

Goldstein

Rescue Board Presentation designed by Mr. Guy Esten and donated by the
Filiberto Family — Mayor Daniel Dietch

Recognition to Bay Harbor Elementary Students Cameron Behar and Kailani
Barreras — Commissioner Michelle Kligman

Quasi-Judicial Hearings (None)

Consent Agenda (Sef for approximately 7:30 p.m.)

All items on the consent agenda are considered routine or status reports by the Town
Commission and will be approved by one motion. Any Commission member may requesi,
during item 1E Agenda and Order of Business, that an item be removed firom the Consent
Agenda and discussed separately.



Agenda
Regular Commission Meeting
February 12, 2013

Recommended Motion: To approve all consent agenda items as presented below.

* Denotes agenda items as “must haves” which means there will be significant impacts
if the item is not addressed tonight. If these items have not been heard by 10 p.m., the
order of the agenda will be changed to allow them to be heard.

A. Minutes — (None)
B. Budget to Actual Summary as of November 30, 2012 — Donald Nelson, Finance
Director Page 1-3
*C. Town Manager’s Report (Points of Light) — Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager
Page 4 - 26
*D. Town Attorney’s Report — Linda Miller, Interim Town Attorney Page 27 - 32
*E. Projects Progress Report — Calvin, Giordano and Associates, Inc. Page 33 - 35
F. Committee Reports — Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager (Note: Vice Mayor Karukin has
requested that Committee minutes appear on the Consent Agenda. The most recent approved
minutes have been included) Page 36 - 40
- November 28, 2012 Downtown Advisory Committee Minutes
- December 3, 2012 Tourist Board Minutes

. Ordinances

(Set for approximately 9:00 p.m.) (Note: Good and Welfare must begin at 8:15)
A. Second Readings (Ordinances and Public Hearing)

*1. Amendment to Short Term Rental Ordinance to Allow for Alternative Notice

and Amendment to Paragraph References — Linda Miller, Interim Town Attorney
Page 41 - 45

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 90 “ZONING” AND
SPECIFICALLY AMENDING SECTION 90-41.1 “SHORT TERM RENTAL
OF SINGLE FAMILY DWELLINGS, TWO-FAMILY DWELLINGS, MULTI-
FAMILY DWELLINGS AND TOWNHOUSES” OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE CODE OF ORDINANCES PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN
THE CODE; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

(Set for approximately p-m.) (Note: Good and Welfare must begin at 8:15)
B. First Reading Ordinances



Agenda
Regular Commission Meeting
February 12, 2013

5. Resolutions and Proclamations
(Set for approximately __9:15 _p.m.) (Note: Depends upon length of Good and
Welfare)

*A. Red Light Camera Legislative Urging — Mayor Daniel Dietch Page 46 - 48

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, URGING THE HONORABLE GOVERNOR AND THE
STATE OF FLORIDA LEGISLATURE TO REQUIRE PEDESTRIAN SIGNAL
LIGHTS WITH A NUMERIC COUNTDOWN FEATURE AT ANY
INTERSECTION WHERE A RED LIGHT CAMERA IS INSTALLED;
PROVIDING FOR DIRECTION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

*B Employment Offer Letter — Commissioner Michelle Kligman Page 49 - 52

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE EMPLOYMENT OF LINDA
MILLER AS INTERIM TOWN ATTORNEY PURSUANT TO THE
FEBRUARY __ EMPLOYMENT OFFER LETTER; AND PROVIDING FOR
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

*C. Bullying — Commissioner Michelle Kligman Page 53 - 57

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA (“TOWN”), ADOPTING AN ANTI-BULLYING
POLICY THAT ESTABLISHES AN AWARENESS CAMPAIGN AND
REPORTING SYSTEM FOR BULLYING, HARASSMENT, AND
INTIMIDATION OF CHILDREN IN COMMUNITY FACILITIES;
REQUIRING THE TOWN PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT IN
COLLABORATION WITH THE TOWN PARKS AND RECREATION
COMMITTEE TO CREATE A PROGRAM OF EDUCATION AND
REPORTING, TO PREVENT BULLYING IN THE TOWN’S COMMUNITY
FACILITIES; AND REQUESTING SURROUNDING COMMUNITIES JOIN
IN SUCH EFFORTS AND TO ESTABLISH A COLLABORATIVE
INITIATIVE THROUGH AN INTERLOCAL BOARD TO DEVELOP AND
IMPLEMENT AN AWARENESS CAMPAIGN AND ANTI-BULLYING
POLICY; PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION; PROVIDING AN FOR
EFFECTIVE DATE.



Agenda
Regular Commission Meeting
February 12, 2013

*D.  Work Order Awards to C3TS/Stantec for Design of Harding Avenue

Improvements — Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager Page 58 - 80

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AUTHOR;IZING EXPENDITURE NOT TO EXCEED
$57,500. TO STANTEC ARCHITECTURE INC., (FORMERLY C3TS) FOR A
WORK ORDER ON THE STREETSCAPES IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT
RENOVATING HARDING AVENUE FROM 96" STREET TO 94™ STREET;
PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

. Good and Welfare (Set for approximately 8:15 p.m.)

Public comments for subjects or items not on the agenda. Public comment on agenda
items will be allowed when agenda item is discussed by the Commission.

Town Manager and Town Attorney RLports

Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports have been moved to the Consent Agenda —
[tem 3.

All items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine or status reports by the Town
Commission and will be approved by one motion. Any Commission member may
request, during item 1E Agenda and Order of Business, that an item be removed fiom
the consent agenda and discussed separately.

Unfinished Business and New Business

Mayor, Commission and Staff Communications

A. Request for Funding Assistance for Ruth K. Broad K-8 Center: Recreational

B.

Facilities — Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager (TIME CERTAIN AT 7:45 PM) Page
81-91

Traffic Study (Please bring the Traffic Study book provided in December 2012) —
Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager (Deferred by Town Manager to the March 12, 2013
Town Commission Meeting)

*C. Utility Undergrounding- Recommendation for Discussion and Direction - Roger

I

E

M. Carlton, Town Manager (TIME CERTAIN AT 8:00 PM) Page 92 — 208 New
Commission Communication and carrected backup)

Additive Alternates to Utility Project — Decorative Street Signs— John DiCenso,
Interim Public Works Director Page 209 - 215

. Severance/Compensation — Commissioner Joe Graubart Page 216



Agenda
Regular Commission Meeting
February 12, 2013

*F. Confirmation of Candidates Short List for Interviews- Roger M. Carlton, Town

Manager Page 217 — 220 New Status Report

Town Calendar — Commissioner Joe Graubart Page 221

. Commission Directive: Town Manager Short Term Priorities — Commissioner Joe
Graubart Page 222 - 228

I. Required Clearance Clarification — Roger M, Carlton, Town Manager Page 229 - 235

= 0

10. Adjournment

Respectfully submitted,

Roger M. Carlton
Town Manager

THIS MEETING IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC. IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH
DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990, ALL PERSONS ARE DISABLED; WHO NEED SPECIAL
ACCOMMODATIONS TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING BECAUSE OF THAT DISABILITY
SHOULD CONTACT THE OFFICE OF THE TOWN CLERK AT 305-893-6511 EXT. 226 NO LATER
THAN FOUR DAYS PRIOR TO SUCH PROCEEDING. HEARING IMPAIRED PERSONS MAY
CONTACT THE TDD LINE AT 305-893-7936.

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES,
ANYONE WISHING TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE
COMMISSION, WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING OR
HEARING, WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS AND FOR SUCH PURPOSE, MAY
NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE WHICH
RECORD SHALL INCLUDE THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO
BE BASED.

AGENDA ITEMS MAY BE VIEWED AT THE OFFICE OF THE TOWN CLERK, TOWN OF SURFSIDE
TOWN HALL, 9293 HARDING AVENUE. ANYONE WISHING TO OBTAIN A COPY OF ANY
AGENDA ITEM SHOULD CONTACT THE TOWN CLERK AT 305-861-4863. A COMPLETE
AGENDA PACKET IS ALSO AVAILABLE ON THE TOWN WEBSITE AT www.townofsurfsidefl.gov

TWO OR MORE MEMBERS OF OTHER TOWN BOARDS MAY ATTEND THIS MEETING.

THESE MEETINGS MAY BE CONDUCTED BY MEANS OF OR IN CONJUNCTION WITH
COMMUNICATIONS MEDIA TECHNOLOGY, SPECIFICALLY, A TELEPHONE CONFERENCE
CALL. THE LOCATION 9293 HARDING AVENUE, SURFSIDE, FL 33154, WHICH IS OPEN TO THE
PUBLIC, SHALL SERVE AS AN ACCESS POINT FOR SUCH COMMUNICATION.



9C

TOWN OF SURFSIDE

MEMORANDUM
DATE: February 12, 2013
TO: Mayor Daniel Dietch and Members of the Town Commission
FROM: Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager
SUBIECT: Fifth Update for the Undergrounding Utility Project

Recommendation: It is recommended that the Town Commission discuss this update, hear from
the public and then determine if you wish to move the process forward subject to certain
limitations. A decision of this nature will not be a final decision; it wili just keep the process
moving. The final decision will not be made until the Town Commission authorizes the
documents with FPL and other utilities to be signed and until the loan necessary to fund the
project is approved. That decision does not need to be made until a recommended special one
topic meeting of the Town Commission is scheduled for late April, 2013.

Four of the five advertised and televised meetings for the undergrounding project were
not well attended. The fifth meeting was attended by approximately twenty (20) people and
many questions were asked and answered to the best of our ability. In addition a staff prepared
FAQ was mailed to 3700 addresses (roughly the same number as the bills FPL sends out
monthly) and the Town’s and FPL’s FAQ's have been posted on the website. Recent questions
fogically grouped are as follows:

Question: What is this project?

Answer: The complete undergrounding of all utilities currently above ground plus the
required switches, transformers and other equipment which will be above ground some
in water proof boxes.

Question: What will be above ground in front of my home?

Answer: It depends upon the final design by FPL and the cable and phone companies.
The design will make every effort to reduce the visual impact of these “boxes” and every
home will have an individua! pian discussed with the owners just as we did with the
water/sewer storm drainage project.


snovoa
Typewritten Text
9C


Question: What will it cost me to convert my home to the underground service.
Answer: There will be no cost to the homeowners to bring the service to the location of
the electrical panel and hook up for phone and cable. There is an $1800 per home
allocation to do this. Staff believes this will cover the cost on average for all homes,
however, some will cost less and some wili cost more. If the interior of the home needs
upgrade to meet code, we will work with the homeowners to reduce cost through a pre-
approved list of electrical contractors. if a homeowner is of provable limited means
{definition {o be determined by the Town Commission) a loan will be provided at low
interest and a lien will be placed on the property to be paid when it is sold or
substantially upgraded. This is very similar to the PACE program which the Town
Commission is currently considering.

Question: How long will my home be out of service when the conversion occurs?
Answer: Since the entire new system is installed before the old is removed (three
separate phases} the turnover should be very brief, perhaps a few hours. if someone has
special medical needs an accommadation will be made including a generator if
necessary.

Question: How does the Town pay for this?
Answer: A loan will be taken out for either 15 or 20 years. The FPL bills will have a $10-
12 monthly surcharge for residential customers and 520-50 for commercial customers.
The residential surcharge is fixed and limited by the PSC tariff.. The commercial
customer surcharge is based on consumption, however, the $50.00 monthly surcharge is
the maximum amount.

These are voluntary proffers from new deveiopments which will contribute
$700,000 to reduce construction cost. FPL reduces their cost by 25 percent for
“hardening” the system.

Question: Is the financing certain at this point in time?

Answer: Not yet. Staff, bond, counsel, financial advisor and the Town Attorney have
been working with FPL's top attorney for dealing with Public Services Commission {PSC)
fariff matters to work out some new language that allows the surcharge revenues to be
pledged. FPL has been supportive and it will be necessary to amend the tariff to clarify
that the revenues can be pledged. The PSC will be approached in April, 2013 on the
issue if the Town Commission determines to move forward during the February 12,
2013 meeting.

Question: What if the PSC declines to allow the surcharge to be pledged?

Answer: The financing approach can be amended to pledge the currently available
$844,000 revenues from utility tax and franchise fees against the $600,000 annual debt
service for the undergrounding project including principal and interest with the 20 year
financing approach. The surcharge revenues are projected to be $475,000 during the
first year which means that the surcharge revenue plus approximately $125,000 of the
utility tax and franchise fees will cover the debt. As soon as the approved new buildings
come on line, the increase in franchise fees and utility taxes will be more than sufficient
to ensure that the existing utility tax and franchise fees are not necessary.



Question: Why are you looking at this alternate financing approach?
Answer: It is always wise when new financing concepts are being considered to have a
back-up approval available.

Question: If we finance for 20 years how much interest will be required.

Answer: If the interest rate is approximately 3.25% total interest would be
approximately $3.3 million. We have not approached the banks at this time to fix the
rate.

Question: How conservative are your numbers and which of the three FPL estimates
provides the least risk?
Answer: The first approach offered by FPL is the least risk. They build the entire system
for a fixed price. When staff first analyzed this structure we did not include the one time
cost of decorative street lights which is now included. The second and third alternatives
reflect substantial reductions in the FPL cost if we take on more of the work using FPL
approved contractors after competitive bids. This will save money and possibly lower
the monthly surcharge, however, until prices are bid we have not lowered the monthly
surcharge estimates.

Further, the $2 million estimated cost for the cable and phone undergrounding is
a very conservative number and staff believes after consultation with officials of these
two utilities that the cost will be less.

Question: What does all the financing discussion mean to the citizens of Surfside?
Answer: Staff recommends continued utilization of the $20-50 monthly commercial and
the $10-12 residential estimates. These numbers will possibly be lowered as the interest
cost is known and as the competitive bids for construction are sought. The surcharge
does not start till the undergrounding is finished.

Question: How long will this construction take and when will it begin?

Answer: It will take at least 12-15 months to initiate construction. The Town wifl be
divided into three zones as it was in the Water/Sewer/Storm drainage project and each
zone will require approximately six months. We will not have to dig up the streets again
as the conduit has been installed.

Question: The Town Manager is retiring and the Public Works Director has left. How will
a project of this magnitude and complexity be managed.

Answer: Both the Town Manager and Public Works Director positions will be filled in the
next few months. Randy Stokes has become a full time employee and will continue to
manage the relationships with the homeowners in the extraordinary manner he did for
the Water/Sewer/Storm drainage project. We have also met with Manny Rodriguez, FPL
Miami Dade Regional Manager for External Affairs, who is an engineer soon to be
retired with 43 years of FPL service, and he is willing to come on board to manage this
project. His relationships with FPL and with the other utilities are exceptional. This team
should aliay any concerns with the “capacity to manage the project” question.



Question: What is the Administration asking the Town Commission to do during the
February 12, 2013 meeting?
Answer:

1)

6)

7)

Hear from the public, ask questions and determine if you want staff, financial
advisor, bond counsel and Town Attorney to continue to move forward with the
project.

Authorize the team described above to pursue the necessary tariff changes with
FPL and with the PSC that allow the monthly surcharges to be pledged.

Request an extension of the April 27, 2013 date for making the final commitment
to FPLto June 27, 2013.

Established the $10-12 as the maximum monthly residential surcharge and the
$20-50 monthly surcharge as the maximum commercial surcharge so that staff,
bond counsel, Town Attorney and financial advisor all know that this is the outer
limit of the financing.

Clearly state that the financing decisions must come back to the Town
Commission for approval.

Autharize discussions to begin with Manny Rodriguez to determine what his role
would be to manage the project.

Authorize staff to retain an independent cost estimator with expertise in
undergrounding to validate the cost estimates as an assurance that the various
utility cost proposals are reasonable. That report would be available prior to the
April, 2013 Town Commission meeting.

Hold one more special meeting during late April, 2013 to finalize the go/no go
decision. By that time all the unknowns will be tied down to the greatest extent
feasible.

Roger M. Cariton Donald G. Nelson
Town Manager Finance Director



Town of Sarfside
Commission Communication

Agenda Item # 9C
Agenda Date: February 12, 2013
Subject: Utility Undergrounding ~ Recommendation for Discussion and Direction

Background: This is the fourth in a series of reports regarding the undergrounding project. The
November and December, 2012 and January, 2013 reports appear as Attachment 1.

During the months of January and early February 2013, five (5) advertised (twice in Neighbors) and
televised public meetings were held on the project. The attendance at four of these meetings was very
limited, however, the project was fully explained to anyone watching on Channel 77 after attendee
questions were answered. The fifth meeting was well attended and numerous questions were asked
and answered.

Staff worked closely with the Town Attorney’s office and bond counsel JoLinda Herring and financial
advisor Sergio Masvidal to develop the first reading bond ordinance required to complete the loan
process. During this process, a question arose regarding the PSC Tariff and how it allows or restricts
pledging the MCGRUF revenues to the loan necessary to fund the project. Therefore, based on the
thirty day extension granted by FPL, it is recommended that the February 12, 2013 Town Commission
meeting be utilized to hear public input, receive answers to the best of Staff’s and FPL’s ability to any
remaining questions and determine if the Town Commission still wants to move forward and under
what circumstances. If the Town Commission reaches the conclusion to go forward a first reading of
the ordinance would be scheduled for March 12, 2013 and second reading would be scheduled for
April 9, 2613, The implications for the debt, the project total cost including interest and the pledges
necessary can all be discussed with our financial advisor, Sergio Masvidal, and bond counsel, JoLinda
Herring, during the February 12, 2013 Town Commission meeting. The implications of deferring the
project relating to costs, interest rates and the FPL queue can also be discussed.

Staff has also worked with FPL to further lower the cost for the project. We are finalizing discussions
with the cable and telephone providers to drive costs lower. This means that the low range of
residential monthly cost could be $8 — 10 and the high range is $10 —~ 12, These numbers will be firm
before the first reading. The level of responsibility for the Public Works Department will not ramp up
for more than a year since the final planning, permitting, bidding, contract award will take at least that
amount of time. The MCGRUF billing does not start until the new system is energized by zone.

Page 92


snovoa
Typewritten Text

snovoa
Typewritten Text

snovoa
Typewritten Text
9C


The Town’s Frequently Asked Questions, “FAQ’s” was sent to more than 3700 addresses by mail

posted to the Town’s website by February 5, 2013. Both of the FAQ’s were posted on the website
previously as part of the January 15, 2013 Agenda Packet We look forward to a lively discussion and
receiving direction on the project.

One final comment. Due to the need to complete the agenda, a supplemental package regarding the
undergrounding specifically answering additional questions will be sent as soon as possible.

Town Manager

Page 93



Town of Surfside
Commission Communication

Agenda Item #: 9D
Agenda Date: January 15, 2013
Subject: FPL Undergrounding Status Report - Update

This month’s status report is the third in a series. The November and December 2012 reports appear
as Attachment | and 2,

Additional tems for your review include:

Attachment 3A — G which are a variety of studies and recent articles analyzing the merits of
undergrounding projects from a reliability standpoint and the relative differences of wind and flood
protection. The Administration does not have the expertise to evaluate these and suggests that you
review the documents and draw your own cenclusions.

Attachment 4 is the quarter page advertisement which has appeared twice in the Miami Herald
Neighbors announcing five televised public information meetings to discuss the project.

Attachment 5A and 5B are the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) thet have been prepared by Staff
(5A) for the Surfside specific project and by FPL (5B) for undergrounding projects in general. After
the first public meeting which was held on January 10, 2013, the Surfside FAQs will be modified and
a letter wili be sent to all Surfside homeowners and businesses.

Atftachment 6A —~ C reflects three different financing scenarios for the project. The cost per month for
the residential units is estimated to be $10.00 to $12.00 and commercial customers would be $20 — $30
depending on consumption. These numbers will be finalized in February, 2013 to assist the final
decision on the part of the Town Commission.

In summary, January, 2013 will be a month for public tnput and finalizing the costs. There are no

. L U
iy el
Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager Bill Evans, Public Works Director

Donald Nelson, Finance Director

Page 94 |



Al ULl 4L

Town of Burfside
Commission Communication

Agenda Item #: 9C
- Agenda Date: Noveriber 13, 2012
_;.‘S_‘_l_;E}j;cc__t_::_-:;":{}fr{gergirou;nd ig Ui litigs f-

Recommendation: It is recommended that the Town Conunission suthorize the retention of
JoLinda Herring of Bryant Miller Olive and Sergio Masvidal with The Public Financial
Management Group to assist Staff with studying the inancing for the project to-underground the
electric, telephone and cable systems in all areas of the Town which are currently served above
ground. It is further recommended that Staff"be authorized to enter into discussions with AT&T
and Atlantic Broadband:te finalize cost-estimates for their-elément of the project:and bring bagk
a comprehensive report for review during the December 11, 2012 Town Commission meeting.

Backgreund: The Town Commission authorized Ric Man Construction to build cur
water/sewer/storm drainage system by adopting Resclution No. 11-2028 on June 14, 2017, This
‘project included $300:000 to install conduit for future undergrounding-of electric, cable,
telephone and fiber optic in all locations where the street paverment would have 1 be crossed in
the future if an undergrounding project wereapproved. Further, the Town Commission
authorized the expenditure of $59,844 for FPL to prepare a binding cost-esiimate to complete the
electric pertion of the work.

Broject Cost: The binding cost estimate (Attachment 1) was received on September 27, 2012
and has been analyzed by Staff. The cost estimate for the project 1s:

$7,486.221 Construction by FPL
(1.871.535) Credit for “hardening the system”
$5.614.666 Construction cost by FPL
59.844 Creditfor cast study {enginecring deposit)

$5,554,822 Net construction cost by FPL
(1.800:000) Savingsif Town manages the construction with FPL approved contractors
$3,754,822 - Net construction cost.by Town

1,000,000 Cabile TV undergrounding cost

1,006,000 AT&T undergrounding cost




700,000 VISTA waterproof electric transformers

645.482 Contingency and construction inspection
$7,100,304 Town cost for undergrounding all utilities
1,800,000 Estimated cost to bring power to all homes and commercial structures
£.900.304 Total cost before voluntary proffers
( 700,000) Funds available from voluntary proffers from Surf Club ($300,000),

Grand Beach (§185,000) and the Shul ($215,000)

£8,200,304 Full estimated financing need for the project

What does the Project inciude: The FPL project includes 267,685 feet (50 miles) of cable; 24
switch cabinets and 307 transformers. FPL will remove 470 poles and 278 overhead
transformers.

The specific requirements for AT&T and Atlantic Broadband are not yet known, however, the
cost estimates have been reasonably validated by both companies. If the Town Commission
gives authority to continue analysis of the project, Staff will enter into discussions with AT&T
and Atlantic Broadband to determine if they will fund any portion of the cost. We will also
require AT&T to install the capability for U-verse. It is also possible that extending the term of
the cable and telephone franchise agreements may result in some cost reduction.

How do we pay for this: There are a number of sources for financing including a competitive
private placement like we used for the water/sewer/storm drainage project. There are also
sources like the State Loan Pool administered by the Florida League of Cities. To select the best
funding sources is the role of our financial advisor in conjunction with the Finance Director. It
should be remembered that interest rates at this time are near all-time lows.

The source of repayment is authorized by the Mechanism for Governmental Recovery of
Underground Fees (MGRUF) element of FPL’s tariff (Attachment 2), which allows the
placement of a 15 percent of the monthly bill not to exceed $30.00 per month addition on all
residential units (estimated to be 2200 units) and $50 per month for every 5000 KW hours of
consumption for commercial properties (38 buildings). This additional cost may be placed on
the electric bill for up to 20 years. Staffis in the process of analyzing this revenue stream and
believes that the monthly fee will be less than the maximum allowable and the full twenty years
will not be required. If the Town Commission authorizes Staff to move forward with the
analysis, much more refined estimates will be provided during the December 11, 2012 Town
Commission meeting.

There is also the possibility of establishing a Coastal Barrier Infrastructure Financing District
which must be approved by the voters. This approach will also be discussed at the December 11,
2012 Town Commission meeting,

Next steps: It is important to understand that the FPL binding cost estimate is only good until
late March, 2013. If a decision is not reached by that date, the cost estimate becomes invalid and

Page 96



FPL will require another $60,000 to update the estimate. Therefore the following calendar is
recommended:

November, 2012 Town Commission meeting: Authorize the retention of Bryant Miller
Olive and The Public Financial Management Group to serve as bond counsel and financial
advisor. Establish a citizen’s advisory committee similar to the water/sewer/storm drainage
project and the parking structure advisory committee.

December, 2012 Town Commission meeting: Review full cost analysis including details
from AT&T and Atlantic Broadband. Review detailed financing plan and resolve any issues
related to faimess of funding procedures from single family, commercial and multi-family
sources.

January, 2013 Town Commission meeting: Authorize a very significant public
information campaign. Make a final determination that a series of public hearings will be
held in February, 2013.

February, 2013: Hold a series of public hearings and attend condominium association board
meetings. Inform all commercial property owners as well.

March, 2013: Make a final decision on the project and authorize the financing,

Project Implementation: The project will be built in three phases similar to the
water/sewer/storm drainage project. The overall project is estimated to require nine months for
conduit installation and six months to complete energizing all areas. Areas are energized by

- blocks as the system is installed and properties are served underground.

The Town will retain a group of electrical contractors to do the work on private property from
the main line in the easement to the service on the property. In some cases the property may
need or the owners may want to upgrade their service. That will be determined by the electrical
contractor and Building Official in conjunction with the property owner and is expected to be a
concern only to a very small number of properties. If the Town Commission wishes, the Town
could provide financing in the case of demonstrable financial hardship and be repaid over time.

The cost of converting the AT&T and Atlantic Broadband systems from the easement to the
home is much less than the electrical system. The same electrical contractors retained by the
Town will do this work.

Hardening and Aesthetics: The benefits of hardening the system fall into three categories. The
first is wind resistance for our nearly 75 year old electrical system. There is no question that
wind resistance will be enhanced if the system goes underground. The second category is flood
resistance. Suffice it to say that all bets are off if we have a tidal surge that covers the Town,
however, the length of time to recover is greatly enhanced if the VISTA waterproof electric
transformer boxes are used. Further, FPL’s protocols for re-energizing after storms have clearly

Page 97 3



shown that underground areas are brought up much faster than areas that require replacement of
lines due to wind damage including fallen trees.

The aesthetics improvement of undergrounding is clear and cannot be questioned. While this

may not be a priority for all residents, the improvement to property values when the project is
complete helps to make the case.

Conclusion: Surfside has been considering undergrounding utilities for many years, The Town
Commission has shown great foresight by providing the conduit for crossing the streets as an
element of the water/sewer/storm drainage system and authorizing the FPL cost study. The data
is now in and it is time to authorize the financial analysis as well as the process for citizen
involvement,

This project will be a game changer of the magnitude of the Community Center and the
water/sewer/storm/drainage project. The enormous benefit for hurricane recovery is clear. The
financing is achievable, construction costs are very low and the team is in place to manage this
project.

The Administration looks forward to receiving the Town Commission direction to allow the
decision to be made within the timeframe proposed.

- i

Evans, Public Works Director Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager

A

Donald Nelson, Finance Director

Page 98



Attcachment "1©v

Florida Power & Light Company, 2455 Port West Bivd. , West Palm Beach, FL 33407

~PL.

September 27, 2012

Mr, Bill Evans

Public Works Director
Town of Sucfside
9293 Harding Ave.
Surfside, FL 33154

Re:  Town of Surfside
 Electric Facilities Conversion
Entire Town Limits -Binding Cost Estimate
WR # -4269737, -4269749, 4269755

Dear Mr. Evans:

FPL welcomes the opportunity to assist you in determining if underground service is right for your
area. As per your request, FPL has completed & binding cost estimate for the project designated as
the Surfside Conversion project. The binding cost estimate amount, known as the Contribution In
Aid of Construction (C.LA.C.), required for converting the area to underground is 35,614,666.00.
This amount is based on the proposed underground design inclusive of the Vista switch technologies
as requested by the Town. The underground drawings for the project are being finalized and & full set
will be sent to youn once they are complete. In addition, the cost estimate includes a more than $ 4.8
million adjustment credit for both FPL’s Govemment Adjustment Factor (G.A.F.) Waiver and as
required in the CLA.C. formula, tariff Section 12.1, credit for an equivalent overhead system
designed at the current hardened (i.e. extreme wind) standard. Further the cost assumes the
following:

e Rapid trench construction

s All work will be performed during the daylight hours, Monday through Friday, 8 AM. to 5
P.M.. Any afier hours work, e.g. disconnect / reconnect service appointments, would be an
additional expense for the Town.

This binding cost estimate is valid for 180 days and a response must be received within that
timeframe. Should you agree to move forward with the project, please sign and retumn the enclosed
documents. Once we receive the acceptance package (e.g. partially executed documents and
C.ILA.C. payment), we will commence the construction process (i.e. initiate bid requests and material
purchasing). Any deposits that you have already paid will be applied towards the C.LA.C. and you
must pay the remaining difference of $5,554,822.00 before we begin construction. Failure to execute
the applicable Agreement and pay the C.LA.C. specified in the Agreement within the 180 day time
limit, or termination of the Agreement, shall result in the expiration of the binding cost estimate.
However, if you choose to cancel your request or not respond in time, your engineering deposit will
not be returned and the estimate will be withdrawn.

Page 99



i

Page 2

This estimate only includes the charges to be paid to FPL. There are additional costs which are the
customer’s responsibility and should aiso be considered. These potential costs include:

Site restoration (sod, landscaping, pavement, sidewalks, etc).
Rearrangement of customer electric service entrances (requires electrician) from overhead to
underground. Also, additional customer expense if local inspecting authorities require
customer wiring to be brought up to current codes.
Removal and burial of other utilities (e.g. telecom, CATV, ete.).

* Any project scope changes that modify the enclosed drawings.

& Acquiring, describing, securing and recording of easements for underground facilities.

We look forward to working with you and your staff as this project progresses. If you have any
questions, please contact me at 561-845-4624,

M&OL

John C. Lehr, Jr.

Project Manager — Underground
Distribution

FPL

Sincerely,

Attachments

Page 100



Fourth Revised Sheet No. 6.300

FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY Cancels Third Revised Sheet No. 6.300

INSTALLATION OF UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION FACILITIES
FOR THE CONVERSIGN OF OVERBEAD ELECTRIC DISTRIBUTION FACILITIES

SECTION 12.1 DEFINITIONS

APPLICANT - Any person, comporation, or entity capable of complying with the requirements of this tariff that has made a written request
for underground electric distribution facilities in accorderce with this tariff.

CONVERSION - Any instatlation of underground electric diswibution fecilities where the underground facilities will be substituted for
existing overhead electric distribution facilities, including relocations.

TN F. C -~ The CIAC to be paid by an Applicant under this tariff section shall be the
result of the following formula:

The estimated cost to install the requested underground facilities;
The estimated cost to remove the existing overhead facilities;
The net book value of the existing ovethead facilities;
The estimated cost that would be incurred to install new overhead facilities, in Jiew of underground, to replace the
existing overhead facilities {the “Hypothetical Overhead Facilities™);
The estimated salvage value of the existing overhead fecilities 1o be removed;
The 30-year net present value of the estimated non-storm underground v. overhead operational costs differentiet,
which is set at 30 (zero) per pole-line mile of the existing overhead facilities;
The 30-year net present value of the estimated average Avoided Storm Restorstion Coests (“ASRC™} calculatedasa
percentage of the sum of lines 1) through €). Simplified elipibility criteria for each ASRC Tier are summarized
below. Applicants must enter into an Underground Facilities Conversion Agreement with the Company
which provides full details on terms, conditions and compliance requirements,
Tler  Percentape Pole-Line Miles Cnstomer Conversions Completion

1 25% 3 ormore 100% 3 phases

2 0% o <3 10086 3 phases

3 5% <] rfa nfa

* The GAF Waiver will apply in lien of Tier ! ASRC for elipible conversions by Local Govemment Applicants,

OAF Waiver
For Applicants entering into an Underground Fazilities Conversion Agreement — Governmental Adjustment Factor Weiver with
the Company, the otherwise applicable CIAC amount, as calculsted ebove, shall be reduced by the GAF Waiver, The amount of
the GAF Waiver shait be calculated as follows:
GAF Waiver =
25% x the otherwise epplicable CIAC;
+  75%x the ASRC (avoids double-counting the ASRC embedded in the otherwise applicable CIAC.)

If the Applicant elects to construct and instal! all or pant of the underground fecilities, then for purposes of calculating the ASRC
or the GAF Waiver amount only, the otherwise applicable CIAC shall be edjusted to add FPL's estimated cost for the Applicant-
performed work, In addition, the Direct Enginesring, Supervision, and Support (DESS) costs associated with this Applicant-
performed work will be reduced by 20% from the amount that would have applied if FPL performed this work.

DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM - Electric service facilities consisting of primary and sccondary conductors, service drops, service laterals,
conduits, transformers end necessary accessories and appurtenances for the furnishing of electric power at utilization voltnge.

SERVICE FACILITIES - The catire length of conductors between the distribution source, including any conduit and or risers at a pole or
other structure or from trensformers, from which only one point of service will resuit, and the first point of connection to the service
entrance conductors at a weatherhead, in a terminal, or meter box outside the building wall; the terminai or meter box; and the meter,
{Continved on Sheet No. 6.361)

wettor, Rates and Tarifs
BARTREAME Vs n[iﬂl 6, 2010

Page 101



FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY

1221

Original Sheet No. 6.301

(Continued from Sheet No. 6.300)

SECTION 12.2 GENERAL

Agpplication
This tariff section applies to all requests for underground electric distribution Fcilities where the facilities requested will be
substituted for existing overhead electric distribution facitities. Any person, carporation, or entity capable of complying with the
requirements of this tariff may submit a request as follows. Requests shall be in writing and must specify in detail the overhead
electric distribution facilities to be converted or the area to be served by underground electric distribution fecilities in lieu of
presently existing overhead electric distribution facilities serving said area. Upon receipt of a written request, FPL will determine
the feasibility of converting the existing facilities, any necessary revisions to this written request, and the non-refundable depesit
amount pecessary to secure a binding cost estimate and notify the applicant of said emount.

Contribution-jn-Ald-Of-Construction (CIAC)

Upon the payment of a pon-refundable deposit by an Applicant, FPL shall prepare a binding cost estimate specifying the
contribution in aid of construction (CIAC) required for the installation of the requested underground distribution facilities, where
the installation of such fucilities is feasible, and provide said estimate to the Applicant upon completion of the estimate afong with
either an Underground Facilities Conversion Agreement or en Underground Facilitics Conversion Agreement - Governmental
Adjustment Factor Waiver. The CIAC amount 1o be coliected pursuant to & binding cost estimate from an Applicant shail aot be
increased by more than 10 percent of the binding cost estimate to account for actual costs incurred in excess of the binding cost
estimete. However, the CIAC may be subject to increase or refund if the project scape is enlarged or reduced at the request of the
Applicant, or the CIAC is found to have & material error prior to the commencement of construction. The binding cost estimate
provided to an Applicant shall be considered expired if the Applicant does not enter into either an Underground Facilities
Conversion Agreement or an Underground Facilities Conversion Agreement - Governmental Adjustment Factor Waiver and pay
the CIAC smount specified for the installation of the requested underground electric distribution facilities within 180 days of
delivery of the binding cost estimate to the Applicant by FPL.

(Continued on Sheet No. 6.310)

iirector, Rates and Tarifls

KIEITL YT ARLFE En Wy —;m

Page 102



FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY

1223

Third Revised Sheet No. 6.310
mis Second Seet 6.3!0

(Continued from Sheet No. 6.301)

Non-Refimdable Deposits

The non-refindable deposit for a binding cost estimate for conversion to & direct buried cable in conduit underground electric
distribution system shall be determined by multiplying the number of pole line feet of existing overhead electric distribution
facilities to be converted by $1.20. The deposit maust be paid to FPL to initiate the estimating process. The deposit will not be
refundable, however, it will be applied in the calculation of the CIAC required for the installation of imderground distibution
fecitities. The deposit and the preparation of a binding cost estimate are a prerequisite to the excoution of either an
Underground  Facilities Conversion Agreement or an Underground  Fucilities Conversion Agreement - Governmental
Adjustment Factor Waiver. [f the request for underground electric distribution fecilities involves the conversion of less than
250 pole fine feet of existing overhead facilities, then no deposit will be required for a binding cost estimete, provided,
however, that ull other requirements of this tariff shall stifl apply.

Non-Binding Cost Estimates

Any person, corporation, or entity may request a non-binding cost estimate free of charge, The nen-binding cost estimate shail
be an onder of magnitude estimate to assist the requestor in determining whether to go forward with a binding cost estimate.
Neither an Underground Facifities Conversion Apreement nor an Usndetground Facilities Conversion Agreement -
Goveramental Adjustment Factor Waiver may be executed on the basis of a non-binding cost estimate,

Un d Fecilities Co fon et

Any Applicant seeldng the installation of wnderground distribution facilities pursuant to & written request hereunder shafl
execute either the Underground Facilities Conversion Agreement set forth in this tariff at Sheet No. 9,720 or, if applicable, the
Underground Facilities Conversion Agrecment - Governmental Adjustment Factor Waiver set forth in this tariff at Sheet No.
9.725. The applicable Agreement must be executed and the CIAC paid by the Applicant within 180 days of the delivery of the
binding cost estimate o the Applicant. Failure to execute the applicable Agreement and pay the CIAC specified in the j
Agreement within the 130 day time limit, or termination of the Agreement, shall result in the expiration of the binding cost
estimate. Any subsequent request for underground facilities will require the payment of a new deposit and the presentation of
& new binding cost estimate. For pood cause FPL may extend the 180 day time fimit. Upon execution of either the
Underground Facilities Conversion Agreement or the Underground Facilities Conversion Agreememt - Govemmental )
Adjustment Factor Waiver, payment in full of the CIAC spexified in the binding cost estimate, and compliance with the
requirements of this tariff, FPL shall proceed to convert the facilities identified in a timely manner, However, new service
extensions, mintensnce and relinbility projects, and service restorations shall take precedence over facilities conversions.

Before the initiation of any project to provide underground electric distribution facilities pursuant to either an Underground
Fecilities Conversion Agreement or an the Underground Facilifies Conversion Agreement - Governmental Adjustment Factor
Waiver the Applicant shall have executed egreements with all affected pole licensees (e.g. telephone, cable TV, etc.) for the
simultaneous conversion of those pole licensees' facilities and provide FPL with an executed copy of the Agreement(s). Such
egreements shall specifically acknowledge that the affected pole licensees will coordinate their conversion with FPL and other
licensees in & timely manner so as to not create unnecessary delays. Failure to present FPL with exccuted copies of any
nrecessary sgrecments with affected pole licensees within 180 days after delivery of the binding cost estimate to the Applicant
shall result in the expimtion of the binding cost estimate, the return of any CIAC paid, and the termination of any Underground
Facilities Conversion Agreement or Underground Fecilities Conversion Agreement - Govemmental Adjustment Factor Waiver
entered into between the Applicant and FPL.

Esscments

Before the initiation of any project to provide underground electric distribution facilities pursuant to either an Underground
Facifities Conversion Agreement or an Underground Facilities Conversion Agresment - Govermmental Adjustment Factor
Waiver, the Applicant shall provide FPL, at no cost to FPL, all easements, including legal descriptions of such easements and
all survey work associated with producing legel descriptions of such easements, specified as necessary by FPL to
accommucdate the requested underground fecilities along with an opinion of title that the easements are valid. Failure to
provide the easements in the manner set forth above within 180 days afier the delivery of the binding cost estimate to the
Applicant shall result in the expiration of the binding cost estimate, the return of any CIAC paid, and the termination of any
Underground Facilities Conversion Agreement or Underground Fasilities Conversion Agreement - Governmental Adjustment
Factor Waiver entered into between the Applicant and FPL.

{Continued on Sheet No. §.320)

-3 Director, Rates and Tariffs
2006

Page 103




Third Revised Sheet No. 6,320

FLORIDA POWER & LlG COMPANY Cancels Second Revised Sheet No, 6320

(Continved from Skeet No, 6.310)

1228 Affected Customer Services

The Applicant shal! be responsible for the costs associated with any modifications to the service facilities of customers affected
by the conversion of FPL distribution facilities which are mede necessary’ as & result of the conversion, The Applicant shall be
W’me for amanging the conversion of affected residential overhead customer service facilities by providing, at no cost to

8} any necessery rearranging of the customer's existing electric service entrance facilities to 2ccomenodate an underground service
lateral through the use of a licensed electrical contractor, in accordance with all local ordinences, codes, and FPL
specifications; and

b) a suitable trench, install FPL provided conduit according to FPL specifications to a point designated by FPL, and perform
the backfilling and any landscape, pavement or other simitar repairs

FPL shall be responsible for the instaliation of the service latera! cable, the cost of which shall be included in the Applicant's
binding cost estimste. In the event a customer does ot allow the Applicant to convert the customer's affected overhead
services, or the Applicant fails to comply with the above requirements in a timely menner consistent with FPL's conversion
construction schedule, then the Applicant shall pay FPL, in zddition to the CIAC specified in the binding cost estimate, the
costs associated with maintaining service to said customer through an overhead service drop. The cost for maintaining an
overhead service drop from an underground system shall be: '

8)  the sum of $789 for residential dwellings containing less than five individual units; or,

b) the estimated cost to maintain service for residential dwellings containing five or more individual units,

For existing residential underground service laterals affected by a conversion the Applicant shall be responsible for the
trenching, backfilling and any landscape, pavement or other similar repairs and installation of FPL provided conduit, |
according to FPL specifications, necessary to bring existing underground service laterals of affected customers to an |
FPL designated handhole or transformer. FPL will install the necessary ceble, the cost of which shall be included in the
binding cost estimate. However, in the event that 2 customer owned service lateral fails on connection to the
underground distribution system the customer will be responsible for the replacement of their service lateral or
compliance with section 10.5 of FPL's tariff.

The Applicant's responsibilities for modifications to the service facilities of non-residentiat customers affected by the
conversion of FPL distribution facilities which are made necessary as a resuit of the conversion will be specified in an
attachment 0 any Underpround Facilities Conversion Agreement or Underground Facilities Conversion Agreement -
Governmentat Adjustment Factor Waiver,

and Conditions
Through the execution of either the Underground Facilities Conversion Agreement set forth in this tariff at Sheet No.
9.720 or the Underground Facilities Conversion Agreement - Governmental Adjustment Factor Waiver set forth in this tariff at
Sheet No. 9.725 the Applicant agrees 1o the following:

8) The Applicant shail be responsibie for all restoration of, repair of, or compensation for, property affected,
damaged, or destroyed, to accommodate the installation of underground distribution facilities and the removal of
FPL's overhead distribution facilities;

subject to section 2.7 Indemnity to Company, or section 2.71 Indemnity to Company — Governrental, FPL's
General Rules and Regulations, the Applicant shall indemmify FPL from any claim, suit, or other proceeding,
w!ﬁchseeksthersmmﬁonof,ormpairoﬂorcompmsaﬁunfor,pmpeﬁynﬁ'ednd,dnmaged.crdestmyed.to
remove existing facilities or to accommodate the installation of underground distribution fucilities arising from or
brought as a result of the installation of underground distribution facilities;

the Applicant shali clear easements provided to FPL of trees, tree stumps and other obstructions that conflict with
construction or installation of underground distribution facilities in a timely manner consistent with FPL%
construction schedule.

(Continued on Sheet No. 6330)

iirector, Rates and Tariffs
TERACIEVES ~ APIT 9y LUU0

Page 104




Second Revised Sheet No. 6330 |
APOWER&LIGMPANY . Cancels First Revised Sheet No. 6330

{Continued from Sheet No. 6320)

122,10 Type of System Provided
An underground distribution system will be provided in accordance with FPL's current design and construction

standerds,

12.2.11 Design end Ownership
FPL wilt design, install, own, and maintain the electric distribution facilities up to the designated point of delivery
except as otherwise noted. The Applicant may, subject to a contractual agreement with FPL, construct and install al} or
a portion of the underground distribution facilities provided that:

a) such work meets FPL's construction standards;
b) FPL wili own and maintain the completed distribution facilities;

¢) the construction and installation of underground distribution facilities by the Applicant is not experted to cause the
gmeral bedy of ratepayers to incur greater costs;

d) the Apphmnt agreesto pay FPL's current applicable hourly rate for engineering personnei for alf time spent for (i)
reviewing and inspecting the Applicant's work done, and (i) developing any separate cost estimate(s) that are
either requested by the Applicant to reflect only FPL’s portion of the wark or are required by FPL to reflect both
the Applicant’s and FPL's portions of the work for the purpese of a GAF Waiver calculation pursuzant to an
Underground Farilities Conversion Agreement —~ Governmental Adjustment Factor Waiver; and

¢} the Applicant agrees to rectify any deficiencies found by FPL prior to the connection of any Customers to the
underground electric distribution system and the removal of the overhead electric distribution facilities.

12.2.12 Relocation
Where underground electric facilities are sequested as part of, or for the purpose of,, relocation, the requirements of this
tariff shall apply. As spplicable, the Underground Facilities Conversion Agreement or the Underground Facilities
Conversion Agreement - Governmental Adjustment Factor Weiver shall be exeouted as an addendiin fo the relocation
agreement batween FPL end the Applicant. In the event of any conflict between the relocation agreement and this tariff,
the tariff shall control. Furthermore, where the regulations of the Federal or State Department of Transportation (DOT)
prevent pre-payment of deposits and other conversion costs, the Federal or State DOT may pay the CIAC after the work

has been performed.

B Director, Rates and Tarifls
2606

Page 105



LN

Eighth Revised Sheet No. 9.725

~ FLORIDA PO & LIGHT 0 - ~ Cancels Seventh Revised Skeet No. 9,725

UNDERGROUND FACILITTES CONVERSION AGREEMENT -
GOVERNMENTAL ADJUSTMENT FACTOR WAIVER

This Agreement is made and entered into this day of . 20__, by md betwesn b
TOWN OF SURFSIDE (“Local Government Applicant™), a Floride municipal corporation or county with an address of 9293
Harding Ave., Surfside, FL. 33154 and FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY (“FPL™), a Florida corporation with an

address of P.O. Box 14000, 700 Universe Boulevard, Juno Beach, FL 33408-0429.

WHEREAS, the Local Government Applicant has requested that FPL. canvert certain overhead electric distribution facilities
located within the following boundaries (the “Conversion™): '
_the Entire Town west of Collins Ave. (collectively, the “Existing Overhead Facilities”, WR # -4269751, 4269743, -4269734) P
to underground facilities, inchuding transformers, switch cabinets and other appurtenant facilities installed above ground as set
forth Atbachment A hereof (collectively, the “Underground Facilities”, WR # 4269737, 4260749, 4269755, See the attached :

drawings ). :
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and the covenants and agreements set forth herein, and other #
consideration the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties intending to be legally bound, hereby covenant and

agree as follows:

1. Governmental Adjustment Factor Waiver (“GAF Waiver”) Eligibility Criteria. The Local Government Applicant §

represents and warrants that it meets the following eligibility criteria for the Conversion: :

a . In order for the Conversion to incorporate a sufficient ameunt of overhead facilities to provide electrical

continuity, the Conversion must include a minimum of approximately 3 pole line miles or approximately 200

detached dwelling units within contiguous or closely proximate geographic areas {the “Conversion Area”). The §

Conversion may be completed in mutually agreed upon phases, with the project size minimums applying to the ;

aggregate project — provided that any pecessary subsequent phase begins within a 1 year period from §

completion of the prior phase and the minimums are met within, at most, 3 phases; and :

b. The Local Goverment Applicant must require afl customers within the Conversion Area who currently have :

overhead service directly from the Existing Overhead Facilities to convert their service entramces to §

underground within 6 months of completion of the Underground Facilities installation or each phase thereof, §

and . :

c. The Local Government Applicant must be willing and able to execute a right of way (“ROW™) agreement with §

FPL if the Local Government Applicant requests that facilities be placed in the ROW; and . .

d. For any affected laterals, the complete lateral must be converted, including all stages of any multi-stage lateral;

and :

e. The Local Government Applicant must demonstrate to the reasonable satisfaction of FPL that the sum of the }

GAF Waiver credit plus any federal or state funds that the Local Government Applicant is able to use to support §

the Conversion does not exceed the otherwise applicable CIAC as calculated before application of the GAF §

Waiver. ' :

Special Circumstances. Conversions which do not meet the project size minimums described in section 1.a are
eligible for the GAF Waiver in the following special circumstances:

. i 100% of the Existing Overhead Facilities within the Local Governiment Applicant’s corparate limits

are 10 be converted, but are less than the pole line mileage or dwelling unit mifimums; or
. A single lateral that serves at least one Critical Infrastructure Facility as deterpined by the
appropriate local agency with the mirwal agreement of FPL; or
.  Anisland or peninsuia where 100% of the Existing Overhead Facilities are to be converted; or

(Contimued on Sheet No. 9.726)

Issued by: §. K. Romig, wnrector, Rates and Tariffs

Page 406"



__ FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT

L

Fifth Revised Sheet No. 9.726
_ Cancels .‘Fourﬂx Rgvisa Shee No. 9.‘?2 _

(Continued from Sheet No. 9.725)

iv.  When the aggregate size of the first 3 phases of 2 project would satisfy the minimum size criteria but, -§
for mutually- engineering or logistical reasons, those phases are non-contiguous; provided that
() the next (4%) phase must be adjacent to one or more of the first 3 phases such that the combined §
contiguous area meets the minimum size criteria, and (b) this 4° phase begins within 1 year from |
compietion of the 3™ phase,

Cantrihution—in—Aid-ofCans&ncﬁun (CIAC). The Local Government Applicant shall pay FPL & CIAC as‘v
required by FPL's Electric Tariff and Section 25-6.115 of the Florida Administrative Code with the Otherwise §
Applicable CIAC amount reduced by the GAF Waiver. !

i. Otherwise Applicable CIAC $_ 7486221
i GAF Waiver $_1,871,555
iil. - CIACDue $_5.614,666 _  (FPY, performs ALL UG work)

In the event the actual cost of the Conversion exceeds the estimate, the Otherwise Applicable CIAC shall be
adjusted by the lesser of (a) the difference between the actual cost of the Conversion and the estimate, or (®) 10% M
of the Otherwise Applicable CIAC identified above. The GAF Waiver shall also be adjusted accordingly and the §-
Local Government Applicant shall pay FPL the resulting difference in the amount of the CIAC Due. '

Applicant-Installed Facilities. The Local Government Applicant may, upon entering into an applicant- §
installed facilities agreement satisfactory to FPL, construct and install all or a portion of the Underpromnd |
Facilities. Such work must meet FPL's construction standards and FPL will own and maintain the completed §
facilities. The Local Government Applicant agrees to rectify any deficiencies, found by FPL, prior to the
conmection of any customers to the Underground Facilities and the removal of the Existing Overhead Facilities.

Compliance with Tariff. The Local Government Applicant agrees to comply with and abide by the requirements,
terms, and conditions of FPL's Electric Tariff. :

Timing of Conversion. Upon compliance by the Local Government Applicant with the requirements, terms, and 8
conditions of FPL's Electric Tariff, this Agreement and any other applicable agreements, FPL will proceed in a K
timely manner with the Conversion in accordance with the construction drawings end specifications set forth in
Attachment A hereof. E

Relocation. In the event that the Underground Facilities are part of, or are for the purposes of, relocation, then this §
Agreement shall be an addendum to the relocation agreement between FPL and the Local Government Applicant. §
In the event of any conilict between the relocation agreement :nd this Agreement or the Blectric Teriff, this :
Agreement and the Electric Tariff shall control.

.. Term. This Agreement shall remain in effect for as long as FPL or eny successor or assign owns or operates the

Underground Facilities.
GAF Waiver Repayment. If the Local Government Applicant does not satisfy the relevant eligibility criteria, the

Lacal Government Applicant shall repay the GAF Waiver within 30 days of written notice from FPL of such
failure. Additionally, if at any point within 30 years of completion of the Underground Facilities instailation, the '
Local Government Applicant elects to have electric service within the Conversion Area supplied by a provider
other than FPL, the Local Government Applicant shall repay FPL a pro-rate share of the GAF Waiver. The pro-
rata share {which shai] reflect partial years) shall be determined as follows: .

GAF Waiver * [(30 ~ years since the Underground Facilities completion date) / 30],

{Continued on Sheet No, 9.727)

wsuedby: S. E. Komig, Director, Rates and Tariffs

Pl $OT



FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY Original Sheet No. 9.727

(Continued from Sheet No. 9.726)

9. Termination Prior to the Conversion Completion. Failuwre by the Local Government Applicant o comply with
eny of the requirements, terms, or conditions of this Agreement or FPL's Electric Tariff shall result in termination of
this Agréement. The Local Government Applicant may terminate this Agreement at any tirne prior to the start of the
Conversion and the CIAC paid by the Local Govermment Applicant will be refunded to the Local Government
Applicant; provided however, that the refund of the CIAC shall be offset by any costs ineurred by FPL in performing
under the Agreement up to the date of termination, '

10. Assignment. The Local Government Applicant shall not assign this Agreement without the wrilten consent of FPL,

11. Adoption and Recording. This Agreement shall be adopted by the Local Government Applicant and maintained in
the official records of the Loca! Government Applicant for the duration of the term of this Agreement.  This
Agreement also shall be recorded in the Official Records of the County in which the Undergromnd Facilities are
located, in the place and in the manner in which deeds are typically recorded.

12. Conflict between Terms of Franchise Agreement. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Agreement
and any permit or franchise agreement entered into by Local Government Applicant and FPL, the terms-of this
Agreement shall control. ) .

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, FPL and the Local Govermment Applicant have executed this Agreement on the date first set
forth above.

TOWN OF SURFSIDE . FPL
Signed Signed
. Name | Name
. Title Title
Sipned
Name

itle

Approved as to Terms and Conditions

Signed

Name

Title

- Approved as to Form and Legal Sufficiency

Signed

Name

Title

wsucouays N, XTHOmig, Director, Rates and Tariffs
Effective: April 4, 2006

Page 108



Overhead to Underground Conversion - Customer Cost Sheet

Project: Surfelde - Qverall Date Estimate Provided to Customer: September 27, 2012

FPL performs all work
Unilerground Cost

New Ul Instaliation (+ 38 885,032 Cest for FRL o insizll new underground faciiifes
Equivalent OH Instalation () (82,838,027} Cost o install an overnaad systern al current hardening standards
Existing Overhead Cost
Ot Removal Cost & Make ready (+ 51,330,409 Casi for FPL to remove existing overhead faciities
Existing OH Value 1+ 167 115 et Book Valuz of sxisting'OH facilifies to be removed
Operational Costs Differential (+) 0 0-year Met present value of the est. operstionsl OF / UG Diff. cost
Balvage Value (-} 50 Gredif for re-usable Hemg
Subiofal* Ty BTA86,224 Totsd customer comtribuiion as speciied in Terf 12.2.3
GAF o {51,874.585)
CIAC ‘EEET4.588 -
Engiresring Deposit{-} (ERE pady Enginesring deposit previously collscier
Nt Dus FPL - GEER4 802 Toti customer confrivulion owed

Cost Brazkdowns for Customer Contributions

Birect Engineering,

Total LaboriVehicie Material Supervision, and Support

Mew UG Fagilities {+) 88,086,534 53,267,301 32,884 685 1,524,838
Credfit for equivalant OH (-3 (52,938,027 (81,124,882} (51,308,104} {$504,851)
OH Rembval Cost & Make ready (+ 330,495 51,081,613 540,512, 5208374

Total S7,879,406 - U$3224,032 0 0 $2827,0180 70 o $4,52B,061
Nel Book Vaiue (+) 107,118 :
Cperastiona! Costs Differentia! {45 80
Saivage Vaiue (-} 54

Subtotal 87485221

GAF {31:874:685)

GIAG o RS, BI4;568 -
Engineering Depos# (+] {358,844 Enginesaring deposit praviously collecied

Met Due FPL © BE554,822

Wajor Material Breakdown

Quantiiy Ham

i 787,588 Brimary. UG Cable (fest)

[ o 24 U@ fw‘fmh Cabinet {V}?’I‘A;'

H K1) UE Transformer (sach}

; %7 Spiine bow for UG fesder (each)
144 822 O Pricnary Tonducior (fest)

i Bamove i 478 PaleE (eani} N

; 278 OH Trensfommer {eanh}

| e Primary UG Cable Heal

Page 109



Attachment 2w

TO: Mr. Roger Carlton
FROA: Ms. Ana F. Iglesias

RE: Undergrounding Utilities
DATE: March 9, 2012

I. UNDERGROUNDING UTILITIES
A) introduction

A public utility, as defined in the Florida Statutes, is every person, corporation, or
association that supplies electricity or gas to or for the public within the state.” Public utilities
have the duty to furnish sufficient and efficient service to each person that applies to receive
electricity or gas.? The Florida Public Service Commission (FPSC) is the entity that protects
Florida's consumers, and has the authority, power, and duty to regulate all public utilities that
supply essential services, ie., electric, water, natural gas, telephone, and wastewater.® This
entity regulates the rates utilities charge for services while monitoring the safety of the
services provided, and ensures that utilities comply with the FPSC's requirements.*

As expressed in the Florida Statutes, all rates demanded or received by any public
utility for any service rendered or to be rendered by it, and each rule and regulation shall be
fair and reasonable.® Most importantly, no preferences may be granted to any person or
locality. The Florida Legislature has declared that it is critical to utilize the most efficient and
cost-effective demand-side renewable energy systems and conservation systems in order to

protect the health and general welfare of the state and its citizens.® It further declares that

! See $366.02, Florida Statutes, defining a public utility. Gas can be natural, manufactured, or a similar gaseous substance.
* See $366.03, Fiorida Statutes, all rates and charges made, demanded, or received by any public utility must be reasonable,

* See Florida Public Service Commission website, hitp://www.psc state flus.
* See $366.04, Florida Statutes, for further details regarding the Florida Public Service Commission’s Jurisdiction.

*No public utility shall be required to fumnish electricity or gas for resale. Except that a public utility may be required 1o

furnish gas for containerized resale.
* See §366.81. Florida Stanstes, for more information regarding the Legislature’s intent with regards to public utilities.

Page 110



the FPSC is the appropriate agency to adopt goals and approve pians related to the
promotion of demand-side renewable energy systems and the conservation of electric energy
and natural gas usage.

After introducing the functions of the FPSC, this brief analysis will discuss the MGRUF
tariff, the “Coastal Bamiers Infrastructure Finance Act” that will take effect on July 1, 2012,
and the steps required to establish a successful Infrastructure-Financing District.”

B) Florida Public Service Commission

As | mentioned previously, the FPSC’s main function is to regulate and supervise all
public utilities. Consequently, the FPSC has the duty to examine and test all meters that are
used for measuring any product or service of a public wzility.8 Additionally, the FPSC
approves agreements between electric cooperatives, resolves territorial disputes among
municipal electric utilities, and prescribes uniform systems of accounts or a rate structure for
all electric utiliies. The FPSC is aiso responsible for establishing reasonable fees to be paid
by each user or consumer, for the purpose of testing meters.

Users or consumers can choose {0 have their meters tested upon payment of the fees
fixed by the commission. Standard measuring instruments may be purchased to carry on the
testing at the request of the users or consumers. Should any public utility violate any of the
FPSC's rules or orders, the violation will constitute irreparable harm. When violations occur,
the FPSC is authorized to seek relief in circuit court inciuding temporary and permanent
injunctions, restraining orders, or any other appropriate order.’ The FPSC’s jurisdiction is
superior to that of all municipalities, towns, counties, or agencies. During conflicts, the rules,

regulations, and lawful acts of the FPSC will prevall in each instance.

? Florida’s statutory laws and codes were consulted while writing this analysis.

8 See §366.05, Florida Statutes.
® The remedies mentioned are in addition to any other remedies available for enforcement of agency action under statute

120,69, or the provisions of chapter 355 of the Florida Statutes.
2

Page 111



C) Strengthening Florida’s infrastructure

The coasts of the State of Florida have been severely impacted in the recent past.
Because of that, it has been argued that Florida's electrical infrastructure must be
strengthened. Recently, there has been a growing trend towards undergrounding utilities.
Many have disputed that converting utiiities is a better alternative to protecting utilities from
rain and wind-storm damaée. However, the question of whether utilities should be converted
from overhead to underground has sparked a lot of coniroversy. The trend towards
undergrounding utilities has led to an increase in research efforts aimed at analyzing both the
advantages and disadvantages of converting the utilities to the underground. Some of the
considerations that must be analyzed are the high costs in converting utilities, and the time
required to accomplish the undergrounding.

Several cities in Florida have been studying the cost, need, and benefits of
undergrounding utilities in areas that have the greatest risk of service interruption and
property damage from hurricanes, or similar natural disasters. Some cities have gone as far
as forming a committee specifically dedicated to analyzing, planning and implementing the
conversion of utilities from overhead to underground.“’

While some advantages of placing utilities in the underground include: aesthetic
appeal (due to lack of utility poles), potential impact on property values, and protection from
humricane damage, the major disadvantages include: costs of conversion, corrosion, pipe
bursting, flood damage, water intrusion, and costly or time consuming service repairs posi-
hurricanes. Maintaining and repairing overhead utilities is not always the cheaper alternative

because it is burdensome and expensive to repair or support aerial utilities as well.

" In Amelia City, an Underground Committee was formed in 2005. In a report presented during November 2611, the UC
recommended a plan to underground all utilities by 2020, The report further stated that the costs of undergrounding utilities
should be “bome by the utility provider, and recovered if needed through rate changes affecting all customers.” Estimated
extra costs per home for undergrounding utilities are $850 for putting new underground, and $250 for replacements

undersround.

3
Page 112




Although many argue that underground utiliies face as many outages as overhead
utilities, one of the primary benefits of placing new or existing fines underground is that it
redi:ces the frequency of cutages caused by storms or hurricanes. It also reduces the risk of
the public coming in contact with live wires. On the other hand, undergrounding existing
overhead utilities is very expensive. Moreover, repairing underground lines is more difficult
than overhead lines because the underground damage may be difficult fo locate. Overhead
systems suffer outages when trees or debris blow into lines, and underground systems risk
outages when tree-root systems uproot cables each time trees topple above ground from
excessive wind, rain, or storm surges. Nonetheless, several municipalities require that new
distribution systems be underground. The FPSC and the Florida Legislature both

recommend undergrounding existing utilities, especially in areas located close to the coast.

D) MGRUF: Mechanism for Governmental Recovery of Underground Fees
1) MGRUF Tariff

The MGRUF tariff is an optional mechanism offered by FPL to municipalities or
counties in Florida that possess tax assessment authority."’ This mechanism allows local
governments to apply for this particular tariff and enter into the Underground Capital Cost
Recovery Contract with FPL.? The main advantage of this tariff is that it aliows for the
recovery of certain costs paid by or due from the local government to FPL in connection with
the conversion of utilities from overhead io underground service. The Underground Capital
Cost Recovery Contract must be approved by the FPSC, and must state the specific terms

and conditions for underground cost recovery. .

" FPL (Florida Power & Light Company) has implemented the MGRUF tariff as a mechanism for the government to
recover undergrounding fees. Please visit FPL's website to see the specific rules and regulations that apply to FPL's
MGRUF tariff. It should be noted that those rules and regulations are supplementary to the regulations governing services
by utilities issued by the Florida Public Service Commission.

™ See Section 14.0. Florida Power & Light Company website, hitp//www.fol.com/rates/pdffelectric tariff_section6.pdf.
4

Page 113



An Underground Assessment Area (UAA) is a defined geographic area with set
boundaries. Any local government interested in contracting with FPL will be required to
establish an UAA."® Customers located within these boundaries will benefit from the
underground conversion project. After an UAA has been successfully established, a
governmental undergrounding fee will be added to the bills of those customers located within
the boundaries of the UAA.

2) Target Annual Payment & Actual Annual Payment

The governmental undergrounding fee serves as a recovery mechanism for local
governments interested in converting their overhead utilities. All customers jocated within the
UAA will receive a monthly governmental undergrounding fee which will be billed by FPL
directly to them." That undergrounding fee is intended to produce a Target Annual Payment
to the local government. The formula employed to calculate the Target Annual Payment is:
[(FC + GC + BC) x i, divided by 1 - (1/(1+)")]. in other words, FPL muitiplies the sum of a:
(a) Facility Charge, (b) Governmental Cost, and (c} Billing Charge by the interest rate on the
bonds or other financial instruments used by the local government to finance (a), (b), and (c).
The formula then requires the previously calculated amount to be divided by 1 — (1/(1+{)").

The total result obtained with that formuia helps FPL to evaluate an amount to be
recovered through the governmental undergrounding fee which is added to the bills of all
customers located within the specific UAA. The ‘facility charge’ includes all amounts payable
to FPL in connection with the conversion of the utilities. The ‘governmental cost’ consists of

alt costs related to the undergrounding project, as well as the total cost charged by electrical

" 1d., An UAA may consist of all or any contiguous portion of the area within the local government’s corporate limits, and
may overiap all or portions of other UA areas that have previously been established by the local government.
" This fee is assessed as a percent of total electric revenues, and will be subject to the terms of the applicable Underground

Capital Cost Recovery Contract.
® The letter “»”" is equal to the number of years over which (a), (b) and (c) are to be recovered by the local government, and

this shall not exceed a maximum of twenty (20) years,
® The letter “n” is equal to the number of years over which (a}, (b) and (c) are to be recovered by the local government, and

this shall not exceed a maximum of twenty (20) years.
5

Page 114



contracters hired by the local government fo convert facilities to receive underground service.
Finally, the ‘billing charge’is equal to $50,000 or 10% of the facility charge, whichever is iess.

This fee must not exceed the lesser of (1) 15% of the customer’s total net electric
charges, or (2) a maximumn monthly amount of $30 for each residential customer and $50 for
every 5,000 kWh of consumption for each non-residential customer. It is important to note
that only those amounts that have been actually collected through the governmental
undergrounding fee will be remitted by FPL to the local government. The amount that is
remitted to the local government is referred to as the Acfual Annual Payment, and is sent
within sixty (60) calendar days foliowing the conclusion of each calendar year."

3} Notice and Public Records

A niotice must be mailed by the iocal government to all customers located within the
propose& UAA region."® Such notice shall state the intention to recover the cost of the
underground conversion project through a governmental undergrounding fee on each
customer’s electric bill. Customers must receive this notice at least ninety (80) days before
the execution of the Underground Capital Cost Recovery Contract pursuant to the MGRUF
tariff. Additionally, once the governmental undergrounding fee is approved by the local
government, notice must be filed in the public records. "
E) “Coastal Barriers Infrastructure Finance Act”

This Act will take effect on July 1, 2012, and will allow registered electors of a coastal
barrier region to create a financing district to plan and pay for the construction of underground

utilittes — by means of a petition followed by a referendum.'® Once this Act becomes

'3 See FPL website for further terms and conditions regarding the Actual Annual Payment.

* 1.ocal governments are required to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws when establishing an UAA,
and imposing the govemmental undergrounding fee.

' See FPL website for a Jist of instances when FPL may withhold the application of the MGRUF tariff. Some of this
include: in instances when FPL estimates that the Annual Target Payment would exceed 15% of the net electric charge
from customers within the UAA, or if the local government does not comply with the terms and conditions of this tariff.

"See The Florida Senate wehrite, hitp://fisenate gov/Session/Bill/2012/0466/Bill Text/c I/HTML.
6

Page 1 15



effective, chapter 163 of the Florida Statutes will provide the governance for the
establishment, operation, and regulation of these intergovernmental programs.

The authority controlling the financing district will be the local governing body of such
designated region. The goveming authority shall be vested with certain important powers,
such as the power to invest and borrow money. Proceeds are intended to be generated
through a tax increment, which will be held by a local trust fund. Some exemptions from the
tax do exist and will be detailed below.

The Florida Legisiature expressly declares in section 163.72(3) of the statutes that
“underground utilities provide a delivery system for utility services which is safer and more
reliable than overhead facilities during and after severe storm and weather events to which
coastal barriers are often exposed.” To achieve that end, the Legislature provides local
governments with an alternative mechanism for financing, installation, and operation of utility
systems serving coastal barrier communities. It is evident that the Legislature intends to
protect Florida’s communities, and coastal barrier resources.

1) Coastal Barrier infrastructure-Financing District

As of July 1, 2012, coastal barrier infrastructure-financing districts shall be created by
an ordinance by the governing body of a county or municipality.’® An infrastructure-financing
district can cover any geographic area within a coastal barrier system designated by the
governing body of a local government for infrastructure financing and construction.®® The
governing authority of a district will need to possess powers that will authorize it to levy an ad

valorem tax increment to help finance the underground conversion project.

* See §163.74(3}, Florida Statutes, stating that after a simple majority of the electors voting in the referendum election
approve the question submitted for referendum, the governing authority of the local government may create a financing
district by ordinance.

 See §163.76, Florida Statutes, a “coastal barrier™ means a coasts] barrier island or other coastal feature consisting of a
beach, or related features located within a coastal building zone, as those terms are defined in §161.54 of the statutes.

7
Page 116



A referendum election will be conducted where if a simple majority of the registered
electors voting in the election approve the question submitted for referendum, the local
government will be permitted to create a financing district? After the financing district has
been successfully created, the govemning body of the local government will be required to
adopt an infrastructure-financing plan. That plan is to be adopted within six (6) months after
the county or municipality creates the financing district.

Each of these financing districts is to be governed by a coastal barrier infrastructure-
financing authority which will have power to: execute contracts, plan and carry out approved
coastal barrier infrastructure projects, invest finance funds, borrow money, make surveys,
adopt or amend any coastal barrier infrastructure finance plan, and make all necessary
expenditures.® The term ‘infrastructure’ includes any of the following activities: the
construction, reconstruction or improvement of electrical, telephone, cable, and other utility
services delivered to a community by wire or cable, and any related iand acquisition,
planning, design, engineering, and administrative costs.?

2) Referendum

Registered electors who are residents within the coastal barrier are allowed to pefition
the governing body of the county or municipality to conduct a referendum on whether an
infrastructure-financing district should be created, for the purpose of financing and
constructing underground utilities.?® There is a particular procedure that must be followed
when registered electors petition for a financing district. The referendum will be conducted

on the question of whether a financing district should be established.

21 I d.

8 goe $163.76, Florida Statutes, with regards to what details must be included in the Coastal Barrier Infrastructure Plan.
B See §163.75, Florida Statutes, for further detailed description.

* See §$163.73, Florida Statutes, for other definitions.

B See §163.74. Florida Statutes, regarding the mandatory referendum for establishing a financing district.

8
Page 117



Section 163.74 of the Fiorida statutes describes the question that must be included in
the referendum. The question must say: “Shall the -..goveming board of (..County or
Municipaiity...) create an infrastructure financing district within the following legally described
area for the purpose of providing a tax increment mechanism to finance and construct an
underground utility infrastructure?” The question need be asked in that form, and must be
followed by the words “yes” and “no.” If the question is approved by a simpie majority of the
electors voting in the referendum election, the governing authority of the local government
may create the financing district by ordinance.

Notice must be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the area proposed
for the establishment of the financing district. The legal description and map of the coastal
barrier proposed for designation as an infrastructure-financing district shall be informed of as
well. The referendum may be conducted via mail, énd must be conducted within 120 days
after the governing body has verified that 10 percent of the electors have signed the petition.

3) Coastal Barrier Infrastructure Plan

A coastal barrier infrastructure plan must be established within six (6) months after an
infrastmcture—ﬁnanéing district has been created. These infrastructure plans must contain
specific information such as: an inventory and survey of all utility infrastructure is preéently
located above ground within the designated coastal barrier, and all necessary rights-of-way
and property needed for the construction of a system of underground utilities within the
barrier. Finally, an engineering design for a system of underground utility facilities within the

barrier must be included in the infrastructure plan as well.?®

¥ See §163.76, Florida Statutes, describing the creation of the coastal barrier infrastructure plan.
9

Page 118



4) Local Trust Fund

According to the Act, local governments will be required to establish a local trust fund
for the purpose of holding the funds that the infrastructure-financing district collects.?
Accordingly, the local trust fund is to be funded with the proceeds collected from the ad
valorem tax increment levied each year within the designated coastal barrier district by the
taxing authorities. The fund needs fo be funded continually while the project is in effect, or
until all debts incurred to finance the project are no longer outstanding, whichever occurs
later. The proceeds coflected within the financing district must be a minimum of 75% of the
difference between (a) the amount of ad valorem tax collected each year by each taxing
authority, and (b) the amount of ad valorem taxes which would have been produced by the

rate upon which the tax is levied each year by or for each taxing authority. 28

5) Exemptions & Dissolution

Once the Act is in effect, section 163.78 of the Florida statutes will detail some of the
public bedies or taxing authorities that are exempt from the effects of this Act. These include;
special districts that collect ad valorem taxes on real property in more than one county,
metropolitan transportation authorities, neighborhood improvement districts, community
redeveiopment agencies, library districts, or water management districts, among others.

The Legislature has also provided for the dissolution of these infrastructure-financing
districts upon the completion of the project's objectives.?® As such, section 163.79 states that
these financing districts are intended to be dissolved after all the coastal barrier infrastructure
projects have been completed. If it happens that assets and fiabilities remain, these shall be

transferred to the county or municipality within which the financing district is located.

¥ See §163.77, Florida Statutes, for details discussing how a local trust fund can be properly established.

* Id, regarding the possible methods of funding a local trust fund,
* See §163.79, Florida Statutes, with regards to the dissolution of infrastructure-financing districts,

10
Page 119



F} Supplementary Law

Chapter 170 of the Florida statutes also authorizes the governing authority of any
municipality to levy special assessments on benefited real property.3® This specifically
means that municipaliies can pay for the relocation of utilities, and this covers the
undergrounding of utilities such as cable, telephone and electrical services. Special

assessments may be collected directly from the local government that is imposing the

assessment.

il. CONCLUSION

Converting overhead utiiities to underground services is not a quick task. As the trend
continues towards relocating. currently existing overhead lines to the underground,
Infrastructure-Financing Districts  will help local governments finance undergrounding
projects, and contribute to conserve energy systems while protecting the welfare of the state.
After these districts are successfully implemented, utilities will hopefully be better protected
against the perils from hurricanes, wind storms, and storm surges. Regardless, due to the
high costs of converting utilities, and the possible disadvantages from having utilities hidden
below the ground, questions wiil remain as to which alternative is most appropriate in states

that frequently run the risk of suffering extreme weather conditions.

¥ See §170.01(1)(d), Fiorida Statutes, for further details regarding special assessments,
1

Page 120



Attachment w2v

Town of Surfside
Commission Commumnication

Agenda Item #: 9F

egen

:Subject: FPL Undergrounding Status Report

Background: One of the many things this Town Manager has learned about the decision making
process in Swiside is that major projects orily become a-reality through small incremental steps. A
prnieexample is the Community Center. When'T was first hired in September 2010 this project was
moribund, behind schedule-and clearly did not have enough usable space to meetthe expectations of
the Town Commission atid thecommunity. Decisions were made to adjust the schedule, add the “fish
bowl”, move the mountain of stored fill, estiblish & maximum budget; set-an-opening date and
delegate change order approval 1o the Town Manager within the maximum budget. These decisions
were made incrementally and the project was completed on Hime and within budget.

The same process occurred with the water/sewer/storm drainsge project. This project was also
moribund. Theonly prior accomplishment was to setrates to fund the-project. Many in the
community did nottrust the Staff to be able to implement the project based-on the difficult earlier
experience with the Community Center. Again, the Town Commissionmade decisions on an
incremental basis. The consultant OGA was authorized to finish the design and preparethe bid
documents; A list ofpre-qualified contractors was approved and hids were received, Atop flight
Citizens Advisory Committee was established. Adetermination was made to obtain prices for additive
alternates such as traffic calming, street signs and street frees. The decision was alse made to hold off
on awarding these dtems until the basic scope of work cost was known. In a similar manner, the Town
Maznager was given authority to {inish the project within a masgimum bodpet. Finaricing and parfial
refinancing decisions wereamade along the way and Staff is committed that we will finish this project
{nearly-five-dimes the-dollar value of the Community Center) within the final budget and on time:

Analysis: The Administration believes that fhe success of the first two capital projects provides many
“lessons learned” for the undergrounding project. First, the decisions have been made incrementally
and should continue to be, Wore than 2 vear ago, the Town Commission decided to spend $360,000 to
provide conduit for future undergrounding of the electric, cable TV, telephone and fiber optic systems
aswell as to authorize FPL to prepare a study of the cost to underground their system. A report to the
Town Cormmmission on the November 13, 2012 agenda delivered the FPL report and we are pleased to
letyou know that FPL has lowered their estimated price to $4,193,588 from the $6,454,822 thebased
onthe Town's ability to manage the project using FPL approved contractors. We are dlso meeting

with senior representativés of Atfantic Broadband and ATET later this week 1o determine if theviwill

absorb the cost of their undergrounding. This will beknown priorto next month’s Town Commission
meeting. There will be many other decisions to make before the final “go,no go™ decision needs 1o be
made. . :




What Are We Asking You To Do This Month? The only decisions we are asking you to make this
month is to authorize a public information campaign to occur in January, 2013 and to establish 2
Citizens Advisory Committee for this project. Staff proposes five meetings. Three would be in the
single family neighborhood using the boundaries used for the three phase water/sewer/storm drainage
project. Two additional meetings would be held for the downtown businesses/owners and the
condominium residents along Collins/Harding Avenues. We would advertise the meetings in a variety
of media and televise the meetings. The Town Commission is encouraged to attend the meetings,
however, minutes will be taken for your review before making a final decision. The Citizens Advisory
Committee will be fully briefed as the similar committees have been for the water/sewer/storm
drainage project and the parking structure feasibility study.

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs): The Administration is in the process of preparing a list of
more than 25 FAQs. These range from defining the project scope to how it will be funded. By way of
information, we found 19 homes in the single family neighborhood where the water service was not
properly grounded and fixed the problem as part of absorbing the cost to tie into the new system.

There may be as many as 100 homes that need to upgrade their electric service. Staff will prepare a
program to help residents that need to upgrade their electric service. There will also be a compilation

of studies done by experts that are both pro and con.

Summary: This Town Commission and your Administration has performed very well on the two
major infrastructure projects (Community Center and water/sewer/storm drainage). Collectively we
are fully able to do it again if decisions continue to be made on an incremental basis. As you consider
the decision to authorize a public information program, please remember that the major elements of
this project are aligning in a positive way that is rarely seen in local government infrastructure
projects. The team is in place to implement this with Finance Director Donald Nelson, Financial
Advisor Sergio Masvidal and Bond Counsel JoLinda Herring, Public Works Director Bill Evans and
Project Manager Randy Stokes. Borrowing rates are very low on the order of 2 — 2.5 percent.
Construction costs are also very low. Finally, there is much support in Town for this project and yon
will have the opportunity to assess citizen input as the result of five public meetings.

Schedule: Per the requirements of FPL it will be necessary to make a final decision and provide
funding before the end of April, 2013. There may be an ability to achieve a very limited extension
under certain circumstances. Representatives of FPL will be in attendance during the December 11,
2012 Town Commission meeting 8:00 p.mn. time certain Agenda Item 9F for this project.

[
Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager ill Evans, Public Works Director



ATTachnmentct "3A"

Dawn Hunziker

From: Michael Karukin

Sent: Tuesday, January 08, 2013 3:24 PM

To: Roger Carlton; Bill Evans

Subject: Undergrounding Project - Surfsidde Florida

Attachments: PURC Undergrounding Phase 1 Report Exec Summ.pdf; PURC Undergrounding Phase 2

Report Exec Summ.pdf, PURC Ungergrounding report 3 execsumm.pdf; PURC comment
about funding of undergrounding research 11-13-2012.pdf; Storm Hardening Paper.pdf

This email has 5 attachments related to the the undergrounding project:

= 3 executive summaries from PURC reports;
e a statement from PURC about funding and the review process
e Copy of an article on undergrounding

Background

1) Last year I heard a story about this topic on NPR. It is only 4 mintutes and 28 seconds. Please fisten.
http://www.npr.org/2011/08/29/140042767 /would-burying-power-lines-reduce-power-outages

2) The research is summarized in reports found at http://warrington.ufl.edu/centers/purc/research/energy.asp under the

heading “Research in Electricity Infrastructure Hardening”.

3) Here's a quote from the article that got my attention:

"the relocation of power fines does not really eliminate the risk of storm-related damage, it simply reduces the potential
damage from wind and increases the potential damage from storm surge and flooding.” (page 68, Holt, Lynne, and
Theodore Kury. 2011, "Florida’s Storm Hardening Effort: A New Paradigm for State Uity Requlators” The Electricity

Joumnal, 24(4):62-71.

hitp://warrington.ufl.edu/purc/purcdocs, ers/1109 ab_Holt Florida Storm Hardening.pdf

4) I attached the executive summaries from the phase 1, 2, and 3 reports from Public Utility Research Center at the
University of Florida . The executive summary of each is not long (report 1 is 4 pages; report 2 is 1 page; and report 3

is 6 pages).

5} Below is a List of potential benefits and list of potential disadvantages taken from the executive summary of
report 1, page 3 and 4.

Potential Benefits

Improved aesthetics

lower tree trimming costs

lower storm damage and restoration costs

fewer motor vehicle accidents

reduced live wire contact

fewer outages during normal weather

far fewer momentary interruptions

improved utility relations regarding tree trimming
Frrreme ~domembeevaeirnnacting sidewalks

e & B & & & & @ @

Page 123 :



_ Potential Disadvantages

Stranded asset costs for existing overhead lines
Longer duration interruption and more customers impacted per outage

Susceptibility to flooding, storm surges, and damage during post-storm cleanup
Reduced life expectancy

Higher maintenance and operating costs (FPL said this is not a town cost - need to confirm)
Higher costs for new data bandwidth

€ 2 2 #» & 8

6) The reports were funded by the following companies (See attached for statement about funding and review process).

Florida Power & Light Company

Florida Public Utilities Company
Progress Energy Florida, Inc.

Fiorida Municipal Electric Association
Tampa Electric Company

Florida Electric Cooperatives Association
Guif Power Company

Lee County Electric Cooperative, Inc,

* & & © & * * @

Thank you,

Michael Karukin, PA., PhD.
Vice Mayor

Town of Surfside

9293 Harding Ave

Surfside, FL 33154

Tel: (305) 861-4863 / Fax: {305) 993-5097 / Cell: (305) 710-5894

Email: mkarukin@ownofsurfsidef] gov

www.townofsurfsidefl.cov

Page 124 ’



Lynne Holt is a policy analyst with the
Public Utility Research Center at the
University of Florida, where she
researches and writes on a variety of
regulatory policy issues. Her other center
affiliations at the University of Florida
include Assistant Director for the Reubin
O'D. Askew Institute and research
analyst for the Bureau of Economic and
Business Resenrch. Dr. Holt has more
than 31 years of experience in public
policy formulation and research. Her
areas of expertise include public utility
regulatory policy and policy issues
related to education, health reform, tax,
budget analysis, and econontic
development. Dr. Holt received a Ph.D.
and M.A. from Harvard University, an
M.P.A. from the University of Kansas,
and a B.A. from Douglass College,
Rutgers University. She can be reached
at lynne holt@warrington.ufl.edu.

Thecdore ). Kury is the Director of
Energy Studies at the Public Utility
Research Center at the University of

Florida. He is respomsible for promoting
research and outreach activities in energy
regulation and policy. His current
research interests include the economic
and developmental impacts of
environmental and energy policy. He
holds B.A. and M.A. degrees in
Economics from the State University of
New York at Buffalo. He can be reached
at ted kury@warrington.ufl.edu.

The authors thank Mary Galligan,

- Senior Fellow at the Public Utility
Research Center at the Linfversity of
Florida, for her thorough review and
helpful edits. The authors also thank
Sanford Berg, Megan Silbert, and the
participants at the 8" Organisation of
Caribbean Utility Regulators (OOCUR)
Annual Conference for their heipful
comments on a much earlier version of
this article.

h

Florida’s Storm Hardening
Effort: A New Paradigm for
State Utility Regulators

Following several hurricanes in 2004 and 2005, the
Florida Public Service Commission initiated a multi-
year process that emphasized both collaboration and
research and resulted in expanded requirements for
utility accountability. An alternative approach was
recommended by Joshua Rokach in a recent article in
this journal. Regardless of the regulatory process
selected, policy questions remain as to the best way to
proceed.

Lynne Holt and Theodore K. Kury

I. Introduction struck Haiti, Cuba, and finally
made landfall in Louisiana.

The winter of 2008-09 was he National Oceanic and
brutal for many communities. Atmospheric Association
Severe winter storms were (NOAA) collects data for
reported in such diverse places as | property damage by each type of
Las Vegas, South Mississippi, event by year. NOAA also collects
Kentucky, and Louisiana. Severe | estimates of property damage
summer storms were likewise associated with weather events
reported in 2008. For example, in | which will vary from year to year.
August 2008, Tropical Storm Faye | Examples of property damage in
made landfall three times in the U.S. resulting from ice-related
Florida and Hurricane Gustav events and hurricanes in 2008 and

62 mpwéeefwtter © 2011 Elsevier Inc. All rights reserved.,, doi:/10.1016/}.tej.2011.04.002  The Electricity Journal



2009 illustrate that point. For ice-
related events, property damage
totaled almost $1.2 billion in 2009,
but far less — $104 million - in
2008." For hurricanes, the more
treacherous year of the two was
2008 for which more than $7.1
billion in hurricane-related
property damages was reported.
In 2009, by contrast, estimated
damages from hurricanes totaled
less than $1 million.

hose NOAA estimates

include both insured and
uninsured economic Josses.
Insured property losses may be
easier to quantify because one can
retrieve reports from insurance
agencies. Much harder to quantify
are ancillary losses such as those
resulting from interruptions in
electrical service that may not
always be recovered from
insurance. Ancillary losses tend to
grow exponentially as an electric
outage persists. An outage that
persists for an hour or two may
not result in ancillary losses.
However, if it persists for hours or
days, residential customers and
businesses may lose perishable
items through spoilage.
Customers may incur expenses
for the purchase of necessities
such as batteries or potable water.
Businesses may be forced to
suspend operations and furiough
their workers who, in furn, may
suffer an interruption in their
income. Customers with access to
on-site generation will incur fuel
expenses in order to run their
generators. Although its estimate
includes caveats, Lawrence
Berkeley National Lab
defermined in 2005 an annual cost

L

to U.S. consumers and businesses
of $80 billion for both momentary
and sustained (five minutes or
more} power outages. The Lab’s
estimate attempts to capture the
value customers place on outages
which could capture ancillary
losses, in addition to more easily
quantifiable metrics. Of the
estimated $80 billion in losses,
sustained outages were
responsible for a total of $26
billion at the time.?

The Lab’s estimate
attempts to capture the
value customers place

on outages which could

capture ancillary losses,
in addition to more
easily quantifiable
metrics.

I n the aftermath of any storm
event, there are inevitable
questions. Customers ask why
damage occurred and what, if
anything, could have been done
to prevent or reduce it. Customers
and utilities seek means of better
mitigating the effects of storm
events in the future. Efforts to
prepare for and prevent storm
damage may either result from
studies initiated by utilities or by
public service commissions.
Sometimes they result from a
combination of both.

The purpose of this article is to
describe a multi-year process that
involved collaboration among
eleciric utilities, the public service

commission, and research
institutions to improve
preparations for future storms
using Florida as a case study.
Although Florida’s storm
hardening initiative focused on
hurricanes, the same process
could easily apply to other types
of weather events such as ice
storms, high winds, and
thunderstorms. Moreover, the
policy questions raised from the
Florida case study would likewise
apply to other types of storm
hardening investigations.

II. The Call to Action in
Florida

The impetus for regulatory
action on Florida’s storm
hardening initiatives was a set of
hurricanes that swept through the
state in 200405, causing massive
property damage and power
outages in their wake. Table 1
displays the damage and outage
impacts of the 2004 and 2005
hurricanes. The total financial
impact of customer power
outages attributable to the 2004
hurricanes was $10.2 million. The
cost of power outages in 2005
totaled $5.3 million.

Hurricane Andrew in 1892,
which caused property damage
totaling around $20 billion, was
the most damaging hurricane to
hit Florida before the 200405
hurricane seasons. Even before
Andrew, it became clear that
Florida lacked the resources and
capability to respond adequately
to a major disaster. Former Gov.
Lawton Chiles appointed the




0
Table 1: Statewide Impact of 2004 and 2005 Hurricanes.
Charley

Frances lvan

Jeanne Dennis Katrina Rita Wiima
Hurricane {2004} {2004) (2004) {2004) (2005) (2005) {2005) {2005)
Category 4 2 3 3 3 2 2 3
Insured Damages®  $6.8 billion  $4.1 billion ~ $3.8 billion  $2.8 billion  $640 million  $468 million  $23 million  $6.1 billien
Customer $1.8 milion $4.5 million $400,000  $3.5 million  $500,000 $1.2 million  $24,800 $3.6 million
Power Outages

:&numes: Florida Oivislon of Emergency Management, Hurricane Imgact Reporl, A Summary, November 2004; and Draft Huricane Report, Mar. 19, 2007
Insured damages include all insured preperty damages from the general public, including hemes and businesses, as wall as electric utility claims for insured facilities, such as
power plants and office buildings. Not included is damage to investor-owned electric utility transmission and distribution facifities.

Governor’s Disaster Planning and
Response Committee to
recommend measures to improve
state responsiveness to disasters.
The Committee made 94
recommendations to the
legislature, most of which were
enacted in 1993.* One of those
measures established a state tax-
exempt trust fund, the Florida
Hurricane Catastrophe Fund.
This fund reimburses or reinsures
insurers for a portion of their
losses from hurricane damage to
residential property. Also prior to
Andrew, the governor’s office
began hosting a hurricane
conference each May to offer
training sessions to first
responders and an opportunity
for themn to share “best practices.”
The conference scheduled for
May 2011 will represent the 25
such event. The Florida
Legislative Office of Program
Policy Analysis and
Governmental Accountability
(OPPAGA) - the legislature’s
oversight body - provides
analysis and recommendations
related to government agency
operations and performance.
OPPAGA issued a report in 1996
and a follow-up report in 1997
that.er~r=i=~" *+- —~-* disagter

mitigation plans of local
g0vernments.5
I n January 2006, utility
regulatory oversight in Florida
became, and it continues to be, a
critical part of the statewide effort
to develop policies and oversight
mechanisms necessary to improve
planning for and responses to
hurricanes and other major
disaster events. The Florida Public
Service Commission (FPSC)
adopted various measures,
outlined below, to improve utility
Planning and response o
disasters. FHowever, it has not been
the only state regulatory
commission to do so. As was noted
in a recent article on infrastructure
hardening, regulators in North
Carolina and South Carolina also
initiated reviews of utility
preparedness in the aftermath of
severe ice storms.® As discussed
below in the conclusion, the
Maryland Public Service
Commission is in the process of
investigating the reliability and
quality of service provided by the
Potomac Electric Power Company
(Pepco) in the aftermath of severe
summer storms in 2010. What
makes the Florida case study
unique is that the docket for storm
preparedness planning has

spanned several years and is
multi-faceted. It also has involved
the active engagement of research
institutions.

III. The Florida Public
Service Commission’s
Actions

State public service
commissions can use a variety of
tools to compel utility action
ranging from commission orders
and rulemaking procedures to
more bottom-up approaches such
as staff workshops and
collaborative research. The FPSC
elected to use a mix of strategies.
The FPSC issued orders and
promulgated rules to establish the
policy framework and expected
outcomes but also authorized
staff workshops and research to
propel utility activity toward its
prescribed goals. Following a staff
workshop in January 2006, an
internal meeting held on Feb. 27,
2006, set the framework for how
the FPSC planned to proceed. The
FPSC’s order of April 25, 2006,
subsequently outlined the
expectations for the storm
preparedness plans that the
Florida electric utilities were

64 104'55tyéesf217uatter © 2011 Elsevier Inc. All rights reserved., doi:/10.1016/j.t¢j.2011.04.002  The Electricity Journal




required to file. These plans are
the core of the FPSC’s overall
initiative to improve utility
planning for and responsiveness
to future storms. The FPSC docket
requiring the plans has remained
open under what is known as a

“consummating order” that was
issued on May 23, 2006.” The
decision to keep that docket open
suggests that the FPSC views the
utility planning process as
ongoing and subject to
modification as needed.

Table 2: Florida Public Service Commission’s Actions toward Strengthening Storm Hardening

ost of the actions taken by

the FPSC to strengthen
utility storm preparedness and
planning occurred in 2006 and
2007 and several of the most
significant actions are outlined in
Table 2.

Date Action

Brief Summary

Held staff workshop involving
state and local government

issued order fo require each
investor-owned utflity to
file storm preparedness

implementation costs for
10 initiatives. The plans
must be filed on or before

Florida electric utilities

Jan. 23, 2006
officials, independent
technical experts, and

Fab. 27, 2008 Convened internal Affairs
meeting

Feb. 27, 2006 Issued order

Aprit 25, 2006
plans and estimated
June 1, 2006.

July 31, 2006 Adopted riles

humicanes

» Discussed damage to electric utility facilities
» Explored ways of mitigating future storm damage and outages

o Heard staff recommended actions
» Heard comments from other entities on staff proposal
o Amended staff proposa! and decided to
- Require all Fiorida electric utifities, including municipal utilities and
cooperatives, to provide a 2006 hurricane preparedness briefing
-Require each investor-owned electric utility to file storm preparedness
plans and provide implementation costs
-Irdtiate rulemaking on distribution construction standards
~fritiate rulemaking to identify areas and clrcumstances where
distribution facilities must be constructed underground
Re: Each electric investor-owned utility to implement B-year pole inspection
cycie; requiring reports to be filed with the Division of Economic
Regulation, FPSC, by Mar. 1 of each year
The initiatives in the storm preparetness plans must include:
o A three-year vegetation management cycle for distribution circuits
» An gudit of jeint-use attachment agreements
* A six-year fransmission structure inspection program
« Hardening of existing transmission structures
* A transmission and distribution Geographical Information System
e Post-storm data collection and forensic analysis
» Collection of detailed outage data differentiating between the reliability
perfermance of overhead and underground systems
= Increased utility coordination with focal governments
» Collaborative research on effects of hurricane winds and storm surge
» A natural disaster preparedness and recovery program
Re: Revisions fo requirements for annusl distribution service refiability report
filed by electric utilities to include exireme weather events such as

May igﬂ, Vol. zglliﬁz; 1040-6190/$~see front matter © 2011 Elsevier Inc. Al rights reserved., doi:/10.1016/j.tej.2011.04002 65

age




Table 2 (Continuer)

Date

Action

Brief Summary

Aug. 7, 2006 (Verizon)
Nov. 13, 2006 {Embarg)
Jan. 15, 2010 (AT&T)
Sept. 18, 2006

Oct. 30, 2006

issued order

Nov, 23, 2006
hearing

Jan. 18, 2007
{@amended Jan. 17, 2007)

Issued orders fallowing
informal meeting and staff
recommendations

Held informal waorkshop

Adopted rules following

Adopted rules following two
fule devefopment
waorkshops, orders noticing
tulemaking and procedure,
ang several hearings.

Re: Local exchange telecommunications companies to implement 10-year
woaden pole inspection program

Re: Review of all electric utility woaden pole inspection programs

Re: Al reports pertaining fo utilities’ refiability performance, inciuding pole

inspection data, storm hardening data, metrics for each storm hardening
initiative, and annual reports on distribution service relfabifity

cooperatives,

Re: Standards of construction - municipal electric utilities and rural electric

Re: Placement of new electric distribution faciliies underground, and
conversion of existing overhead distribution facilities to underground
facilities, to address effects of extreme weather events and overhead
electric facilities o aliow more stringent construction standards than
required by National Electric Safety Code

IV. Collection and
Analysis of Qutage Data

The FPSC understood the
importance of data collection and
analysis for both oversight and
planning and developed a
framework for grounding
regulatory and utility decision-
making on evidence-based
findings. To improve regulatory
analysis, the FPSC initiated a
rulemaking proceeding in 2006 to
amend utility data collection and
reporting requirements. Prior to
the 2004 and 2005 hurricanes,
Florida's investor-owned electric
utilities were required to report
annually information that was
used to assess distribution service
reliability and changes in quality
of service. Qutage information
has been and continues to be part
of the electric utilities’ annual
reliability reports to the FPSC.
However, the outage data
report-- T =ten wmidl the

rules were amended in 2006 after
the 2004 and 2005 hurricanes,
excluded storm events such as
hurricanes. Exclusions of this sort
made the data far less useful in
the context of storm
preparedness. FPSC staff noted
that ““the amount of 2004
hurricane outage data that has
been excluded has been so great
that it represents up to 98 percent
of outage data. Reports excluding
hurricane outage data offer little
information about the level of
reliability experienced by utility
customers.””®

he FPSC rulemaking process

on distribution service
reliability involved a staff
rulemaking workshop which was
attended by representatives of
each investor-owned electric
utility, the Florida Electric
Cooperatives Association, and the
Office of Public Counsel.
Following the workshop and
associated testimony, the FPSC

issued an order with its amended
rule. Now each investor-owned
utility must keep the records and
data supporting its annual report
for a minimum of 10 years. This
10-year period is based upon the
maximum inspection cycle of
distribution facilities that are
implemented by the investor-
owned utilities.

Investor-owned utilities are
also required to report both raw
and adjusted data (excluding
major storm events) so that the
FPSC is better positioned to
analyze changes in performance
that may indicate a need for
further work.? Not only can the
data be used to gauge year-to-
year comparisons but they can
also be used to compare reliability
among Florida electric utilities.
The use of audits looms large if an
observed pattern in reliability
performance and a reported trend
in customer complaints would

justify it.

66 mmamﬁls-see fropt r © 2011 Eisevier Inc. All rights reserved., doi:/10.1016/j.tej.2011.04.002 The Electricity Journal
age 129 | -




|
|

|
!
[
!
;
|
|

V. Utility Plans

Not only do regulators benefit
from improved data collection
and analysis, but so do utilities in
developing their own plans for
responding to storm events and
assessing the impacts of such
events. Florida's utilities are
required to include updated
information on their storm
hardening activities in the
same document in which they
report their annual reliability
data. The FPSC reviews the
utilities” annual reports and
then issues a report with its
findings. '

1 1 the initial stages of the

& storm hardening initiative, the
FPSC seemed to recognize the
difficulty of determining what
data would be needed to

inform utility investments in
storm hardening. It aiso

was not always clear how best to
gather the data. The sharing of
best practices and efforts
involving data collection and
analysis often require
collaborative research that

may be best achieved in
non-adversarial settings

with the active participation of
research instittitions. Of the 10
measures to be addressed in
utility plans, as outlined in the
FPSC’s order of April 25, 2006, at
least four ~ vegetation
management, data collection to
inform undergrounding
decisions, data collection on the
effects of wind and storm surge,
and post-storm data collection
and forensic analysis - seemed to
fit in fhat rateonrs

f to develop storm implementation
pians, the FPSC noted the |

i

'

Lt quickly became clear that there
1 were other research applications
i for whick collaborative efforts

In its order {(April 25, 2006}
Tequiring investor-owned utilities

Importarice of g centrally
coordinated research and
development effort: .}
J

1

|

Florids would be better served by
consolidating utility resources f
through a centrally coordinated ;

research and development effort
with universities as well as
research organizations. The pur-
pose of such effort would be to
further the development of starm j
resifient electric utility infrastrue- #
ture and techzmk)g.ies that reduce i
stonn restoration costs ang ;
ouages to customers, ! '

The investor-owned utilities
were required to establish a plan
to increase collaborative research,
solicit participation from
municipal utilities and rural
electric cooperatives, and
participate in funding the
research effort. Although the
FPSC's suggestion for
collaboration in the April 2006
order applied specifically to
research on the effects of
hurricane winds and storm surge,

made good sense.

he Public Utility Research

Center (PURCS at the
University of Florida emerged ag
a suitable academic institution to
facilitate and contribute to the
research effort that would inform
utility storm hardening plans. To
formalize the collabora tive effort,
the investor-owned utilities

- Joined forces with Florida’s

municipal utilities and rural
electric cooperatives to form a
steering committee. That
committee entered into a
memorandum of undérstanding
with PURC. Under PLRC’s
auspices, progress was made
on three general fronts:
vegetation management, data
collection and the evaluation of

hurricane wind effects, and

development of a model to assess
the costs and benefits of
und.ergmunding infrastruciure
investments. Surnmaries of the
outcome of the joint effort with
PURC follow.

A. Vegetation management

Vegetation management
techniques are applied to
mitigate the effects that trees and
other growth can have on
overhead power lines,
transformers, and other facilities
of the utility infrastructure.
These mitigation strategies are
particularly useful during wind
storms, when flying debris poses
additional hazards to property.
The FPSC's April 25, 2006, order

e e e

i

May 200 24 Tecg 056 9{_),./ $-seefrontmatter i3 2017 Elsovier Inc. Al righis reserved., dob/ 101016/ LR I0TL04.002
g A s

67



| noted that “the vegetation

- management practices of the
| investor-owned electric utilities |
do not provide adequate
assurance that tree clearances for l
overhead distribution facilities g

are being maintained in a
manner that is likely to reduce
vegetation related storm
damage.”"* The order
recommiended that the utilities
develop more stringent
vegetation management
programs. PURC convened
workshops in March 2007 and
January 2009 to foster exchanges
among participants regarding
practices that could improve
vegetation management. In these
workshops, participants shared
ideas on: the frequency of tree
trimming {cften referred to as
cycles), trimming techniques,
policies to encourage public
participation and cooperation in
management programs, and
ways of promoting municipal
involverment at the local and state
level. Investor-owned utilities
are required to have three-year
trim eycie plans, and municipal
utilities and rural electric
cooperatives are reguired to
inciude information about their
| vegetation management efforts
in annual reports to the FP5C.

B. Hurricane wind effects

Storm hardening depends on
an understanding of wind
characteristics in severe storms
and the effects of strong winds
! under different weather
- conditions on électric utility

facilities. Twintvrmea nf data are

therefore involved. First, data
must be gathered for relevant
wind characteristics. Second,
data must be collected after
severe storms for forensic
analysis. To obtain data on wind
characteristics, PURC oversaw
research conducted at the
University of Florida's Civil and

Coastal Engineering Department |

and Weatherflow, a company that

monitors, maodels, and forecasts
wind for specific applications.
This collaborative research effort
promoted the deployment of 50
high-resolution wind monitoring
stations, some on property
provided by the utilities. These
stations allow for the ongoing
collection of data on wind
direction and speed,
temperature, and barometric
pressure.
T o develop capability for
forensic analysis of post-
storm wind data, PURC, in
cooperation with the participating
utilities, developed a uniform
forensics data-gathering system.
The post-storm data will be used
in confunction with the high-
resolution wind data collecied

i surge and flooding,

i are often used to shed light on

from the monitoring stations to
enable utilities to identify ;
locations where utility property is f
at relatively greater risk for ;
damage. Such areas could be
targeted for preventative |
maintenance, thereby improving |
reliability of the utility system.

C. Undergrounding model

The FPSC’s April 25, 2006,
order required the investor-
owned utilities to collect detailed
ottage data that differentiate
between the reliability
performance of overhead and
underground facilities. The data
are needed for consumers,
communities, and utilities to
consider storm hardening
options, including
undergrounding. Investments in
underground facilities come with
both costs and benefits, some of
which are difficult to guantify. For
example, the relocation of power
Lines does not really eliminate the |
risk of storm-related damage, it
simply reduces the potential
damage from wind and increases
the potential damage from storm

Understanding how this damage
distribution changes relative to
the costs to implement these
changes is crifical to decisions that |
provide benefits to the utility and
its customers. Economic models

costs and benefits. After
conducting survey research to
determine that a satisfactory
model did not exist, a consorfium |
of Florida's electric utilifies
contracted with PURC and

68: 1040+ 90;’.-._‘5:55353 -.Eﬁ,i ster €200 Elsevier Inc All tights reserved,, doi:/ 13 W6 f e

The Electricity Journal

04002




Quanta Technology to begin
development of a model. The
result of that collaboration was an
underground assessment model,
Since the model’s initial
construction, the utilities have
continued to work with PURC to
test, verify, and expand the
moadel’s capabilities.

he testing process convinced

the utility consortium thatit

was difficult to evaluate the
accuracy of damage estimates
resulting from an average
hurricane year, the common
denominator of the model.
Utilities tend to track damage on
an annual, or per storm, basis.
However, an average hurricane
vear in the state of Florida equates
to approximately (.79 storms and
therefore never actually occurs.
As a resulf, the damage results
coming from the initial Quanta
model, while useful for

performing comparative analyses

among utilities, did not
correspond to actual data on
utility damages. The utilities and
PURC subsequently concluded

thatit would beuseful to simulate

historical storms as a means of
assessing the plausibility of the
damage estimates produced by
the model. PURC refined the
model by adding the capability to
sirnulate historical storms, as well
as the capability to conduct
scenario analyses with the
existing storm data. The refined
model can therefore simulate, for
example, the effects of a
particular storm, such as

Hurricane Andrew, on a

particular project area. This
capabilitvis important for testing

the reasonableness of the mode!
results. While the damage for an
“average” storm year is an
important output metric from the
model, the fact remains that
utilities do not observe damage in
an average storm year, that is, a
year in which Floridais affected by
0.79 hurricanes. They only observe
damage data from particular
storms. The model can also

simulate the effects of a particular

type of storm, such as a Category 4
hurricane, on a given area of the
state.

V1. An Alternative
Approach

The Florida case study presents
the example of a process that
attempted to improve planning,
and decision making about costs
and benefits associated with
Investments in storm hardening

with the goal of preserving the

reliability of the power system. It
required extensive data gathering
and analysis, collaboration with
research Institufions, and
coordination with local

!

|
|

In his article, Rokach

governments. Additional data i
gathering and tmprovements to !
analytical tools, such as the .
undergrounding model described \
above, will result in even more |
improvements in the future.
A somewhat different
. approach to improving
storm preparedness was
recemmended in a Guest
Editorial (Rokach 2010) that
recently appeared in The
Electricity Jowrnal, "“What
Maryland Can Learn from
Mississippi.”’"* The context for
Rokach’s article was the |
following: In the wake of rain
storms accompanied by high [
winds, the Potomac Blectric |
J

i Power Company (Pepco)

reported three power outages in |
July and August 2010 thataffected !
a total of 470,000 custorners in
Maryland." Customers also !
complained about Pepco’s failure
to communicate while these ’
vutages were occurring, an !
apparent failure of the company’s |
automated communications |
system, The Maryland Public
Service Commission responded
by initiating an investigation in
the aftermath of the storms fo
assess the reliability and quality
of Pepco’s response.'”

Mr. Rokach was not a party to
the Pepco proceeding but offered
these insights as someone with
extensive Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission and !
energy-related legal experience. 1

i

recommended that the Maryland
Commission consider a broad

regulatory framework that would
include performance-based rates,

——

May i’;)g»g‘g ?,irfz & 1(1‘20’?6190 {'Si—see..i‘rpngrx_atigr € 2011 Elsevier Inc. Al rights reserved., doi:/10.1016/11e]l 201104002 6

73



improved customer
communications, informed
pricing decisions for hardening
investments, and more rigorous
reliability standards. He
suggested the performance-based
rate scheme that was used in
Mississippi in the early 1990s
should be considered for

i Maryland for Pepco. A law

| review article referenced by Mr.
Rokach explains how the

! Mississippi incentive rate plan,
known as a Performance
Evaluation Plan, actually worked. |
. for Mississippi Company

| Power.'® It used a formulary
| earned rate of return that adjusted
for utility performance in

| price, customer satisfaction,
and service reliability. The ‘
| challenge for regudators is to find l
the right balance to provide |

Elavidn's strategy was forwerd looking and was not an inuestigntion of past everts.

ufilities with rewards and
penalties without creating
opportunities for them to
manipulate the system.”’
he Maryland Public Service
Commission’s approach is
different in some important

respects from Florida's

approach. Maryland’s order is

focused on Pepeo’s actual

responses to a past set of events,
specifically power outages that
occurred on three dates in July
and August 2010, Florida's
strategy, by contrast, was
forward looking and was not an

; investigation of past events.

Mazyland’s effort appeared to be

triggered, at least In part, by
. customer complaints, whereas

the activities of the FPSC grew
out of a broader state-wide focus
on disaster preparedness.

- utility annual reliability reports.

There are also some important
differences between Rokach’s
recommendations for Pepco and
Florida’s approach. Florida's
overall strategy did not include.
changes in ratemaking. It also did
not focus on improved
communications with retail
consumers although data on
storm-related customer
complaints must be included in

Presumably, if the data indicate
upward trends in consumer
complaints, the FPSC can take
further action.

The policy questions generated
by the discussion above are as
follows: (1) Is a retrospective
approach to identification of
appropriate elements for a
mitigation plan more efficient
than a prospective, model-based

i

70 mwcg"@@wf@g\anm@ S011 Bl

far . Al tights reserved., dob/10.1016/14¢5.2011.08.002

The Electricity Journal



approach? (2) Should
performance-based rates of the
type recommended by Rokach for
Pepco, and used in Mississippi, be
part of a comprehensive strategy
to improve electric utility
reliability and storm hardening or
would the assessment of such
rates be “overkill’’? (3) What is the
best way for the regulatory body
to oversee and evaluate the
efficiency and effectiveness of
storm preparedness activities?
For example, is there a more
effective tool than a formal docket
of indeterminate duration with
which to improve reliability and
responsiveness? (4) As research
on storm hardening was funded
by participating utilities in the
Florida approach, should utility
investments in storm hardening
research be evaluated and, if so,
how? Should such investments be
included in the ratebase absent an
evaluation? There did not appear
to be a requirement for a third-
party evaluation of the research in
the memorandum of
understanding with PURC. (5)
What should be the objective of
planning to mitigate adverse
impacts of storms and other
disasters: improved system
reliability; improved
infrastructure deployment and
location decisions; or minimizing
costs associated with redundancy
and backup facilities, or a
combination thereof?n

Endnetes:

1. NOAA Economics, Extreme Events,
Snow and Ice, at http:/ /www.,
economics.noaa.gov/ ?goal=commerce
&file=events/snow.

2. NOAA Economics, Extreme

Events, Hurricane and Tropical Storm, at
http:/ /www.economics.noaa.gov/
?goal= commerceéfile=events/
kurricane,

3. The methodology used to

derive the estimate was explained as
follows: “The Berkeley Lab study
aggregates the best available data from
three sources: surveys on the value
electricity customers place on
uninterrupted service, information
recorded by electric utilities on power
interruptions, and information from
the 1S, Energy Information
Administration on the number,
location and type of U.S. electricity
customers. Based on the data available,
the researchers divided power
interruptions into those that

last less than five minutes, and those
that are longer. The longer
interruptions are generally
characterized by their duration
{length of time of each interruption),
and frequency (number of
interruptions per service territory).”
See Robert Longley, Power Interruptions
Cost Nation $80 Billion Annually:
Berkeley Lab Study Focuses on State

of U.5. Power Grid, Asout.com GUIDE,
Feb, 2005, at http:/ /usgovinfo.about.
com/od/consumerawareness/a/
poweroutcosts.htm.

4. Dr. Lynn Leverty, Plan, Rescue,
Recover, and Reassess: Coordinating
Responses to Hurricanes in Florida, The
Reubin O'D. Askew Institute on
Politics and Society, Spring 2006, at 20.

5. Florida Legislative Office of
Program Policy Analysis and
Government Accountability,
Follow-Up Report on Posi-Disaster
Relocation and Reconstruciion,

No. 97-19 (1997), at http://
www.oppaga.state.fl.us/Reports/
pdf/9719rpt.pdf.

6. Miki Deric, Tom Kirkpatrick and
Calvin Stewart, Tough Enough?, Evec,
PerspeCTIVES, (2010), at 32-33, at
http:/ /www.daviescon.com/
aboutSubPub.htm].

7. Seg FLa. PuB.Serv. CommN,
Document Deran For DocuMment No.
060198, at http:/ /www.floridapsc.
com/dockets/cms/docketFilings3.
aspx?docket=060198 {the entire

record of filings under the open
docket.]

8. Id., Memorandum re: Docket No.
060243-EI-Proposed Revisions to Rule 25-
6.044, F.A.C., Continuity of Service, and
Rule 25-6.0455 F.A.C., May 25, 2006, at
2, at http:// www floridapsc.com/
library /FILINGS/06/04544-06/
04544-06.FDF.

9. FLorDA RuLEs R. 25-6.0455

{Aug. 17, 2006). This rule [Annual
Distribution Service Reliability
Report] applies to all electric
utilities but the requirements are
fewer for utilities furnishing electric
service to fewer than 50,000 retail
customers.

10. See FLa. Pus. Serv. Commrn,
Errcrric Uniury DISTRIBUTION
ReLiasiLmy RePORTS, at http://www,
floridapsc.com/utilities/electricgas/
distributionreports.aspx. [annual
distribution service reliability
reports with the aggregated utility
filings and the FPSC's review of
those reports.]

11. Id., In re Requirement for investor-
owned electric utilities to file ongoing
storm preparedness plans and
implementation cost estirnates, Notice
of Proposed Agency Action, Order
Requiring Storm Implementation Plans,
Dacket no. 060198-EI, April 25, 2006, at
9, at http:/ /www.floridapsc.com/
library /FILINGS/06/03645-06/
03645-06.PDF.

12. I, at 4,

13, Joshua Z. Rokach, What Maryland
Can Learn from Mississippi, 23 ELgc. ]. 10
(2010), 82-84.

14. Id., 297,000 customers on July 25,
2010, 75,000 customers on Aug. 5,
2010, and 98,000 customers on Aug. 12,
2010.

15. Mp. Pus. Serv. CommiN, In re
Investigation into the Reliability and
Quality of the Electric Distribution
Service of Potomac Electric Power
Company, Case No. 9240, Order 83552,
Aug. 26, 2010.

16, C.L. Hebert, The Quest for an
Incentive Utility Regulatory Agenda, 19
EnerGy LJ. 1, 14-19 {1998).

17. Id., at 16.

May 2011, vl zgl Iﬁlz 1040-6190/$-see front matter © 2011 Elsevier Inc. All rights reserved., doi:/10.1016/}.tej.2011.04.002 71
age



Unde-rgroﬂnding Assessment Phase 1 Final Report:

Literature Review and Analysis of
Electric Distribution Overhead to Underground Conversion

Prepared for: Florida Electric Utilitias
Prepared by: InfraSource Technology

Contact: Richard Brown,-PhD, PE
fichard brown@infrassurceinconm
4020 Westchase Blvd,, Suite 375
Raleigh, NC 27507
| B18:961-4019 (V)
B16-757-1705 (F)

February 28" 2007




&)
InfraSource

Executive Summary

The conversion of overhead electric power distribution facilities to underground has been a topic of dis-
cussion in Florida for more than twenty years. The topic has been studied, discussed, and debated many
times at the state, municipal, and local levels, Overhead construction is the standard in Florida, but all
investor-owned utilities are required to have a process where customers can opt to underground existing
overhead service by paying the incrementsl cost. For municipals and cooperatives, the decision to under-
ground is left to local citizen boards.

This report presents the results of a Teview of relevant previous undergrounding studies done in Florida as
well a5 literature on the subject from throughout the US and around the world, This review finds that the
conversion of overhead electric distribution systems to underground is costly, and these costs are far in
excess of the quantifiable benefits presented in existing studies, except in rare cases where the facilities
provide particularly high reliability gains or otherwise have a higher than average impact on community
goals.

This conclusion is reached consistently in many reports, which almost wmiversally compare the initial cost
of undergrounding to the expected quantifiable benefits. No prior cost benefit study recommends broad-
based undergrounding, but several recommend targeted undergrounding to achieve specific community
goals. '

All numbers quoted throughout this report appear in one or more of the reports cited.!

Undergrounding is Expensive

As arough estimate, the cost of converting existing overhead electric distribution lines and equipments to
underground is expected to average about $1 million per mile. In addition there are costs required to con-
vert individual home and business owner electric service and meter facilities so they will be compatible
with the new underground system now providing them with electricity, Further, there are separate, addi-
tional costs associated with site restoration and placing third-party attachments underground.

When only considering the direct utility cost of a conversion from overhead to underground, studies find
that undergrounding distribution. facilities in residential neighborhoods served by investor-owned utilities
in Florida would cost an average of about $2,500 per residential customer affected. Undergrounding resi-
dential main-trunk feeders (those lines leading to residential neighborhoods) throughout Florida would
cost an average of about $11,000 per residential customer affected. Undergrounding all main trunk com-
mercial feeders (those feeding business and office areas, etc.) in Florida would cost an average of about
$37,000 per commercial customer affected.

Costs in any particular situation could vary widely from these estimates depending upon electric system
design, construction standards, customer density, local terrain, construction access issues, building type,
and service type. Existing studies estimate the wholesale conversion of overhead electric distribution sys-
tem to underground would require that electricity rates increase to approximately double their curmrent
level, or possibly more in aress with a particularly low customer density.

! Referentes are intentionally left out of this Executive Summery. They are inciuded thronghout the msin body of the report.

UnderproundingAssessment Phase 1 Final Report : Page 2 of 59

Page 136



k.

InfraSource

Farther Costs Must Be Incurred to Obtain Complete Aesthetic Benefits

Nearly every study and examination of overhead to underground conversion notes in some manner that
removing the poles, overhead lines and equipment, and in some cases above-ground facilities required for
the overhead utilities will improve the visnal appeal — the aesthetics — of an area, be it residential or com-
mercial property. Opinions and analytical studies of the value of this agsthetic improvement differ widely
as to results, but no studies examined in this report conclude fhat aesthetics had a guanfifiable monetary
benefit that substantially affected the overall benefit-to-cost ratio for the conversion.

Regardless, there is no doubt that some municipal governments, developers, businesses, and homeowners
value the aesthetic improvement brought about by undergrounding of utilities very highly. This is evident
because some choose pay the cost differential for underground service themselves (for new construction).

The electric system conversion costs discussed above would nof always provide aesthetic improvement
without additional expenses to convert third-party utilities such as telephone and cable television to un-
derground. The costs necessary to relocate all remaining utilities underground is most often estimated at
somewhere between 10% and 30% beyond the cost of the electric conversion.

Uadergrounding Provides a Number of Berefits

In return for the considerable expense, electric customers can receive a number of potential benefits from
the undergrounding of their overhead systems. The following is & list of benefits most often mentioned in
undergrounding reports and studies:

Potential Benefits of Underground Eleciric Facilities
Improved aesthetics;

Liower tree trimming cost;

Lower storm damage sud restoration cost;

Fewer motor vehicle accidents;

Reduced live-wire contact;

Fewer outages during normal weather;

Far fewer momentary interruptions;

Improved utility relations regarding tree ttimming;
Fewer structures impacting sidewalks.

* 2 & B & & s 8 =

Th oo ¥ Awsgssment Phase | Final Report ‘ Page 3 of 59

Page 137



b,

InfraSource

Undergrounding Has a Number of Potential Disadvantages

There are a number of potential disadvantages which need to be considered whenever the conversion of
overhead facilities to underground is evaluated. The following is a list of potential disadvantages most
often mentioned in undergrounding reports and studies:

Potential Disadvantages of Underground Flectric Facilities
Stranded asset cost for existing overhead facilities;

Environmental damage including soil erosion, and disraption of ecologically-sensitive habitat;
Utility employee work bazards during vault and manhole inspections;

Increased expostre to dig-ins;

Longer duration interruptions and more customers impacted per outage;

Susceptibility to flooding, storm surges, and demage during post-storm cleanup,

Reduced flexibility for both operations and system expansion;

Reduced life expectancy

Higher maintenance and operating costs;

Hipher cost for new data bandwidth,

* & & & & & o » B @

Financing Options

The reports and references reviewed in this report all conclude that undergrounding incurs a very substan-
tial additional cost compared to that for overhead distribution, even as they differed on what that cost was
and how much of it was justified based on the benefits obtained, Ultimately, those undergrounding costs
must be paid if the conversion is to be done. There are many funding options to cover these costs, and
selecting the most appropriate financing approach is a critical part of the overall undergrounding process.
The following are methods of financing that are most often cited in reports and studles {combinations of
these options can be used as well):

Basic Financing Options
Customer funded;

Higher electricity rates;
Higher taxes;

Special tax districts;
Utility set-asides;
Federal funding;
Private sector funded.

® & ® 8 ¥ & 9

Overall Conclusion

The Florida Public Service Commission as well as many municipalities and electric customers in Florida
are interested in undergrounding electric distribution systeras in order to improve aesthetics, improve reli-
ability of service, and reduce vulnerability to hurricane damage. The benefits associated with improved
aesthetics are not quantifiable. Without considering aesthetics, no study reviewed in this report concludes
that wholesale conversion of overhead electric distribution lines to underground can be fully cost just-
fied.

Thederoroundingefssessment Phase 1 Fingl Report Page 4 of 38

Page 138



Py
)

InfraSource

In summary, a review of the body of public knowledge on the undergrounding of electric distribution fa-
cilities reveals the following:

Summary of Literature Review on Flectric Distribution Undersround Conversion

e No state is requiring extensive undergrounding of existing distribution facilities;

¢ Conversion of overhead facilities to underground is rarely 100% justified on the basis
of costs and quantifiable benefits;
Ex post analyses on actual underground conversion projects have not been done;
Few studies address the potential negative impacts of undergrouwnding:
Few studies consider sirengthening existing overhead systems as a potential cost-
effective alternative to underground conversion;

» There are almost no academic or industry publications that address storm reliability
modeling of electric distribution systems;

o Until last year, there was no academic or industry literature that addressed failure
rates during hurricanes as a function of hurricans strength;

¢ Existing research on mitigating the impacts of major storms on electric distribution
systems is not sufficient for use in a detailed study.

- — s egpogrnent Phage 1 Final Report Page 5 of 59

Page 139



e R
e I

tleid

Undergrounding Assessment Phase 2 Report:

AT U o sty

LA S T e L S R PECR po-w y

Final Report

"

Undergrounding Case Studies

Prepared for:
Prepared by:

Contact:

Florida Electric Utilifies
infraSource Technology

Richard Brown, PhD, PE
richard.brown@irfrasourceinc.com
4020 Westchase Blvid., Sulte. 375
Ralsigh, NG 27507

218-951-4018 (W)

610-757-1708 {F}

August 6™ 2007

o
¥
L

ZIRALE,

IRTATL RN




F N

<) |
InfraSource
Executive Summary

Ihis. report presents the results of Phase 2 of a thres phase project to investigate the implications of con-
verting overheud e!ectn'c. distribution systems in Floride to underground (referred to as undergrounding).

Table A. Summary of Case Studies

. - Year of Cirenit Miles of Cireuit Miles of
Project Utility _Conversion Converted Overhead  New Underground
Pensacola Beach Gulf Power 2006 2.6 6.8
Sand Key Progress Energy Florida 1996 1.8 17
Allison Island Florida Power & Light 2000 05 . Lo
County Road 30A Chelco 2006 0.8 0.8

A review of the case studies reaches the same conclusion reached in the Phase I literature review: the ini-
tial cost to convert overhead distribution to underground is high, and there is insufficient data to show that
this high initial cost is 100% justifiable by quantifiable benefits such as reduced O&M cost savings and
reduced hurricane damage. Increased data collection can potentially increase the amount of quantifiable
benefits, but it is unlikely that these benefits will 100% Justify high initial cost, except potentially in a situa-
tion where an undergrounded system is struck by multiple severe hurricanes. For all of these case studies,
by far the strongest reason for undergrounding is to improve the aesthetics of the area. Additional observe-
tions relating to these case studies include:

» Al case studies occurred in coastal areas.
Two of the four projects were done in conjunction with roadway widening projects,
More circuit miles of underground are sometimes built than the original overhead amount, This is
typically to create at underground loop that increeses operational flexibility and the ability to re-
spond to faults,

¢ Cost per circuit mile figures corresponds to those identified in the Phase 1 literature search.

*  Cost per costomer varies widely based on both the cost per circuit mile and the amount of high
density housing such as high rise condominiums.

Not much data is available on the impact of the case studies on non-storm réiiabiiity end hurricane per-
formance. The littie data that is available indicates that non-storm relizbility is not significantly different
after undergrounding, and that hurricane reliability of underground systems is not perfect due to storm

surge damage.

For these case studies, there is an extensive amount of project description and project cost data, but Limited
avoided cost and benefit data. These case studies can certainly be used as an input for an ex anfe model, but
there is not sufficient data to compare the output of the ex ante model to historical reatized benefits. There
is not even enough data to determine upper and lower bounds of potential resuits. At this point, any ex ante
model that is developed, such as the one to be developed in Phase 3, must be justified by its model assump-
tions rather than by its ability to replicate realized benefits from any of these case studies.

Undezarognding Assessment Phase 2 Final Report Page 2 of 40

Page 141



_»
infraSource

7 Cenclusions

A summary of the underground conversion case studies is shown in Table 7-1. This table primarily in-
cludes information from the “general data” category, but also supplies some targeted cost and perform-
ance results.

Year of Conversion 2000 6 2066 2006
Utility ‘r"la:;r.ida Power & Pro Bress Energy Gulf Power. Chelcg
Tight (JOLH Florida (10U O {oogperative)

Voltage 13.2kV 1247%V 1247 RV 123%V
Customers

Residential 45 3,191 844 §,260

Commercial ¢ 124 402 O

Total 43 3,375 1,251 1200
01d O Circuif Miles 0.5 1.8 .55 03
New UG Circuit Miles

Thiee Phase 0.4 1.7 6.56 0.8

Two Phsse Lo 0.0 0.04 0.0

One Phase 0.0 0.0 0.06 0.0

Total 1.0 1.7 6.84 - 0.8
Construction Type Direct buried duct Cablz in conduit Concrets ducibank Cable in condirit

_— . High density urban High densily urban
Level of Urbianization %Zg;ﬁf%;‘:}iﬁ? wxﬂf -m{:-st[y?;igi{ Tise Mﬂ?'condég@qnsga Suburban
condos and commuercial mix
Geography Constal Coastal Coastul Loastal
Prirary Motivation Aesthetics Apsthetios Aegthetics Apsthetics
Read widening imvolved Mo Yes Yes Mo
Enifial UG cost! 5207401 1,450,528 £4,300,000 3706,776
Q&N costsavings {not &vailable) $1,349 per year {not availabie) 8120 per vear
Ipitial Cost per Mile"? $414,802 £917,532 $1,686,275 §883,470
Tnitial Cost per Customer’ 54,605 £48% 83437 £3589
1997 storm caused -
Hurricans performance Not known sﬂfgi dm?ge to new 215,12? Zﬁﬁ;ﬁ;ﬁ Too carly fo tel]
system
‘SAID] Impact Mot kuown Mo change Too early to tell Tov early fotell
Notes

1. Initial cost includes all wvaitable inftisl costdate, which includes different items for the different cases
2. Initizl cost per mile is based on the original amount of overheed circait miles

A review of Tabie7-% brings one 1o the same conclusion reached in the Phase 1 literature review: the ini-
tial cost to convert overhead distribution to underground is high, and there is insufficient data to show that
this high inifial costis 100% justifiable by quentifiable benefits such as reduced O&M cost savings and
reduced hurricane damage. Increased data callection can potentially increase the amount of guantifiable
benefits, but it is unlikely that these benefits will 100% justify high initial cost, except potentially in 2

Page 37 of 40

Thmide Thanede THilities Phase 2 Report Final Report



<)
InfraSource

situation where an undergrounded system is struck by multiple severe hurricanes. For all of these case
studies, by far the strongest reason for undergrounding is to improve the aesthetics of the area.

A summary of observations about the similarities and differences of the four case studies is now provided:

Ohservations

1. All case studies occnrred in coastal areas.

2. All case studies were motivated primarily by aesthetic considerations.

3. More circuit miles of underground are sometimes built than the original overhead amount. This is
typically to create an underground loop that increases operational flexibility and the ability to re-
spond to faults,

4. No industrial customers were affected by any of the case studies, A

5. The two larger case studies in terms of circuit miles were done in conjunction with roadway wid-
ening projects. The two smaller projects were not.

6. Cost per circuit mile varies widely based on 2 variety of factors, including the ratio of initial
overhead circuit miles to new underground circuit miles. Cost per mile figures are consistent with
those identified in the Phase I literature search.

7. Cost per customer varies widely based on both the cost per circuit mile and the amount of high
density housing such as high rise condominiums,

Not much data is available on the impact of the case studies on non-storm reliability and hurricane per-
formance. The little data that is available indicates that non-storm relisbility is not significantly different
after undergrounding, and that hurricane reliability of underground systems is not perfect due to storm
surge damage.

The primary goal for Phase 2 is to collect data suitable for use in Phase 3. A review of the case studies
shows that there is an extensive amount of project description and project cost data, but limited avoided
cost and benefit data. These case studies can certainly be used as an input for an ex ante model, but there
is not sufficient data to compare the output of the ex ante model to historical realized benefits. There is
not even enough data to determine upper and lower bounds of potential results. At this point, any ex anie
model that is developed, such as the one to be developed in Phase 3, must be justified by its model as-
sumptions rather than by its ability to replicate realized benefits from any of these case studies.

-2 3= Dlaatris Utilities Phase 2 Report Fingl Report Page 38 of 40

Page 143



Final Report

Undergrounding Assessment Phase 3 Report:
Ex Ante Cost and Benefit Modeling

Prepared for: Florida Electric Utllities
Prepared by: Quanta Technology

Contact: Le Xu, PhiD

Ixu@guanta-technology.com

Richard Brown, PhD, PE
thrown@guants-technology.com
4020 Wesichase Bivd., Suile 300
Ralaigh, NC 27607

819-334-3021 {Offica)

BH0-7R7-1700 (Fay)

May 271% 2008

Page 144




Executive Summary

This report is the Phase 3 defiverable of a project awarded in respomse W RFP #U-E issued by the Florida
Eleetric Utilities. RFP #U-1 was a result of Florida Public Service Commission Order No, PSC-06-0351-
PAA-EL, which direets each investor-owned clectric utthity i Florida to establish a plan that inereases
colaborative research (o further the development of siorme-resiticat electric utility infrastructure and toch-
nelogies that reduce storm restoration costs and mlerruptions o cuslomers, Municipal electric and Caop-
erative electric utilities are participating voluntarily.

The scope of the overall project (all three phases) is o imvestigate the implications of converting overhead
electric distribution systems in Florida to underground (referred 1o as undergrounding). The primary focus
of the project is the impact of undergrounding on the performance of the electric infrastructure during
hurricanes, whicl is the ability of the foeal power system o withstand high winds, storm surges, and other
damage from hurricanes and to minimize the number and duration of customer interruptions. Thiy study
i#lso considers benefits and issues with regards to performance during non-slorm situations.

The project is divided into three phases. Phase 1 is o metd-analysis of existing rescarch, reports, method-
ologies, and case studies. The Phase | final report, Undergrounding Assessment Phase 1 Final Report:
Literature Review and Analvsis of Electric ismibution Overlead to Undergrouned Comversion, was is-
sued on February 28" 2007, Phass 2 examines speeific undergrounding. project case studies in Florida,
The Phase 2 final report, Undergrounding Assessment Phase 2 Final Report: Undergrounding Case Stud-
fes, was issued on August 6% 2007,

Phase’3 develops and tests a methodalogy for analyzing the costs and benefits of specific undergrounding
proposals in Florida. The methodology is separated:inte two basic components: normal weather assess-
ment and humcane assessment. The normal weather model includes the basie cost of utility capital and
operational cost information. it also includes high-level reliability information that allows for the caleuia-
tion of customer interruption informution and related costs. A flowehart of the methodology is shown in
Figure A-1.

The hurricane medel determines infrastructure danage and related costs associazed with tropieal storms
of hurricane strength when making landfall in Florida. To perform a cost and benefit analysis of sufficiem
detail to meet the objecives of this project, it is necessary 1o simalate hurricanss moving across Florida.
Therefore, 2 large component of the hurricane mode! i dedicated to simulating bunricane yvears. For each
year of simulation. the number of landfall hurricanes is randomly determined based on historical hwmi-
cune data. For cach burricane (iT any), the landfail focation, direction, speed, strenath, and other parame-
ters are also randomly detormined based on historical hurricane dagy,

When a hurricane makes landfall, a storm surge model determines the mmount of infrastructure damage
that oceurs in susceptble areas due w the wall of water (i.e.. storm sarge} that the hurricane pushes onto

cousial arcas.

As the hurricane wavels over fand. the simalation modet keeps wack of the fastest wind usts to which
cach location is exposed. This determines the amount of wind damage that oceurs during the hurricane,
The model is flexible enough to consider muny tvpes of construction with many types of wind Ioading
characteristics. This includes standard consiruction ( e.g. Grade B, Grade C), “hardened” systems, and
others,

ndergrounamg sesessment Phase S Repori - Final Report Page 2 of 97

| P’a:ge 145




Normai Weather

Total
Utility
Cost

[ Utiliyy
Cosi

A

Total
! Cusiomer
Cost

Y e
Fair Weather .| Cusiomer
Performance ) Cost
-

: Wind 4 hE
{ Damage Ltitity :
f Restoration i
[ Storm Surge Cost
5 Damage )
5 . \
3 Restoration | Customer |
i Model f‘* Cost 1

Figure A-1. Overview of Methodology

For each simulated burricane, the model determines the amount of damage both for the proposed praject
arca and for the entire serviee territory of the associated wtility, Damage Tor the catire service territory s
seeded o determine the total utility restoration thme, which then determines the restoration time for the
proposed project area.

Once the iotal hurricane damage 15 determined for the entire project area, ¢ restoration model is used o
determine when repairs on the proposed project area begin and end. This restoration model includes fae-
wrs such as startup inefficiencies (e.g., die o debris-on roads), crew ramp up, and the difference between
overhead crews and underground erews.

The hurricane damage-and restoration models provide information that allows for the caleulation of viility
restoration costs, customer inlerrapiions, and the customer costs associated with the interruptions. Taken
wogether, the wility and customer costs constitute the total costs of the hurricane a5 it relates o clectric
utility infrastruciure.

After sinudating the costs and benefits of all hurricanes-in g speetfic hurricance vear, addiional burricane
vears can.be simulated. Many simuiated years will bave no hurricanes and will therefore have no burri-
canc costs. Some simulated years will have a gingle weak horricanc and will theréfore have small huri-
cane costs. Some simulated vears will have multiple major burricanes and will therefore have significant
hurricance costs. Simulating meny burricane years allows the average hurricane cost to be computed,

nlErgrounding Assessment Phase 3 Report Final-Report Page 3 of 97

.Page 146




(" Status Quo Uity Cost
* Capital
v D&M

\_= Other

MNet
Utility
Cost

d Undearground Utllity Cost
= Capital

v D&M

" Other Y.

( Status Quo Customer Cost )
» Normal westher
= Hurricanes

\® Other

S

= CLustomear
(" Underground Customer Cost’y ™ Benefit

= Normat weather
v Hurricanes
W Other Wi

Figure &-2, Apprench to Cest and Benefit Caleulutions

. The output of the simulation is a list of initial wility costs, annual utility costs, customer interruption min-
utes during normal weather, and customer intrruption minutes during hurricanes. The model is-flexible
enough 1o accommodate any cost category that can be characterized by initial cost and/or a recurring an-
nuad cost.

The modeal s destened w compare two cases, Typically, this will be the “status quo™ case and a proposed
undergrounding option. Hurricarie simulations are performed automatically for both cases so that costs
and reliability differences can be-compared. This approach is shown in Figure A-2.

Consider a situation where a utility is considering an undergrounding praject. When essessing this pro-
ject, the utility will first enver information gbowt the existing system. This allows the current utility costs,
relinbility performunce, and customer costs to be caleulated. The wility also enters information about the
undergrounding project including the inifial cost, annual costs, annusl savings, and so forth. The assess-
ment is then able to simulate the performance of the undergrounded system and compute associated utility
cosis, reliebility performance, and customer costs. The difference in udlity cost Berween the smtus quo
and the proposed scenario is defined as the net utility cost. The difference in reliability performance is
defined as net reliability benefit. When reliability benefit is ransiated into customer cast, it is delined as
net cusiomer cost. Net reliability benefit and net customer cost, taken together, constitufe net customer
benefit,

The scenario comparison in Figure A-2 is flexible and does not necessarily have w be used Lo compare
the status quo Lo a proposed underground project. For example it could be used to compare the status quo
1o a proposcd “hardened overhead” projeet whwre existing overhead structures are reinforced o better
withstand wind damage. 1t could also be used 6 compare 2 proposed undergrounding praject o a pro-
posed hardened overhead project. Generally, the framewark. is sultable w compare any given “‘Scenario
A with another given “Scenario B.” This allows a range of options 1o be explored and compared based

unuergrousnny ~ssessment Phase o Repont Final Report Page 4 of 97

Page 147



on their incremental cost above the next least expensive option and their incremental hencfit above the
next least expensive option.

The methodology described above has been implemented in a Microsoft Fxcel {version 2003) spreadsheet
with embedded computer programmming. 1 can be run on any computer with Excel. A dewiled user guide
to this spreadsheet is provided in Section 2 in the body of this report, and the spreadshect is applied to
four Florida case studies in Section 8.

As conctuded in Phase 2 report, there is not sufficient data for ihe four Florida case studics to compare the
owput of the ex anfe model to historical realized benefits. There is not even enough data to determine up-
per and tower bounds of potential results. Analviing the cases studies wilh the model is done to provide
insights into how different variables affect costs and benefits of undergrounding; the purpose is ot to
replicate actual realized benefits or to anticipate future benefits.

It must be understoad that the methodology requires the user o input many paranteters and many assungp-
tions. For many of these parameters and assumptions, there is litfle basis in hisiorical data and expert
Judgment must be used. It is beyond the scape of this praject Lo recommend parameters and assumptions.
The spreadsheet should be viewsd us a “catculator” and it is the respansibility of the user to make appro-
priate decisions about input parameters and assumptions, '

- The methodology and corresponding tool deseribed in this report should be viewed as a
| “caleulator,” 1t s the respousibility of the user o make appropriate decisions about inpus
1

L parameters.

Evenif utilities do not have a large amour of data frem which to base assumptions and parameter selee-
tions. much nsight can be gained by using the tool, In fact, the tool can be used 1o determine the senstriv-
ity of results to certain assumptions and cestain paramelers.

The conversion of overhead eleeric power distribution facifities to underground bas been a wpic of dis-
cussion in Florida for mere than twenty years. The topic has been studled, discussed, and debated many
times at the state, musicipal, and local levels. Overhead construction is generally the standard for new
construction, with developers or custorners typically paying for any incremental cost for underground
construction. However. all investor-owned utilities are required fo have a process where customers can
opt o underground existing overhead service by paying the incremental cost, For municipals and coop-
eratives, the decision to underground is feft to local citizen boards.

It is well-known that the conversion of everhead electric distribution systems to underground is costly,
and these costs dlmost always exceed quantifiable benefits. This conclusion is reached consistently in
many reports that range from swfe-wide studies w0 very small projects. However, there is no consist
approach has been used to compute the costs and benefits of proposed undergrounding projects, making
studiey difficult to interpret and use for making decisions.

As more aress in Florida beain to explore the possibility of underground conversion. it becomes neregs-
mgly desirable to have o consistent methodology to assess the associated costs and benefits. Results from
a trusted approach can provide insight. lead to beter projects, aid in customers communicating with wtili-
ties, and potentially help puide certain regulatory approaches.

This report has presenmed o methodology capable of computing the costs and beneffts of potential under-
grounding projects. The methodology can also be used 1o compure the coss and benefits of other aetivi-

unaergrounamy Assessment Phase 3 Report - Final Report : Page 3ol 97

Page 148



ties that have an impact on hurricane performance such as the hardening of overhead systems. The meth-
odology used o detailed simulation with the following components: hurricane module, eguipment damage

module, restoration module, and cost-beneftt module. This methodology has been implemenwed in a
spreadsheet application so that it can be easily used by inieresied partics.

The conversion of overhead electric infrastructure 1o underground is of interest around the country and
around-the world. Often times naderground conversion proposals are either pursued or refected without 2
systematic analysis of costs and benefits. The methodology presented in this report is an attempt to add
comgistency, rigor, and thoroughness (o these types-of analyses. Al present, the methodelogy is specific to
the state of Florida, but the general approach is valid wherever extreme weather events have the potential
o wreck havoo on electricity nfrastrueiure,

wonue g Lournn e, Assessinent Phased Report Final Report Page 6 of 97

Page 149



PURC's Hardening Research Page 1 of 1

PURC's Hardening Research
Jamison,Mark A [mark.jamison@warrington.ufl.edu]

Sent: Tuesday, November 13, 2012 1:20 PM
To:  Michae! Karukin
Cc: Kury,Ted [ted.kury@warrington.ufl.edu]; Melissa L. Stevens Pickle [melissa.stevens@warington.ufledu]

Thank you for contacting PURC about our storm hardening research. The research is summarized in reports
found at http://warrington.ufl.edu/centers/purc/research/energy.asp under the heading “Research in Eiectricity
Infrastructure Hardening”.

As you can see in our reports, such as our initial report at
http://warrington.ufl.edu/centers/purc/docs/report PURC Collaborative Research 2007.pdf, this research was
conducted at the direction of the Florida Public Service Commission (Florida Public Service Comrmission Order
No. PSC-06-00351-PAA-El issued April 25, 2006) to analyze ways that Fiorida could better prepare its electric
infrastructure for severe storms, such as hurricanes. All of the work was done with the oversight of a steering
committee and reviewed by the staff of the Florida Public Service Commission. PURC provided an annual report
to the sponsors, who then provided it to the Florida Pubfic Service Commission as part of their annuai reports to
the Commission on storm hardening. PURC was present on several occasions at public meetings of the
Commission to describe the research and answer questions.

As should always be the case with academic research, the methods that PURC used for this research are
available for all to view and critique. We would be happy to discuss the research with anyone who has an

interest.
Best,

dr.j.

Mark A. Jamison, Ph.D., Director

Public Utility Research Center http://www.purc.ufl.edu
Warrington College of Business Administration

205 Matherly, PO Box 117142

University of Florida

Gainesvitle, FL USA 32611

+1.352.392.6148 mark. jamison@warrington.ufl.edu
vCard

“Leadership in Infrastructure Policy”

"Where there is no vision, the people perish.” Solomon

Page 150



o Ruedwon 509 e

W @

L

Page 151



Averdwnyy gon #

Jo uojsuedxa ayy Buluueld Joj Bunsuod [eJRUY
Seul] uonnqlasip

JeaA yoea aui| Jo seliw goE ubisep ap
| Swia)sAs uoRnquisip ubisap auy
ul bujzijepads uuy Bunnsuod e si Bulsaulbuy aur-iH e

~ Jo ubysap Jadoud uo sassep Bujuien g JoA0 Yoea] e

- uononpoauj

Page 152



A tﬁ,w mlm@ i

Buipeo) Jo uonedje)

mm:a %% .m% mm%@ -

mﬁw%ﬁm 0 —
SOISHIBIRIBLD JOPNPUCT) -
ubisop aul %mmmzm D U0 SND04

Page 153



‘Sseiin punosbispun
DSILIDAPE UBAD pue Sainn
unoJibiapun Juem siadojpasqg —

uolsiAIpgns bBuiaod
340§3q sapn punosbiapun
INbas seynuILIWIS) Auely —

3

01 N0 g paroday —

i

Y kS

Sa|AN

Page 154



L

suoneju I ®duesesy -

PeINpai si sbewep spiys

PRjunow uuopned 3j0d-0M] 35194 sjunowp

Auediarigy S5 #

_____ %ME.
ey —

SAISURUXD s597

Sjuawdo

[oAapD

Em&&& O3 punoibispun ay) osje sAynn

mum@ﬁw@% -
mumamw Emg biapun ausap S,19doja;

Page 155



oIS
ol Ta b

uoReIINedq Ueqin
syeloud odessjoong e
- B "ewodo) - 9007 Ul punouafispun
oA wmh%m&maé = B0 SBIIAIDS MBU JO %G/
e 000z Ul punoibiapun
2 SEDIAIBS MBU JO 0466
| aoudLRdXg
SAljeIado0) rLWRgE

Dt

Youp e

Page 156



Auediony g @

ww%mwmwwxmwwﬁm

aoueuUIRW Aem-1o-1uybLi

épaynsnl ag 1

L] B

- ®

unoibispun Joj Aed o} ssaubu

Swiols Aq padaye 10;

30 mmﬁﬁmm%ﬁ
aply Ul 1507 -

13JBS PaIBPISUO)

u

I

i

Page 157



AL

SO daul]
8

BN
Spifi

90104 SueH LI
&g UM

' suay
BUR LY

CERTON,
BULDLLITH

u%m:m:m ¥
/ PuedLin H]

‘UM BUI| PeaYIaA0 2oe|dal 0} JueM SaURBE
[eauswiuIBA0b olgnd 5 ‘SULI0S DIBADS J3YY

Aundiding 200 2
AL L

epLoj4
S9IPNIS U9

Page 158



Augdiang sau 8

000°zs 000'T$
JauojsuRl) Junowped YAISZ ¢ JBWIDJSURL) YAY 57

_ _ @mﬁmﬁ%@h@ dd@ﬂﬂ@ﬁ% yd-¢ wm%_@w 2lIXa o) ﬁmmﬁumww &
aseyd-g 10} 000'08%

sseyd-p £ 10 000 m@ N

Page 159



SOIUIOUOI3 U6 paseq paynsnf 3q 1ON NV wc:%@mu%% -

UoISNDUD dwes syy aney sbuines sy o) pasedwioy
1500 By3 pazAjeue pue paipms Apuaaas saey 10y} 21015 8UY Iy ©
sJopnpuod Jabiey
SBSS0] BUY| Ul UOIINPSY —
S1503 UOREI0)S3S uoipnpay
(salod @Aj0AU] SyYERP ARMUBIY 1O 94/T) «
SIUBPIDOR BPIYBA Ul UOINPaY —
(51500 Jamod 4o spisino 1505 1596ie]) »
1500 Bulwiy 381 u uoINpay —
Ag 195340 punoibiapun 4o 3509 lemuy yby o

Page 160



& & i Auneduing R
wwwwxmﬁxw

000°000°000°0L$  000°000°vZ6'ss  [el0] ,% : :
- ) 000'000°0£9°€$ sabenQ papiony.,
-1 000°'000°0G1$ SUaPINDY BIDIYSA PEPIOAY
| 000'00071$ 1s07 Se|eg peploay |
| 000°000°0%$ pIING. WIOIS 150d JA-001.

©000'000°05% sBuiaes BulwiwiLy o84

IEN sbuires RO

| 000'000'000°01$ 0 _ ssurjiemod punoibiepun.

}s0g pezienuuy | syjeusg | jyeusg oltouoos

Page 161



Aupdinty € 8

sabejno punoibispun J0j SSINUIW GpT —
sabeIno peayIsAo 10} sonuil 76 —
payiodal Apnis eujjoie) YLoN « -
sabeno sabuoj nq sebeino ems -
Amgeysy ¢

juawdinba
- pajunowped 10§ $59] 94 PINOD ‘Bjqed 10) Siedh Of e

sieah O¢ soul) punoabiapury -
L_Sunm%u 40} %m@ﬂ @m wmwumm J0] S1edA OF
R C Saull m@@ﬁ@»

Page 162




GE,,@ FREST SRS
I 30T FOGE £
OPOs 201 Op 0E B0 0F 02 OF B0V DE b2 ok

U1 398 5|

i;m
fmwix%ﬁm
~proyy e saotad
|95 [RAIILIG

THT0 OH LEAUE Y S T LS ST ._m @_,‘m%:m&w; SCILISIW 40 300 TR SRR WRITD 3000

iz o6 EGIT -
H«mm 0OF 3 ﬂ_ w? w:.., m:, m,w m_m mw Qm mw @L ok ) J%m T Hmm_mmwmwww Smw%mm

) ¥ .
) it S ST

el U Ictirad

ﬁgmm m

T}

&

um.u,ﬂwou mmmmﬁ&

213 M 51500 [euiay

[ dadd 09yg

a1 porads aae

f:_am:r{u GG i

05V HYIA ¥ /0138 %oz} 20V ANV

”__mﬁmm S0 LSYTIOHD BTV JAVH $30 _m&

CADDETRO0E

I ranos oy ruy

S e R 71

: %mﬁﬁ ._ (0L=2661

Dzt

_mﬁ_ |
gy

ul 9jges pue JNpuoy —

punoJbispun
Wl mmw% AO

Page 163



Tuvdwon gan @
RELLENE

(902$ = Ydua1} g UNPUOD JO IS0D)
92IAIRS punoJbiepun
JOA Q0ZL Pe3y_AD
qee'es PUQAH
£9/'v% punoibiopun
b0L'2$ PeayIBAD

JOIONPUOD BDIAIBS JO 193] DGT o

Buuojsuel] e

Bl JOA 00Z'Z J0 198} 00T
199) auenbs Qop'? —

-~ - @ : swoy Ajiwey sbuig e

¥

Page 164



Auudiog goe g

SaNIIN pue SaruNWIWIoD awos Aq pabeinoous
sowl} abeino aonpal |jim ueds jse] 8y} %ﬁcm:nwmcz ®
Jomod Jo uoneiolsal aiojeq siedal .@M@ﬁ 15NW UG /o

1DWI0ISND aUy AG PaUMO Si peaty Jayjeam o] —

a5noy a8yl Jo wgm ialjieam ayl sjind -

cloJp 9DIAIDS UO Sjje) 9911 B UBUM
- Sdoap 30IAIRS U0 Ajpaissasbbe se Buiwiuwiy J0u ssall -
- sood) buyjjed -
| m@m__@m@ 3|geIBUNA S| 3snoy Y} 0] doup SDIAIDS dY| e

Page 165




Audaing sQun #

mmw@» @ w @55 w@@mwm um%& ®
1503 Ajsn{ 01 syyeusg Ubnous 10N ~
SULIOS DIOARS UI0A] 1500 UOIRICISD] Pannpay] -
Bujwiwing eaiy peonpay -
SUDUDY SMOUYS SOIPMS
SUOISSILILIOD )83 Jnoj 03 Buipiondy
Zﬁm&gwou 6: m (m ymod punolblapun e

Page 166




Attachment "3C"

Undergrounding Assessment Phase 1 Final Report:

Literature Review and Analysis of
Electric Distribution Overhead to Underground Conversion

Prepared for: Florida Electric Utilities
Prepared by: InfraSource Technology
Contact: Richard Brown, Phly, PE

richard.brown@infrasourceinc.com
4528 Wesichase Blvd., Suite 375
Raleigh, NC 27507

818-961-1019 (V}

610-757-1705 (F)

February 28" 2007




< b
InfraScurce

Executive Summary

The conversion of overhead electric power distribution facilities to underground has been 2 topic of dis-
cussion in Florida for more than twenty years. The topic has been studied, discussed, and debated many
times at the state, municipal, and local levels. Overhead construction is the standard in Florida, but all
investor-owned utilities are required to have & process where customers can opt to underground existing
overhead service by paying the incremental cost. For municipals and cooperatives, the decision to under-
ground is left to local citizen boards,

This report presents the results of a review of refevant previous undergrounding studies done in Florida as
well as literature on the subject from throughout the US and around the world. This review finds that the
conversion of overhead electric distribution systems to underground is costly, and these costs are far in
excess of the quantifiable benefits presented in existing studies, except in rare cases where the facilities
provide particularly high reliability gains or otherwise have a higher than average impact on community
goals.

This conclusion is reached consistently in many reports, which almost universally compare the initial cost
of undergrounding to the expected quantifiable benefits. No prior cost benefit study recommends broad-
based undergrounding, but several recommend targeted undergrounding to achieve specific community
goals,

All numbers quoted throughout this report appear in one or more of the reports cited.!

Undergrounding is Expensive

As a rough estimate, the cost of converting existing overhead electric distribution lines and equipments to
underground is expected to average about $1 million per mile. In addition there are costs required to con-
vert individual home and business owner electric service and meter facilities so they will be compatible
with the new underground system now providing them with electricity. Further, there are separate, addi-
tional costs associated with site restoration and placing third-party attachments underground.

When only considering the direct utility cost of a conversion from overhead to underground, studies find
that undergrounding distribution facilities in residential neighborhoods served by investor-owned utilities
in Florida would cost an average of about $2,500 per residential customer affected. Undergrounding resi-
dential main-trunk feeders (those lines leading to residential neighborhoods) throughout Florida would
cost an average of about $11,000 per residential customer affected. Undergrounding all main trunk com-
mercial feeders (those feeding business and office areas, etc.) in Florida would cost an average of about
$37,000 per commercial customer affected.

Costs in any particular situation could vary widely from these estimates depending upon electric system
design, construction standards, customer density, local terrain, construction access issues, building type,
and service type. Existing studies estimate the wholesale conversion of overhead electric distribution sys-
tem to underground would require that electricity rates increase to approximately double their current
level, or possibly more in areas with a particularly low customer density. '

! References are intentionally left out of this Executive Summary. They are included throughout the main body of the report.

““hase 1 Final Report Page 2 of 59

Page 168



InfraSource

Further Costs Must Be Incurred to Obtain Complete Aesthetic Benefits

Nearly every study and examination of overhead to underground conversion notes in some manner that
removing the poles, overhead lines and equipment, and in some cases above-ground facilities required for
the overhead utilities will improve the visual appeal ~ the aesthetics — of an area, be it residential or com-
mercial property. Opinions and analytical studies of the value of this aesthetic improvement differ widely
as to results, but no studies examined in this report conclude that aesthetics had a quantifiable monetary
benefit that substantially affected the overall benefit-to-cost ratio for the conversion.

Regardiess, there is no doubt that some municipal governments, developers, businesses, and homeowners
value the aesthetic improvement brought about by undergrounding of utilities very highly. This is evident
because some choose pay the cost differential for underground service themselives (for new construction).

The electric systern conversion costs discussed above would nor always provide aesthetic improvement
without additional expenses to convert third-party utilities such as telephone and cable television to un-
derground. The costs necessary to relocate all remaining utilities underground is most often estimated at
somewhere between 10% and 30% beyond the cost of the electric conversion.

Undergrounding Provides 2 Number of Benefits

In return for the considerable expense, electric customers can receive a number of potential benefits from
the undergrounding of their overhead systems. The following is a list of benefits most often mentioned in
undergrounding reports and studies:

Patential Benefits of Underground Electric Facilities
Improved aesthetics;

Lower tree trimming cost;

Lower storm damage and restoration cost;

Fewer motor vehicle accidents;

Reduced live-wire contact;

Fewer outapes during normal weather,;

Far fewer momentary interruptions;

Improved utility relations regarding tree trimming;
Fewer structures impacting sidewalks,

~~* Phase 1 Final Report Page 3 of 59

Page 169



A
4 b

InfraSource

Undergrounding Has a Number of Potential Disadvantages

There are a number of potential disadvantages which need to be considered whenever the conversion of
overhead facilities to underground is evaluated. The following is a list of potential disadvantages most
often mentioned in undergrounding reports and studies:

Potential Disadvantages of Underground Electric Facilities

e Stranded asset cost for existing overhead facilities;

Environmental damage including soil erosion, and disruption of ecologically-sensitive habitat;
Utility employee work hazards during vault and manhole inspections;

Increased exposure to dig-ins;

Longer duration interruptions and more customers impacted per outage;

Susceptibility to flooding, storm surges, and damage during post-storm cleanup;

Reduced flexibility for both operations and system expansion;

Reduced life expectancy

Higher maintenance and operating costs;

Higher cost for new data bandwidth.

f ® & & € & & » @

Financing Options

The reports and references reviewed in this report all conclude that undergrounding incurs a very substan-
tial additional cost compared to that for overhead distribution, even as they differed on what that cost was
and how much of it was justified based on the benefits obtained. Ultimately, those undergrounding costs
must be paid if the conversion is to be done. There are many funding options to cover these costs, and
selecting the most appropriate financing approach is & critical part of the overall undergrounding process.
The following are methods of financing that are most often cited in reports and studies (combinations of
these options can be used as well):

Basic Finaneing Options
Customer funded;

Higher electricity rates;
Higher taxes;

Special tax districts;
Utility set-asides;
Federal funding;
Private sector funded.

® o % © 9 9 9

Overall Conclusion

The Florida Public Service Commission as well as many municipalities and electric customers in Florida
are interested in undergrounding electric distribution systems in order to improve aesthetics, improve reli-
ability of service, and reduce vulnerability to hurricane damage. The benefits associated with improved
aesthetics are not quantifiable. Without considering aesthetics, no study reviewed in this report concludes
that wholesale conversion of overhead electric distribution lines to underground can be fully cost justi-
fied.

:nt Phase 1 Final Report Page 4 of 59

Page 170



{4 p
InfraSource

In summary, a review of the body of public knowledge on the undergrounding of electric distribution fa-
cilities reveals the following:

Summary of Literature Review on Electric Distribution Underground Conversion

¢ No state is requiring extensive undergrounding of existing distribution facilities;

» Conversion of overhead facilities to underground is rarely 100% justified on the basis
of costs and guantifiable benefits;

s Ex post analyses on actual underground conversion projects have not been done;

» Few studies address the potential negative impacts of undergrounding;

» Few studies consider strengthening existing overhead systems as a potential cost-
effective alternative to underground conversion;

¢ There are almost no academic or industry publications that address storm reliability
modeling of electric distribution systems;

s Until last year, there was no academic or industry literature that addressed failure
rates during hurricanes as a function of hurricane strength;

»  Existing research on mitigating the impacts of major storms on electric distribution
systems is not sufficient for use in a detailed study.

- ~»nt Phase 1 Final Report Pege 5 of 59

Page 171



Final Report

jrounding Assessment Phase 2 Report:
Undergrounding Case Studies

Prepared for: Florida Electric Utilities
Prepared by: infraSource Technology
Contact: Richard Brown, PhD, PE

richard brown@infrascurceinc.com
4070 Weslchase Blvd., Suite 375
Raleigh, NC 27607

918-861-1019 (V)

§10-757-1705 (F)

August 6™ 2007




4 b
InfraSource

Executive Summary

This report presents‘the results of Phase 2 of a three phase project to investigate the implications of con-
verting overhead electric distribution systems in Florida fo underground (referred to as undergrounding).
The purpose of Phase 2 is to examine the costs and benefits of actual undergrounding projects that have
been completed. The focus is to identify the drivers of each project; discuss the challenges of each project;
and to collect data that can serve as a real-world basis for the ex ante modeling in Phase 3. A summary of
the four case studies examined in Phase 2 is shown in Table A.

Table A, Summary of Case Studies

. . Year of Cirenit Miles of Circuit Miles of
Project Uriiity Conversion Cenverted Overhead New Underground
Pensacola Beach Gulf Power 2006 2.6 6.8
Sand Key Progress Energy Florida 1986 1.8 1.7
Allison Island Florida Power & Light 2000 0.5 1.0
County Road 30A Cheleo 2006 0.8 0.8

A review of the case studies reaches the same conclusion reached in the Phase 1 literature review: the ini-
tial cost to convert overhead distribution fo underground is high, and there is insufficient data to show that
this high initial cost is 100% justifiable by quantifiable benefits such as reduced O&M cost savings and
reduced hurricane damage. Increased data collection can potentially increase the amount of quantifiable
benefits, but it is unlikely that thege benefits will 100% justify high initial cost, except potentially in 2 situa-
tion where an undergrounded system is struck by multiple severe hurricanes. For all of these case studies,
by far the strongest reason for undergrounding is to improve the aesthetics of the area. Additional observa-
tions relating to these case studies include:

»  All case studies occurred in coastal areas.
Two of the four projects were done in conjunction with roadway widening projects.
More circuit miles of underground are sometimes built than the original overhead amount. This is
typically to create an underground loop that increases operational flexibility and the ability to re~
spond to faults, _
Cost per circuit mile figures corresponds to those identified in the Phase | literature search.
Cost per customer varies widely based on both the cost per circuit mile and the amount of high
density housing such as high rise condominiums.

Not much data is available on the impact of the case studies on non-storm reliability and hurricane per-
formance. The little data that is available indicates that non-storm reliability is not significantly different
after undergrounding, and that hurricane reliability of underground systems is not perfect due to storm
surge damage.

For these case sfudies, there is an extensive amount of project description and project cost data, but limited
avoided cost and benefit data. These case studies can certainly be used as an input for an ex ante model, but
there is not sufficient data to compare the output of the ex ante mode) to historical realized benefits, There
is not even enough data to determine upper and lower bounds of potential results. At this point, any ex anfe
model that is developed, such as the one to be developed in Phase 3, must be justified by its model assump-
tions rather than by its ability to replicate realized benefits from any of these case studies.

sment Phase 2 Final Report Page 2 of 40

Page 173



Final Report

Undergrounding Assessment Phase 3 Report:
Ex Anfe Cost and Benefit Modeling

Prepared for: Fiorida Electric Utilities
Prepared by: Quanta Technoiogy

Contact: Le Xu, PhD
u@quanta-tachnology.com

Richard Brown, PhD, PE
rhrown@quantaechnatogy.com
4020 Westchasa Blvd,, Suite 300
Raleigh, NC 27507

918-334-3021 {Dffice}

510-767-1705 (Fax)

May 215 2008

Page 174



Executive Summary

This report is the Phase 3 deliverable ofa praject awarded in response to RFP #0-1 issued by the Florida
Electric Utilities. RFP #U-1 was a result of Florida Public Service Commission Order No. P5C-06-0351-
PAA-EL, which directs each investor-owned electric utility in Florida to establish a plan that increases
collaborative research to further the devélopment of siorm-resilient electric utility infrastructure and tech-
nologies that reduce storm restoration cests and interruptions to customers, Municipal electric and coop-
erative electric utilities are participating voluntasily.

The scope of the overall project (all three phases) is-to investigate the implications of converting overhead
electric distribution systems in Florida to underground (referred o as undergrounding). The primary focus
of the project is the impact of undergrounding on the performance of the electric infrastructure during
hurricanes, which is the ability of the Jocal power system o withstand high winds, storm surges, and other
damage from hurricanés and'to minimize the number and duration“of customer nterruptions. This study
also considers benefits and jssues with regards to performance during non-storm situiations,

The project-is divided:into three: phases. Phase ] i3:amEr walysis: of Eexisting._{c_zse_a;;r;h, reports, method-
i m’ef_‘g%t)mzding‘A{i’sés.w}réf;(.PhaSe I Final Report:
ic Distribution Overhead 1o, Under rornd Conversion, was is-

| project case: studies in Florida,

pecific undergrovnding
nent Phase 2 Fingl:Rep L Undergrounding Case Stud-

ologies, and case studies. The Phase J:+finaj report,
Literature Review and. nalysis of Elect
sued on February 28":2007. Phase 2
The Phase 2 final report, Undergrounding Asse:

fes, was issued on Augiist 6™

-specific undergrounding
ormal weather assess-
4 of utifity capital and
. that:allows for the calcula-
A fTowehart of th methodology is shown in

ment and hurricane assessment.
operationa] cost information. [t also 1
tion of customer interruption in rmati
Figure A-1. il

The hurricane mode! determines infrastructure damage and related costs associated with tropical storms
of hurricane strength when making Jandfall in Florida. To perform. & cost and benefit analysis of sufficient
detail to meet the objectives:of this project. itds necessary to simulate furriearies moving across Florida,
Therefore, a large component of the hurricane model i dedicated to simuiating hurricane years. For each
year of simulation, the number of {andfal) hurricanes is randomly determined based.on historical huarri-
cane data. For each hurricane (if any), the landfal] location, direction, speed, strength, and other parame-
ters are also randomly determined based on historical hurricane data.

When a hurricane makes landfall, a storm strge model determines the amount of infrastructure damage
that oceurs in susceptible areas due to the wall of water (Le., storm surge) that the hurricane pushes onto

coastal areas,

As the hurricane travels over land, the simulation model keeps track of the fastest wind gusts to which
each location is exposed. This determines the amount of wind damage that occurs during the hurricane.
The model is fiexibie enough to consider many ‘types of construction with many types of wind loading
characteristics. This includes standard construction (e.g.. Grade B, Grade 3. “hardenad” systems, and

others,

nent Phase 3 Report Final Report Page 2 of 97

Page 175



| Utility ;
.: o Iesle : Cost )
( Fair Weather Customer 1o ??ta!m
.| Performance Cost ug C?STJ

r N
Utilty | |

Restoration
Cost

Restoration ( Custc»mer\
Model L Cost I

Figure A-1. Overview of Methodology

Siorm Surge
Damags

For each simulated hurricane, the model determines the amount of damage both for the proposed project
area and for the entire service territory of the associated utility. Damage for the entire service terfitory is
needed to determine the total utifity restoration time. which then determines the restoration time for the

proposed project area.

Onee the total hurricane damage is determined for the entire profect area, a restoration mode! is used to
determine when repairs on the proposed project area begin and end. This restoration mode! includes fac-
tors such as startup inefficiencies {e.g., due o debris on roads), crew ramp up, and the difference between
overhead crews and underground craws.

The hurricane damage and restoration modets provide information that allows for the calculation of utility
restoration costs, customer interruptions, and the customer costs associated with the interruptions. Tiken
together, the utility and customer costs constitute the total costs of the hurricane as it relates to elecuric

utility infrastructure,

After simulating the costs and benefits of all hurricanes in a specific hurricane vear, additional hurricane
years can be simulated. Many simulated vears will have no hurricanes and will therefore have no hurri-
cane costs. Some simulated years will have & single weak hurricane and will therefore have small hurri-
cane costs. Some simulated years will have multiple major hurricanes and will therefore have significant
hurricane costs. Simulating many hurricane vears allows the average hurricane cost 1o be computed.

nent-Phase 3 Repori Finadl Repor{ Page 3 of 97

T T R s v -

Page 176



/Sfatus Ciygo Utility Cost
» Capital

« O&M

\_# Cther

Net
Uitility
Cost

(" Underground Utility Cost
= Capital -

L= O&M

k- Ofher

/Status Quo Customer Cost 3

s Normal weather
s Hurricanes-

\_® Other . . Net
. b Customer
" Undergrount Customer Cost ) Benefit

= Norma! weather
& Hurricanes
\_* Other y.

Figure A-2. Approach to:Cost and Benefit Calculations

The output of the simulation is & list of initial utility costs, annual wility costs, custorner interruption min-
utes during normal weather, and customer interruption minutes during hurricanes. The model is flexible
enough to accommodate any cost category that can be characterized by initial cost and/or a recurring an-
nudl cost.

The mods] ig deswned tocompare two-cases, Typleally, this will be the “status quo™ case and a proposed
undernroundmg option Hurricane simulaiions.are performed automatically for both cases so that costs
and reliability differences can be compared. This approach is shown in Fi gure A-2,

Consider a situation where a utility is considering an undergrounding, project. When assessing this pro-
ject, the uiility will first enter information about the existing system.. This altows the current-utility costs,
refiability performzmce and customer costs to bé calculated. The utility alsc enters information about the
undergroundinig ‘project including the #nitial cost, annual costs, annual savings, and so forth. The assess-
ment is then able Lo simulate the performance of he undergrounded system and compute associated utitity
costs, reliability performance, and customer costs. The diffurenc;ﬁ:..z' utility cost between the status quo
and the proposed scenario is defined as the net utility cost. The .dif rerice in.reliability performance is
defined as net reliability benefit. When reliability benefit is translated into customer cost, it is defined as
net customer cost. Net reliability benefit and net customer eost, taken together, constitute net customer
benefit.

Thescenario comparison in Fzgw‘c A-2 is.flexible and does not necessarily have to be used to compare
the status quo o a plopoaed underground Jproject..For example it could be used to compare the status quo
to a proposed “hardened over]xead pro]nc,t where existing overhead structures are reinforced to better
withstand wind damage. 1t could .also be used to.compare a proposed undergrounding project to a pro-
posed hardened overhead project. Generally, the frameworll is suitahie to compare any given “Scenario
A" with another given “Scenario B.” This aliows u range of options to be explored and compared based

ssessment Phase 3 Report Final Report : Page 4097

Page 177



on their incremental cost above the next least expensive option and their incremental benefit above the
next least expensive option.

The methodology described above has been implemented in a Microsoft Excel {version 2003) spreadsheet
with embedded computer programming. 1t can be run on any computer with Excel. A detailed user guide
fo this spreadsheet is provided in Section 2 in the body of this report, and the spreadsheet is applied to
four Florida case studies in Section &.

As concluded in Phase 2 report, there is not sufficient data for the four Florida case studies to compare the
output of the ex ante model to historical realized benefits. There is:not even enough data to determine up-
per and lower bounds of potential results. Analyzing the cases studies with the modsl:is.done to provide
insights into how different variables affect costs and benefits of undergrounding; the purpose is not 1o
replicate actual realized benefits or to anticipate future benefits.

[t must be understood that the methodology requires the user to input many parameters and many assump-
tions. For many of these parameters and assumptions, there is little basis in historical data and expert
Judgment must be used. It is beyond the scope of this project to recommend parameters and assumptions.
The spreadsheet should be viewed as a “calculator” and it is the responsibility of the user to make appro-
priate decisions about uput parameters and assumptions.

i The methodology and corresponding tool described in this report should be viewed as a
| “calculator.” It is the responsibility of the user to make appropriate decisions about input
| parameters. '

Bven if utilities do not have a large amount of data from which to base assumptions and parameter selec-
tions, much insight can be gained by using the tool. In fact, the tool can be used to determine the sensitiv-
ity of results to certain assumptions and certain parameters.

The conversion of overhead ¢lectric power disiribution facilities to underground has been a topic of dis-
cussion in Florida for more than twenty vears. The topic has been studied, discussed, and debated many
times at the state, municipal, and local levels. Overhead construction is generatly the standard for new
censtruction, with developers or customers typically paying for any incremental cost for underground
construction. However, all investor-owned utilities are required to have a process where customers can
opt to underground existing overhead service by paving the incremental cost. For municipals and coop-
eratives, the decision to underground is left to local cilizen boards.

It is well-known that the conversion of overhead electric distribution systems to underground is costly,
and these costs almost always exceed quantifiable benefits. This conclusion is reached consistently in
many reports that range from state-wide stuifies to very small projects. However, there is no consistent
approach has been used o compute the costs and benefits of proposed undergrounding projects, making
studies difficult to interpret and use for making decisions.

As more areas in Florida begin 1o explore the possibility of underground conversion, it becomes increas-
ingly desirable to have a consistent methodology to assess the associated costs and benefits. Results from
a trusted approach can provide insight, lead to better projects, aid in customers communicating with uili-
ties, and potentialiy help guide certain regulatory approaches.

This report has presented a methodology capable of computing the costs and benefits of potential under-
grounding proiects. The methodology can also be used to conypule the costs and benefits of other activi-

nent Phase 3 Report Final Report Page 5 of 97

Page 178



ties that have an impact onhurricane performance such:as the hardening of overhead systems. The meth-
odology used a detailed simulation with the following components! hurricaris module, eqiipment damage
medule, restoration medule, and cost-benefit module. This methodology has been implementsd in a
spreadsheet application so that-it can be easily used by interested. parties.

The conversion of overhead ¢lfectric infrastructure to underground is of interest around the country and
arcund the world. Often times underground conversion proposals are gither pursued or rejected without a
systematic analysis of costs and benefits. The methodology presented in this report is an attempt to add
consistency, rigot, and thoroughness:to-these types- of analyses. At present, the-methodology is specific.to
the state of Florida;-but the general-approach is:valid wherever extreme weather events have the potential
towreck havoo on-electricity infrastructure,

ssessment Phase 3 Report Final Report : Page 6of 97

Page 179



12030012 Would Bufyiﬁg Power Lines Reduce Power Outages? | NPR Attachment "3D"

Youmust be logged into leave a comment. Loght/ Register

NPR.org Community rules terms of use
Terms of Use Privacy Policy Community FAQ
8 comments o
Wemmenis for this threed are now ciosed. =
Clssuselsn | Commurzy Zmzre - P
o

Thad Moyseowicz -
Hived in @ major northern European city as an expat from 2003-09, a cily located

at about the same latitude as Winnipeg and which buries its power cables, a city in an area
with a very high water table (ever see the piciures of the waterlogged WWI Flanders Fields
trenches?). I've come back to my country which during my leenage years landed men on
tihe moon, and for a bit over a year have been in my nice upscale neighborhood in the
greater DC area which adheres to the practice of hanging power cables off of cregsoted
pine poles, no doubt because it's a tried and true technology. Twice in the past 7 months
I've suffered power outages in excess of 12 hours esach [the first fram a winter snowstorm,
the most recent from Irene]. | never suffered a power outage in Europe (but | lost a major
tree to a storm). Mr. Kury is absolutely correct that it would cost to transition to the more
intelligent practice 'l even stipulats to his estimate. But he's on shaky ground when he
invokas heat dissipation as a problem {the engineers in the country | lived in somehow
managed to lick that). It is disheartening to return to a country whose infrastructure was

once the world's envy but is now Third World,
~ Share s

Michae! Ossar -

You forgot to ask Mr. Kury why we can't revise building codes to require that ali

“new” housing developments have buried power lines. Presumably the costs to bury power
lines along with cable, sewer and other services in & new developmant would be much less

that that of retrofitting existing communities. Somehow | don't remember seeing lots of utility
poles in Paris, London, Berlin or any other European city. How come Slavenia can afford

this sensible idea but the USA cannot?

- Bharg

Ted Kury -
f apologize if it wasn't clear, but the issue of heat dissipation is not & matter of

technical feasibility. We bury power lines all of the time, We know liow to do it It is a matter
of expense. however, as you're not jus! talking about burying an extension cord in the dirt,

- Shars

ek Do 2 TOBI 28 auva L rn s wuwiu gurying-powerdinesreduce-powergulages s

Page 180



120012 Would Burying Power Lines Reducae Power Qutages? - NPR

Ted Kury -

| think that the intereest in the subject is great, but it's pretty unrealistic to think

that you can cover it all in a ten minute interview, especially when it's edited down {o four
minutes. Overall, [ think that the NPR staff did a great job condensing the interview io the
major points. @MC: I'd love to know that too, but the date are deemed proprietary. f's a
great question and would make a great paper. @Mitch: The success stories of
undergrounding are myriad, but | stand by my statement that the guestion of whether to
underground lines depends on a lot of factors. Undergrounding is not a universal best
practice. @Martin: | actually said that it takes policymakers {on behalf of customers,
generally}, regulators, and utilities all working together, and that ne oneg group can
accomplish anything unilaterally. That's how we've been able o accomplish everything
we've done in Florida. @Michael; It ali comes down to what you're willing to pay. Do you

know what they pay for electricity in Europe? Twice what we da. That will not fiy here.
- Shares

Emacee 1701 - -

| see some missed points here, as well:

I've seen old pictures.of New York with above-ground power lines. #t would be interesting to
know how/why the decision was made to bury power and other utility lines.

| grew up where powers and utifity lines were always above ground. Now, the system seems
much more vuinerable o outages, not just in extremely severe weather but power goes out
in roufine bad weather. I've always suspected that the utilities decided it was cheaper for
them to fix things after an outage than to update, upgrade and mainiain the system to
prevent outages. I'd really iove to see NPR find out if (1) outages have become more
common and more lengthy and (2) if utilities are praclicing deferred maintenance of their
infrastructures.

< Share s

Mifch Dion - -

Advantages of Underground - While paper
http:/fwww.underground2020.org/documents/Advantages %200f%20Undergrounding %20 Ut
09.pdf

- Bhare>

Mitch Dion - .

NPR you let him off without following the money. Mr. Kury, like the investor owned

utilities that control distribution and iransmissicn lines seemed io dismiss the real reliablity

advantages for buried lines in favor of the industry spin fo support their profits, The life

cycle costs and the reductions in unquantifiable health impacts from EMR far out weigh the

short falls of periodic floeding that generally do not occur in well constructed utility vaults

(outside of a flood zong). Here in Fallbrook CA, we prefer them buried - too bad San Diego
4 Electric is not interested in real savinas - iust prafil. NPR follow the money for the

WERNRLOIGI20 1 vvorear v et 67 iwonit-burjing-powerlinasreduce-power-auiages 45

Page 1



Wouid Buring Power Lines Reduce Power Qutages? | NPR

real story.
< Share -

Martin Lagon -
Mr. Kury said that the public utility commissions had a large part in this. After Isabel

in 2003, | discussed the matter with the Maryland PUC members. | suggested they take
sieps fo require BG&E begin in & yrs and beyond to bury a percentage of their old lines per
year. That PUC said they were not "empowered” to make such a recommendation. We
spend 4 days in the dark. and | know it's happening again. | live in Denver Colorado now
and guess what - it's very hard to find lines on poles here, at least in the parts | travel, and

outages eccur much much less.
- Shares

W NDOrg/201 GBI 14004 L o s watild-butyingpowerlinesmdusespoweroutages &5

Page 182



Would Burying Power Lines Reduce Power Outages? : NPR Attachment "3E"

Would Burying Power Lines Reduce Power Qutages?

August 28, 2011 textsize A A A

Hurricane frene left about 7 million homes and businesses without power. But could that number
have been reduced if more power lines were buried? Robert Siegel speaks with Ted Kury, director
of energy studies at the University of Florida's Public Utility Research Center, about the
advantages and costs of buried power lines,

Copyright © 2011 Naticnaf Public Radio. For personal, noncommercial use only. See Terms of Use. For other uses. prior
permission reqtiired,

ROBERT SIEGEL, host: Having grown up in a densely populated area - in fact, in the most densely
populated neighborhood of our most densely populated city - | am still a little puzzded by downed
power lines. Growing up, | figured that electricity, like water and subway trains, was something that
traveled underground, and that meant no unsightly polls and cables running up and down First
Avenue in Manhattan, no occasional outage due to a drunk driver crashing his Volvo into a poll
and no fear that trees that snapped during snowstorms and hurricanes would fall on power lines
and cut off electricity.

So with so many power lines felled by Hurricane Irene, we ask: Why don't we bury more power lines
than we do? And we're going to put that question out to Ted Kury, who is director of energy studies
at the University of Florida's Public Utility Research Center.

Welcome to the program.

TED KURY: Thank you.

SIEGEL: And | gather the answer is money. How expensive is it?

KURY: Certainly the cost is going to depend on the geography and the density of the region. Arute
of thumb that we use down here in Florida is roughly a million doltars per mile.

SIEGEL: A million dollars per mile underground. And, say, above ground?
KURY: Well, that would be roughly the incremental cost.

SIEGEL: The incrementat cost. 've heard the ratio 10 to 1 tossed around. That it's ten times more
expensive to bury power lines than to run them above ground.

KURY: Ten to one is probably not a bad back in the envelope number.

SIEGEL: So it costs a great deal more to bury cables, but then again you don't routinely lose
service in snow storms or hurricanes. Don't the costs of maintaining above ground lines start to
add up?

KURY: Well, they do, but you're not really eliminating risk completely when you underground the
power lines. You're simply trading off one type of risk for another. Yes, you've mitigated the risk of

WWW,NPL.OrGI24 11 1081281140042 767 iwould-durying-power-inesteduce-power-outages 1S

Page 183



12/10/12  Would Burying Power Lines Reduce Power Outages? : NPR

iosing power because of a failure in the pole or a tree getting biown into the lines. But you've
traded that risk off for outages due to storm surge or to flooding.

SIEGEL.: But underground aren't there other things already there in many of these same
communities, say, you know, television cables underground?

KURY: Certainly. But you still have the expense of digging everything up again. And burying a
power line underground, there are certain allowances that you have to make. When electricity fiows
through a distribution line or a transmission line it generates heat. And out in the air that heat is
aliowed to dissipate, but underground you have to make other allowances for basically cooling
those lines.

SIEGEL: Do you think that the argument in favor of burying lines is in large part an aesthetic one?
That only utilities think a utility pole is a thing of beauty?

KURY: Well, | think that people tend to only think about the reliability of the electric system when
the power goes out. So most of the time - | would guess - when communities are making the
decision to pay for power lines to be underground primarily it's aesthetic, because effectively you
don't see the power lines every day if they're buried underground. Where any reliability benefit that
may accrue is not even really obvious when there's a storm event.

SIEGEL: From what I'm hearing you say, | wouldn't expect any change here in American practice
about whether power lines go underground or above ground.

KURY: Well, the problem is it's very difficult for a utility to unilaterally make that decision. Ultimately,
the utility is responsible to the Public Service Commission of that particular state, who will assess
whether a utilities expenditure was prudent. So it really does take a collective effort between
policymakers and regulators and the uiilities themselves to affect any kind of change. It really is an
effort where everyone has to work together.

SIEGEL: Well, Ted Kury, thanks for talking with us about lines underground and above ground.
KURY: Thank you very much, Robert.

SIEGEL: Mr. Kury is director of energy studies at the Public Utility Research Center at the
University of Florida.

(SOUNDBITE OF MUSIC)

MELISSA BLOCK, host: You are listening to ALL THINGS CONSIDERED.

Caopyright © 2011 Natianal Public Radio. All rights reserved. No quotes from the materials contained herein may be used in any
media without attribution to National Public Radio. This transcripl is provided for personal, noncommercial use only. pursuarnt
to our Terms of Use. Any other use requires NPR's prior permission. Visit our permissions page for further infarmaltion.

NPR transcripis are created on a rush deadline by a contractor for NPR, and accuracy and availability may vary, This text may
not be in its final form and may be updated or revised in the future. Please be aware thal the authoritative record of NPR's
programming is the audio.

W NPT.oTQ/ 201 1/0B/ 281 4004216 Hiwoun-burying-powerlinesreduce-poweroutages 25

Page 184



Page 185

AR WILSOHACETTY Bl

Utility workers in Szaside Heights, Nul., making pole repaire after the destruetion caused by Hurricane Sandy.

This artiéle is by Biane Cardwell, Matthew L. Wald and
Chrigtopher Drew.

After Hurricane Sandy wreaked havoc with power sys-
temps in the Northeast, many consumers and public officials
complained that the electric utilities had done far too little 1o
protect their equipment from violent sterms, which forecast-
ers have warned could strilee with Increasing frequency.

But from @ utiliny's perspective, the cold hard math is

this: it is wypically far cheaper for the company,-and s cus-
tomers, 1o skip the prevention measures and just clean up the
megs afterward,

Consolidated Edison, fur example, expects o spend as
much as $450 million:to repair damages to its electric grid in
and arount New York City. Since niilitiss are generally al-
lowed o recover their costs tiwough elecric rates, customer
bills-in the region, which typically ran abeut 850 a month for
residental customers, would limve to rise by almust 3 pereent
for thrae years-to cover those expenses alons,

Folly stormproofing the sysiem — sinking powser lines, el
evating substations and otherwise hardening equipment
against damage from torrential winds and wideepread food-
ing - could zasily cost 100 times as much, For Con 24, carry-

ing out'just one measure — putting al} of it elecirle hnes e
derground — waould cost-arount $40 billien, the company est-
mates. To recover those costs, electric raies would probalidy
have to triplefor g decade or more, according to Kevin Burke,
Con Ed's chief executive.

Avoiding such farge investments is also appealing for an-
other reasomn: the federal government has sometimes halped
bail put utiities after catastrophes, like the Sapt, 1 terrer at
tacks and Hurricane Watring. It may do so again this fime =
response to pleas from the governors of Mew York and New
Jersey.

S1il, thereare signs that the devastation canset by Hueri-
cane Sandy is upending the. traditional cost-beneil calelde-
tions.

The Northeast has been hit by three Iig storms m jus

aver a year, gnd forecasters say that so-catfed 100-vear storms
are likely to occur move frequently.
Uilities and pelicy makers can see hal o SUrge

poses a previously unexpeeted threat o the po

And there s growing recognition that the

ruptions, in terms of gasoline lines, lost workds;
Continped on Page &




‘plus
sus JSud 01 sany i saafudaged
ING Sy B HALILURAT [RIGpa)
2T woap 188 uvs B aloW Ay L,

2108 B4 B YEEM
HHm Rioa A DIRS SanR0
AN jo paeog Aaslap men sl
UD JELOUWRCL § KOS 1] SuuEsy

aaviddy ms v ssaaduo)
3R Pl i) 0) Funaagmy
TMEEI IR

30} 8 1ue1 19100 U1 UGG $)S Leth
asou o sued uciodde o3 siQe
T pRom DALY [lE
. AR MBN B SO0
-r3a0® i apys spafosd Lumn
g1 loasp of Ajeotioady plRss
uoi gr CssaiBuol 0y pesed
-asdh g, RG0S Jepe
PRt rUEEEL ST ADLI0as
OF $E4308 [USITALUR PUB PHURPING
0% 101 a4w so0d DU ‘SaNE) S
-0 yBnoap 1o} pivd R KW
-gataduy S5O OpEE aus ‘Sl
JBE1Y progie 41 B[R A 10U Avwt
eplosd Faved g ‘siolesouald
paiaaey Ang uSng 16 SHeHIEN
$O UL By} RIS G SHEY T
un waxe Sed 03 fddey ogq winu
stdosd  awoednn-uy CsWPep

xe) s 10pPISU0) pHioys wi
jwatiged Py ual oS DUS Jans
-84 pRags B, & o pedpnl 5t AR
RO 5D 1EAS DLnapd a4l
‘patitile
-xalin LS uadg sABI] MOU 1)
U 3 suopganh sgauel pasied
salseat dapuoanid 0 S0
WL DL LS EOISSILILD AATHE
aand Bl Aloer  SiDLNSHOS
Sjuasaidal Gy [BIIEG SIEIN DUy
-RLep aip ‘Apowae)y I Blg
SMEA 3N YFD A 0] s3u
83y oy o ued suossuauses
RiEl il pu ) Ie) fed ol oo
- UED Af3 LDDAL A0 B0 114D
Lpowoepan fpn Loy ‘papaau
8 vonusaad atew e g8
S0 BIHMSUGY Luvns J1 Baag
aastd 2101321 01 S12as yseldogs
ABT puu Sabyun wmy &g uoles
-RReY Jood ud SRIpdr pasio
-6} 3335 et fsiean Slomm
-Hal pur asdue ayad o7 w das
-IAf AR W auasT auestimg) Rug
PR SULICE 10 £31135 B Aaly
LE13FpNa pau
-] Anead g Supeeado 3z, Loy
pug quass Lpgegosd-s0] B o8y
S1LAPOUNP At L, yBmasikg w4
S5 uojialy ek 3w 2t

Squp uotstony ABrsug puu almw
-1y By 1@y sl Jo so1eap ‘oed
ity Jaleie e pis Jsimelou
- A0 Y 240 Saxoq donoun]
pue suohesyns Sugpijaul sen
ST BUARILpUG EeE s
Apadiis BN WD 1R pooss
Shapht Afepra Sjuad $ea 1),

G018 diygdony
-RE ) spRo by iy ag o
PoLESBRE Yeia suelER aaaoad o3
Gugpuads peBeinaisig shel suots
suuuios faepiiag pue suels
suted pue CaBip WA agka
7osBRfpues por Tweius-aea
e aiw) pEsiog) saky SaDHEs

._.E._EE Q0EE YoTat PIReD L0 DY oL $1500 SAN D S1g pris

Auudion seoy 5 230D 3L

5 3G ng sUl Je wesorjery ydiey

FIAT ioT

%:mou SuLIapisuod saw sa1In 891818 EURI N k.mﬂﬂtfmn._ L4 GBI .:mmm: A0} 238 &

AT v

CRECE DV BN ERIICIITE TR MM AT

Spenuntpea), unuig uaflunia
dufe B 1eagos uopuhaa it plow
3o sumssnasly syl ysng
ALY SBGLULEGOE
3P0 4 A0 DU DALE 0 ddiie)
PIGI IR UOGHIS AU B pERg

03 ‘sueatrid s Fuuap sefies
BLIOE L4 1D W0 ISP
-1584 ISOLU SIS CHIUAMHY WA}

BREL pLUn| niaeg s RESd
“aflwgzo Jog s g oni
Satepunpal JdeteasB pyng o3 og
PHROD s 31 UUlOs 2mjeey

peioit]
Jand

wasellip 01 pawmed st
Faage fmenwys  Bumgy MR
HoBE DING 01 UO{IN (ZIE L
LTSRS AT UDKD PULG ©) Uy
1 W13 1560 plaas
) POIULES BSSOYRT ALY
SAUOE PODE] RS- B0
NS UL — SashOLSIG PR sy
Aumpr 0y uopRINSIy Jop patnp
-a1 wie safeyos 2omed sy

symod 493 [eondY - sUoh
SEISUNS [BILIOOEE 6 AWIOS RAsL
o doyrats SULIDPISUGY Mok

@3 DS SIF O S g uoy
JHU HRES O Bl PGS ApURE auwd
~1EINE B a1ATRs Siunsas o)
§1563 5, 41400 31 1BYY Pies By
LCBANGISID OU ) L)
-TIOE 189Q B YIia B SweD waty
DUE - U R

sud gy Sungss oM DR EonE A
— SIS 4UUB Y5500 B Op pun 1500
oAy OIS WIRGHITO LY
e 2ai3d §1 0f 01 prau, SBOUENR
;i opue ssewmdss Aumn ‘s
-EsIEe] oniaacl el uyaw 1Byd
ushiua ), Wy BEELEay HoLp ples
LANLOISRD A0 27 e Kinn
ymdaey 5 fosdnp mnn Duedung
SR R oMl @ 15 oG
B 30 g Funerdo @y pu
waptsand ‘essoywy v oydey
‘BRS AL 13 PUE 13338
Suyas) Jeis ook g juod mnd
o 01 afEis  nod onn ndan
i, nimesn dutse) o1 ssoaead oy
padudwied Sasiape dHoue P
g1y 1addo W edigy uom sal
Al3A33G S0 S O SN M0
B O3 U0 B 08 10 R0 R Ag
sajed Suisole aster o1 sEndag
Fuae o d9ls RSN 3 AB
Uaad S, O wiRaep Lonnael
8,01838 AU} SULEIS [RIdAas Aq Wy
Sk puglie)y ey deald s
B TR ]
J0} ARd 03 — HACRA AU 1AL
28 sduipiad — sates duisp

son!
sl w)muw@mw

m:c:m. SIS JB1j0 PUB 10Ha0u
07 Iekiar Moly IOk MDn g

-uoo depy 03 pessend Apeuoinp
“ET AN D Ssrapyal jRakijog
SO L Jeg L S0U Ly

PBY 00U aa, 88 1L, T 000 3R
SUGHTRE [RIUSLIGADS 30 010e
A lusijear] fuasy ples Janus
-1SE5ET Y 30 tuss Bumad o) g
<81 pur Buasop sie sonnn
M OEIPI0BP MnkFand Bl

SULIGE
LA TSR S s
130104 G} Posn 9y pluoa ey S8
o uog [eeasd Juipngw i
e AriAGas G A0y pUOIE T
pasodatd unuyROSIUMIDE VURAG
sl PIE Jop Aggor OF BoIEugsua
07 A[UALI] YKL AOH 30 GUIUND

Buieyo

st jeij) g Gsdrayp
Tey AppeatdAl sae
dnueas jo §31800 Y ]

I LU a0 PR SR Ay
BRSNS RENS
) o) punoae Tuos S 80
SURESEHUEND TS0 YLD |, SERID
e RIS W L
P CSIAIGE i
-pjuilay 0 uoNUPGERY pEoBEN
sty 30 wapsard “soper g dipgd
SDIEEALAIS DI 3 pHEW
o iy iyl sy Buptsar el
10U Jo A0l YEUE 07 PSRU A
-saadsibasuos plaung

HEH) B FHIESE THNGIIE DI R

i

2

RUPI AT pun (1561 ARG g

e wn Jo esixd ap uey a8
ity sot g Toge S asndrd
S I J0 IS0 JjLeLOE D
B powmilIaap FAIEIS PRl
LIBISET DY U1 o PR WU
B4 IGG4R sadupag Jo Suapeay
jesoziipny w3 umay yoder 83
a1 ¥ aunisAy demod A 1enead
o1 juads sjuad poe siegop B 8
) uwgn geying g 8 i, 3
Sy Tupiaafs pop sy u

i
alling ssosny 15240 080

1 104

RIOURUI]

WVMMMMA% SUBOLLI ﬁm

L w,:..n.: A503

Page 186



n i
viEIGE New Look ai Underground Power Lines, Grid Upgrade - NJ' Spotiight Attachment 3G

TLEGH?

TR T
FOE R A O o ol @
GRS SO | TrOF

O

Sandy Spurs New Look at Underground Power Lines, Grid Upgrade

State BPU chief warns NJ ratepayers would foot bill for ‘incredibly expensive’ measures

By Tom Johnson, Noverntber 21, 2012 in Energy & Envirenment

Hurricane Sandy has prompted utility regulators to take a
newlook at measures New Jersey has shied away from in
the past — including replacing some above-ground power
_lineswith underground systems -- largely because of the
huge price tag that likely would jack up electric rates for
CONsSUmMers.

in the next-fewmonths, the state Board of Public Utilities,
however, plans to explore the possibility of "selective”
burying of underground lines. It also will examine whether to
require utilities to create a “smarter” power grid, a step some
say would lead o faster restoration of power in the wake of
powerful storms like Sandy.

Neither of those options would be cheap. in the past, for
»: instance, the BPUhas balked at allowing Public Service
Credit-PSEGpics  lectric & Gas, the staie’s largest ulility, lo take steps toward

creating a “smart”
grid, primarily because of projected costs running into :
hundreds of millions of dollars. Relatedlinks

%

New Jarsey's Aging Power Piants Another

The reassessment, which will include public hearings around |
Casualty of Sandy

the state, comes'in the wake of a hurricane which left a
record 2.7 million customers without power, some for as Opinion: What Sandy Should Have Taught
long as 14 days. On the hard-hit barrier islands along the Us

Jersey Shore, many are-stiil without any electricity or gas

) : Storm Costs Won't Necessarily Spali
service, some notto be restored until next month.

Budget Disasier

Beyond burying overhead power lines and creating a | Uiiities Restore Power After Storm But
smarter grid, the state agency also plans to determine what | @tepayers Will Fick Up the Bill
needs 1o be done to relocate, elevate or harden electric
utility substations and switching stations.

All told, Hurricane Sandy flooded 58 utility substations, more than four times the number ficoded
during Hurricane Irene, according to BPU President Bob Hanna. When those substations are knocked
out of service, tens of thousands of customers lose power.

“We're going to think very seriously about moving substations or elevating them,” Hanna said at the
first public meeting of the BPU since Sandy made landfall on Cct, 29 near Atlantic City. *it happened
once; it can't happen again.”

Actually, it already ocourred during Hurricane Irene, when 14 utility substations in low-lying areas were
flopdnr Inmdin~ins wddaenragd cutages.

nispotlightcorm/stonies o .,.~_'G!sémdy-bspurs-new«icek—at-unée-rgroﬁndmtiliiy lings-upgrade-of -grid/

Page 187



yiBerd New Look at Undergreund Power Lines, Grid Upgrade - KJ Spotlight

in falking about how the state should respond in the aftermath of Sandy, which claimed the lives
of 37 New Jerseyans, Hanna detailed a range of other issues which need to be addressed -- from
improving communication from electric utilities to local officials to better vegetation-management
practices to reduce outages caused by falling tree limbs.

“The board has much work to do,” Hanna conceded.

One of the big issues facing the state is weighing the cests and benefits of improving the utility
infrastructure to respond more quickly to storms fike Sandy, which will almost certainly happen again,
he said.

"Extreme weather is a fact of life” he said. “It's going to continue to occur.”
Hanna's fellow BPU commissioner, Jeanne Fox, echoed those comments,

‘'m-haping and praying that Sandy is & wakeup call,” said Fox, while saying the hurricans was not
directly a result of global climate change.

Burying power lines would be “incredibly expensive,” Hanna said, adding that it would cost “billions of
doliars™ if the state tried to: bury all overhead lines in New Jersey, a process that would involve ripping
up: raost roads and front lawns.

He suggested the state needs to examine selective burying of underground lines after a detailed cost-
and-benefit analysis. Placing substation feeder cables might be one option, he added.

Creating a "smarter” grid weuld also result in additional costs for ratepayers, but Hanna noted that in
Delaware, where nearly the entire state has been converted to an upgraded power grid, utilities have
been better able to respond to power outages.

“We have to study the costs and benefits:of ali these items | mentioned and make sure they are worth
it," Hanna said.

PSE&G did a study several years ago and found that implementing a “smart” grid would cost the
average homeowner $200, according to Michael Jennings, a spokesman for PSEG Power. a subsidiary
of the company.

"These were balipark figures,” Jennings said. "There was a lot of opposition and we haven't pursued it
since.”

copyright €@ 2012-2013, nispallight. all rights resarved.

rispotlight.com/stones! 12001/ 20/ andy -8 purs-new-icok-at-underground-ulifity -ines-upgrade-of-grid/

Page 188



Attachment "4"




Attachment Y"SA"

b Ay,

%,
Mg
A

Town of Surfside

FPL Undergrounding Project
Frequently Asked (uestions (FAQs)
Surfside Florida Specific
January 9, 2013

Q: What is this undergrounding project about?

e

A: There are currenfly 23 miles of above ground electric cable, 537 poles and 278 overhead

transformers in Surfside. There are also miles of above ground AT&T and Atlantic Broadband
cables and related devices. All of this will be gone when the project is complete.

: What will replace all this?

A Fifty miles of electric cable, 24 waterproof electric switching devices, 307 fransformers and 22

splice boxes. There will also be boxes for cable and telephone. All cables will be underground
and any above ground boxes or switches will be located at 1ot lines to the best of ourability.

: Can I landscape around-of these boxes?

A: Yes, as long as the landscape does not deny access o the box.

2

>

: Why go to all this trouble?

First and foremost is reliability. Our above ground system is 50 years old and has been
depreciated to $104,000 on FPL’s books. Similar low numbers exist for cable and telephone.

Second. there is broad consensus that hurricane wind damage to below ground systems is much
less than above ground systems. Flood surge recovery has less consensus. That is why this project
includes waterproof switch gear boxes. The transformers on the ground are relatively easy to
replace compared to replacing a pole particularly if that pole is in a backyard.

Page 190



Q: Have there been any studies by independent groups oun the speed of recovery issue or the cost

A

effectiveness of these underground projects?

The‘re have been a number of studies and all reach different conclusions. These studies are
available on the Town website and you are invited to draw your own conclusions.

Q: What will this project cost?

: The project will cost $8.2 million including FPL, Atlantic Broadband and AT&T. Negotiations are

underway with the cable and telephone providers to lower their costs. FPL has reduced its costs by

25 percent due to the “hardening” of this system as required by Florida law and the Public Service
Commission.

Q: How will the Town pay for this?

>

> R B R

Depending on the cost reductions available from the cable and telephone companies, the cost will
be funded with a $12.00 per month surcharge on electric bills for residents and a $20 - $50 per
month surcharge for commercial businesses if the debt is paid off in 15 year. Ifit is paid off in 20
years, the cost will be $10.00 per month.

How many customers of FPL are there in Surfside?

There are 3501 residential customers and 230 commercial customers.

: Is it fair that folks who are already underground should help pay for this project?

Yes. The underground areas today were not paid for by the builders of the projects along Harding
and Collins Avenues so the underground cost was not included in the price of the original units.
These undergrounding costs were funded by the FDOT when Collins and Harding Avenues were
upgraded so everyone’s gas taxes paid the cost including non Surfside residents. Further, we are a
community where everyone will benefit by the aesthetic and reliability benefits and our downtown
will be much improved.

Will my property value increase when the project is complete?

Most likely, however, property values are governed by many complex factors including investment
in the property itself and the market factors for real estate in general.

: Okay, enough with the big picture. What will be in front of my house?

A: A six square foot transformer box painted green, located to the best of our ability on property lines.

You may also have a small telephone or cable box, however, these appear much less frequently
then the transformer boxes.

Page 191



Q: You just replaced a portion of my driveway for the water/sewer/storm drainage project.
Here we go again.

A: We understand. We will bore under your driveway and it will not need to be replaced.

Q: What about the street, you just repaved it?

A Tl:le Town spent $300,000 to install the conduits in any location where the former above ground
wires cross the street. FPL provided the conduit at no cost to the Town. The undergrounding
project will not need to break the new asphalt.

Q: Will my yard have to be dug up again?

A: Yes. The wires that go to your house above ground will come in below ground. Just as we did
with the water service, there will be an individual plan to bring the wires on your property. We
will work with every impacted property to minimize the impact.

: That sounds expensive. Do I have to pay?

Just like the water service, the project absorbs that cost from the easement to your house.

My house is very old. Will I have to pay to upgrade my wiring and my panel?

Z R T R

Possibly. There are perhaps 100 homes in Surfside with very old electric service which is unsafe
and does not meet current codes. We will work closely with every home in this condition to
minimize the cost to improve safety related issues and you will have better service as a result.

Q: Wait a minute, I am on a fixed income and can’t afford the monthly cost plus the upgrade.

A: There will be a program where truly fixed income people without assets will have the upgrade
funded by the Town with the loan to be repaid when you sell the house.

Q: We just suffered through a year of water/sewer/storm drainage construction. Here we go
again.

A: We feel your pain. The construction for the underground project will not start for at least a year.
It also goes quickly since the new wires go in the 5 foot easement the Town controls and the entire

road does not have to be replaced. The Town will be divided into three areas which will require 4-

6 months each. We will start on the South side again.
Q: Do you energize one home at a time with the new system? Will I have a break in service?

A: No. An entire group of homes must be energized with the new system and then the poles can be
removed. Every home or business in a defined area must be connected before the area is

Page 192



converted. Not one home or business will be left out and the downtime is very brief and you will
be notified well in advance.

Q: Times are tough and this is not a necessity. Why not wait?

A: There are a number of reasons to move forward. The first is that we have a time limit of the end of
March, 2013 to decide. This time limit is established by the laws and policies which govern FPL
undergrounding programs. Second, the cost of construction is about as low as it will get. The
building industry is starting to recover and interest costs are very low. The loan necessary for this
project is projected to carry a 3 percent interest rate.

Q: Will we lose any money if the project does not move forward?

A: We spent $58,000 for the FPL study. That will be lost. There is also $300,000 worth of conduit in
the ground that could be used if the project is done in the future.

Q: Okay, you convinced me that this is a good thing. Is there any other way to pay for it?

A: Yes. A voted assessment district which requires a 50 percent plus one majority. The assessment
would go on your tax bill.

Q: What if I am opposed to the project? How do I express that opposition?

A: Come to any or all of the five public meetings and express your opinion. You will also have an
opportunity in the final decision making discussion at the February 12, 2013 and March 12, 2013
Town Commission meetings to express your opinion. This is and will continue to be a very open

process and your input is welcome and encouraged.

Q: One final question. Can I get AT&T U.-verse if this project occurs and will the Town
Commission meetings be broadcast?

A: We are working on that with AT&T and the answer looks good.

Page 193 4



Attachment "bbB™

General Service

What is FPL's standard service?

FPL and other utilities use the overhead standard established by the Florida Public Service Commission
{PSC) as the most cost-effective type of construction. However, we are open o putting lines
underground provided the additional cost is covared by or for the customer,

Why was overhead established as'the standard?

Overhead service was established as the standard construction for uiilities because over time it has been
the most cost-effective design. When alternatives like underground service are requested by developers :
or mandated by cities, the customer benefiting from the alternative design pays the additionat cost. i

How many miles of distribution power lines does FPL have in its system?

FPL has approximately 66,000 miles of distribution lines serving its 4.4 million customer accounts in ail
or part of 25 counties in Florida. In addition, we aise have about 6,600 miles of transmission lines. Mare
than one-third of FPL's system - or in excess of 24,500 miles - is underground. Often, the cosis of this
service are borne by builders and developers who pass it along to the customer in-the price they pay for
newly constructed real estate. However, It's important to remember that lines eventuatly come above
ground, so no system is totally underground.

Underground Electric Service Delivery

What are the different strengths and weaknasses of overhead and underground service that
affect performance and reliability?

While underground facilities are not as susceptible to wind and debris<blown damage, they are more
susceptible to water intrusion and jocal flood damage, which can make repairs more-time censuming and
costly. Overhead facility damage is easier to locate than underground and can generally be repaired
quicker. Underground interruptions may be less frequerit, but typically last longer due to more complex
repair requirements. Following recent hurricanes, we've found that the areas that took the longest te
repair were generaily those served by underground facilities still flooded days after the storm passed.
Damage and corrosion of underground electrical systems often becomes apparent days or even months
later, causing additional outages and inconvenience to customers. Storm winds can damage both typss
of systems causing outages, Overhead systems face cutages resulting from trees and debris blowing
inte lines. Underground systems face outages from trees collapsing on above-~ground transformers and
switch boxes or from tree root systems uprooting buried cable when trees topple. While a neighborhood
may be locally served by underground cabie, ail electric service eventually comes back above ground
and connects to an overhead system, either in the surrounding neighborhoods, or further down the
street, So, exposure to above ground electric service from weathaer, animals, and trees is never fully
aliminated.

i
]
]

Why don't you put transmission lines underground?

EPL transmission lines - that is, those large power lines that move power over long distances like an
interstate highway from pewer plants to our neighborhoods - are rarely ever placed underground due to
their complexity and considerabty higher costs, as well as security and reliability considerations. For
axample, depending on the voltage of the lines we may need to bufid a cooling system underground
escalating the cost of the project. These factors can drive the cost up five to fifteen times moare than an
pverhead transmission line.

Page 14

Page 194




Costs

Why is there a differential cost for underground service? Why must the customer or
requesting party pay the differential cost of that service?

The PSC has established that overhead facillties are the most cost-effective type of service. In fact, the
costs of these facilities are included in the electric rates charged to customers, Whether its new
construction or a conversion project, the cost of underground service is higher than overhead and it s
the PSC’s and FPL's pasition that it would be unfair to charge all customers the higher price to cover the
cost since not everyone would get the benefit or necessarily be willing or able to pay,

B‘:lt 1 live in @ community with underground service and I didn't pay anything extra - why is
that?

Yo_g may not realize it, but you have. For aesthetic reasons, many developers work with FPL and other
utility companies to bury their lines when they are first planning the construction of a new
neighborhood. The added cost for underground service and other community amenities is typically
included In the price you pay for a new home.

What does underground service cost in a new subdivision, versus new overhead setrvice?
Usually, the basic costs are about a third more, but may be even more if additional work is needed on
supporting electrical facilities, such as putting a section of an adjacent main line underground, The
builder/homeowner is responsible for paying the cost difference between new overhead and new
underground facilities prior to construction. The detailed cost components are provided in.an FPL tariff
that is avaliable from vour local FPL project manager [see FPL Electric Tariff sheets 6,090-6.1001.

Just for comparison, and using a sampie subdivision, can you give me a rough idea of the s
difference in cost to install standard overhead service versus underground service in new R
construction? S

Depending on.the density of & new development and exclusive of other facility needs, it costs FPL
betwaen $736 and $1,161 per lot to instell our standard everhead sarvice, Underground on.the other
hand, costs between $973 and $1,605 per lot. Thus, the bullder/homeowner salecting to have
underground service pays $236 to $444 on average par tot in differential cost. In addition, il main feeder
lines are required to serve the subdivision, and the develaper requests those be placed underground
also, there is an additional differential charge of $11.56 per feot of main line and $20,365 per instalied
pad mountad switch cabinet. In a typical 100 lot subdivision needing main feader work and about two
switch cabinets and related equipment, this could add an additional $50,000 to the project, doubling or
tripling the per-lot differential cost.

!
|
|
|

When converting existing service, what other additional costs may be incurred that are
normally not an issue with new developments? ,
In conversion projects, the customer will be responsible for any additional costs nol mcluded in FPLs
estimate, such as:
¢ Relocation of other utilities — To bury or relocate other utility lines such as cable and telephone.
e« Hiring licensed electrician - To make the home ready to receive underground service.
o Site restoration — To restore the affected areas by repaiting driveways, landscaping, efc.

[ R R AL : ~ o
Page 15

Page 195




What are the requirements for a project to qualify for the 25 percent Government Adjustment
Factor {(GAF) CIAC incentive?

To be eligibie for this-CIAC incentive, the project must be sponsored by the local government, As such,
the project must incorporate a sufficient amount of overhead facilities which includes & minimum of
spproximately three pole ilne miles or approximately 200 detached dwelling units within a contiguous
and well defined geographic area. The local government must then require all customers within the
conversion area o convert their service entrances, such as the service drop and weatherhead, to
underground within 6 months of completion of the underground facilities installation: These criteria heip
ensure that potential underground sarvice benefits are not affected by facilities that are exposed to
causes of overhead cutages. The local government will be responsible for paying the remaining 75
percent of the CIAC.

Residential Conversions

What are my options if I live in an established neighborhood served by overhead electrical
service and I want to convert my service to underground?

You may personally arrange to have your individual service drop converted from overhead fo
underground, or seek conversion of all the neighborhood electrical facilitles, through your city or
homeownars association. Converting an older community's power lines from overhead to underground,
however, can be very expensive and disruptive, especially in highly urbanized areas. With conversions,
the customer pays the total cost of the conversion, since the existing electric service must be dismantled
in addition to installing a2 whole hew underground systam,

What's involved in converting my service drop?

Customers who wish to have the line to their home buried will also need to convert the meter can and
downpipe to accept underground service. This requires a licensed electrician and, in most cases, an
alectrical permit. Since this work may trigger building codes that reguire oider home wiring to be
brought up to taday’s standards, it's important to check with the proper authorities before gatting
started. Bomeowners also need to arrange for a trench to be dug from the pole to the new meter
jocation to hold FPL-provided PVC for the underground cabie.

Can you-be more specific about seme of the costs I may be facing ¥ I pursue converting my
individual overhead service to underground?

To convert your service, a fiat fee of $429.39 would be due to FPL before work begins, along with
possible additional costs that depend on a'number of varteblas such as:

o Whether your iocal government's electrical autharity requires slectrical installation or wirinig to be
upgraded.as part of your conversion.

» Whether an electrician (or another tradesperson) will do the weork to dig and backfill the trench
needed to bring the underground facllities from the existing overhead pole location to the
building. (i.e. from the pole to the meter)

» The length of trench that's needad te accommodate the conversion.

e  Whether the existing overhead weatherhead extends through the roof of the building, in which
case, you may need to incur the cost of reof repair as well as paint and agsthetics. These costs
and arrangements are separate from the work FPL would handle and are the responsibility of the
customer,

Page 16

Page 196




Community Conversions

Who can request that all overhead facitities in a community be converted to underground?
Existing neighborhood overhead lines may be converted if a community so desires. Anyone willing and
able to pay the cost for the conversion and secure the necessary easements to place the uhderground
facilities on private property may submit a written request. The request may be received from local
governments, large or small communities, builders and developers.

Does conversion from overhead to underground require 3 unanimous agreement from all
property owners within the conversion area before FPL will convert its facilifies to
underground?

Generally, yes due to the following conditions for such conversion:

« Easements - All the easements (property use agreemeants from owners) must be acquired
before an underground elecirical distribution system can be installed. If FPL can design around an
accastonal customer who refuses to provide an easement -~ without jeopardizing the integrity of
its electrical system -- FPL will:atiempt to do so. In fhe case of converting to underground, this
also means declding whose property will accept the new pad mounted transformer($) and Fairly
targe switch cabinet(s} that sit above ground as part of the underground grid.

= Lost — It's aiso necessary for all the requesting parties to determine and agree in advance on the
allocation of the conversion costs among those benefiting from the projact before FPL can begin
construction, Otherwise, subsequent-disagreements may slow the conversion effort and drive up
costs. Since FPL's tariff requires full payment of the calcuiated customer contribution amount
prior to beginning construction, customers may want to consider other options to offset some of
the project costs. These options can include taking responsibility for doing some of the boring
andfor trenching and Installing the conduit. Regardiess of who does the work, the installation
must meet FPL standards for safety and reliability, as well as,. local electrical and building code
requirements,

What are some of the impacts associated with converting an older overhead sysiem to new
underground?

Converting from an overhead to an underground system basically means abandoning an exisling
working electrical system. The iogistics of converting an existing system in an established neighborhood
can be considerably more expensive and disruptive to personal property and surroundings than building
new, For example, utilities often share poles above ground, ¥ the objective is to move utilities
underground the phone, cable television and Internet service must also be considerad. This presents
additional considerations, such as different spacing requirements, boring and/or trenching needs and
ground-level switching boxes invelved in providing each type of service. Driveways, sidewalks, fences,
iandscaping, sprinkier systems and yards may need to be torn up or may be inadvertently damaged if
not ciearly delineated. Entry and exit ways to homes and business could be impacted for extensive
perfods of time. Because permits are needed to change meter-related equipment, conversions of older
homes and neighborhoods may trigger city or county requirements that homeowners/businesses bring
interior wiring up to current code, This could require the expense of a licensed electrician and potentially
extensive interior rewiring and remodeling. Finglly, legal easemants are needed from all conversion
participants that allow FPL access to its underground equipment, including the above grou nd
components~ and a number of people must agree to have the large green transformer box and pad or
other switching boxes in their yards.

Page 17

Page 197




Community Conversion Costs and Funding

Are there different ways the conversion of a full neighborhood or city might be financed?

Yes. For qualified local governments, the PSC has approved FPL's recently established mechanism to
recover the costs assoclated with converting from overhead to underground by adding a fee to customer
bills, Additionally, Chapters 197 and 170 of the Florida Statutes allow municipalities to fund underground
conversion costs by levying special assessments imposed on tax bills. Landowners benefiting from the
conversion must be identified and the special assessment may be collected directly from the local
government imposing the assessment or through annual property tax bills, Another Florida Statute -
125,010} - aflows counties to establish municipal service benefit units and municipal service taxing
units in certain areas. These governmental units may levy service charges, special assessments or taxes
within these units to fund underground conversion costs,

What is the Government Adjustment Factor (BAF) and what are the requirements to receive
this incentive?

To help with the high cost of overhead-to-underground conversions, FPL has proposed invest 25 pereent
of the Contribution-In-Aid-of-Construction {CIAC) of converting overhead lines to underground for
qualifying local government-sponsored conversions. In June 2007, the proposal received final approval
from the Public Service Commission for gualifying fecal government sponsored conversion projects.

To be aligible for this CIAC incentive, the project must be sponsored by the iocal government. As such,
the project must incorporate a sufficient amount of overhead facilities which includes a minimum of
approximately three pole fine miles or approximately 200 detached dwelling units within a contiguous
and well defined geographic area, The local government must then require all customers within the
cenversion area to convert their service entrances, such as the service drop and weatherhead, to
underground within 6 months of completion of the underground facilities installation. These criteria help
ensure that potential underground service benefits are not affected by facilities that are exposed to
causes of overhead outages. The local. government will be responsible for paying the remaining 75
parcent of the CIAC,

How does the FPL undergrounding tariff work?

In 2003, FPL established a PSC-approved rule and: process (tarifi) for cities thal wanted to have the
option of converting to underground in designated-areas and who needed a mechanism to recover their
costs. Under this new tariff, a city could pay to make the conversion and then recover its costs.over a
designated timeframe by having FPL add an underground fee on the bills of those custormaers in their
jurisdiction who would be benefiting from the conversion. (Fees may not exceed [1] 15 percent of a
customer's bill or [2] $30 for residential and $50 for every 5,000 kWh commercial.} No such
arrangements have as yel been established in our service territory under this new tariff.

What might it cost to convert from overhead to underground service in a comniunity?

The two key drivers contributing to the cost calculations are labor and materiais. Depending on these
factors, underground facilities can cost anywhere from $500,000 per mile to more than $4 million per
mile. While these figures have & considerable amount of variability, there is a process in piace where FPL
generates a “ballpark” estimate to assist in determining the magnitude of the cost.a cormnmunity may be

considering.

= | T Page 18

Page 198




What makes it so much more expensive {o do conversions versus new construction, especially
considering that the customer pays for most of the peripharal work? .
With conversions, FPL's costs are significant, The worlk includes build

ing a whole new system while operating the existing system. Then, the older system is dismantied once
the new cne is up and running, The Kigher costs also reflect the fact that conversions in clder
neighborhoods ~ regardless of the type of excavation we use (boring or trenching) ~ require working
near and avoiding other utilities such as phone, cable, sewer, gas lines, water lines, etc, Finally, all new
underground components must be acquired and installed, including conduit, cable (wire}, pad-mounted
transformers and switch cabinets. Typically, dismantling represents about 15 percent of the cost;
installing underground components about 65 percent; and actual excavation about 20 percent.

What will it cost to bury the other utilities such as telephone and cable television?

This question will need to be addressed by the other utlilties involved in the conversion.

What experience does FPL have assisting any groups with evaluating or actually performing a
conversion?

Actually, our experience Is limited, as many governraent entities or nelghborhoods have abandoned the
idea after fully investigating the impacts. In ather cases, voters have determined the disadvantages of
conversion outweighed the advantages, and have failed to authorize funding. Some exceptions have
involved city-initiated, limited-scope conversions invelving primarily a few downtown streets, such as in
heach towns In Miami-Dads, Broward, Pelm Beach and Sarasota counties.

What are some examples of instances where proposed overhead to underground conversions
would not be feasible?

Instances in which private property owners aren't wiliing to provide the easements that are necessary
for FPL to design and engineer the conversion. Alse, locations-where necessary safety standards and
operational clearances cannot be met such as extremely congested areas where switch ¢cabinets cannot
be installed with sufficient operating clearances. Areas prone to floading as- excessive fiooding can cause
transformers to Fail, which then cannot be safely restorad until flood waters recede,

Construction Reguirements

Can the reguester have a contractor perform the conversion work?

Yes, that's an option, The tariff reguires anly that the work be preformed to FPL standards and the
facilities be maintained and operated by FPL.

1f easaments are dificult to obtain, why not place underground facilities in the public right-
of-way instead of on private property?

Typically, the only underground facilities FPL places in the public right-of-way are those necessary to
cross under streets, like cabie and conduit. The reason is that, otherwise, every road widening or
improvement project could potentially compromise the company’s ability to deliver safe, reliabie,
uninterrupted power, On the other hand, If a local government offered FPL an easement or aquivalent (a
signed legal agreement) in the public right-of-way, we would consider this alternative only if we could
not physically install the cable on private property. Only cable and conduit are allowed in the pubiic
rights-of-way in these rare cases. These public right-of-way easements would also need to be. fegally
conveyed and expressly reserved on FPL racord drawings. However, it's been our experience that tocal
governments are reluctant to grant such right-of-way easements or easement equivalents. As for other
facilities and equipment needed for underground - such as primary splice boxes, transformers and
switch cabinets - these compenents of the underground system would still need private property
sasements for us to be able to routinely access and maintain the equipment and ensure reliable service,

_ PRTO— Page 19

Page 199

!
i
!




R

Why must the easemenis associated with underground facilities be at least 1.0 feet wide?

Ten Feet is our standard easement requirement for “front” distribution nelghborhoods to provide: {a)
adeguate space for the necessary pad-mounted transformer and underground cables; (b) sufficient area
for FPL crews to safely wark away from readways; and, (c) enough room for othar utilities that might
occupy the same sasement to install futire cable and conduit without interfering with the etectric
transformers located in the same vicinity, Each pad mounted switch cabinet requires a 20 foot by 20 foot
sasement for instaliation and operation.

Does FEL perform overhead to uniderground conversions in rear easements?

Front easements are required Tor new construction and are also typically required for conversions from
overhead to underground, as they allow for quicker access to the'facilities, Should a power putage occur,
facilities in the rear of & property may be inaccessible due to locked gates or dogs. The inability to
access transformers and other equipruent cauld delay the restoration of an entire neighborhood, FPL
would consider locating easements in the rear of the property if an access road or alley existed that
would allow for quick access to the facilities, The 10-foot easement requirement will still-anply.

In the case of conversions, what is FPL's preferrad method of burrowing unterground to lay
cable and conduit and why?

Directional boring is generally preferred in conversions to minimize impact to other utilities that are
generally buried higher in the ground than electrical conduit and cable, Directional boring, while it may
save on site restoration costs, is substantially more expensive work to perform. Open trenching is
usually preferable forthe paying party because it is the least expensive method available. An advantage
of trenching is that other underground utilities may use the same trench, reducing the coliective cost of
burying all different facilities. This, however, requires significant coordination. A disadvantage of open
trenching is the amount of surface restoration required — such as landscaping and sidewalks. Given that
the locations of other utilities are not always known, espectally in older communities, there is still a risk
both trenching and boring may impact other subsurface utilities, such as water and sewer lines; gas lines
or drainage lines.

Why must some of the equipment in an underground system remain above ground?
While conduit and cable can be placed underground, which eliminates poles and wires, transformers and
switch cabinsts need to be at ground level and accessible to FPL crews for imely maintenance, outage

repairs, rerouiing power and other functions,

Page 20

Page 200




Requests & Estimates
How long does it take to get a "ballpark” estimate?
Typ;caliy, ft may take from two to three weeks. This time period may vary depending on severai factors
such &s:
+« The complaxity of the job
¢ Geographic size of the area to be converted
« Facilities involved and type of equipment needed
= The electrical load being served, including the population density and number of switch cabinets
reguired
e The current workicad of FPL project managers

How does FPL ensure the “ballpark estimates” are consistent throughout the territory?

FPL is establishing & comprehensive, standard plan and process that takes into account the many types
of facilities and different population densities across the system. The “balipark estimate” is simply an
order of magnitude (for example - $5,000 vs. $500,000) to assist the requestor in determining whether
to move forward with a conversion project and seek a binding estimate. Unfortunately, due to
innumarable variables, there is no single blanket cost.

Can FPL provide a simple cost or range of cost for conversion from overhead to underground
based on daoliars per linear foot?

No. There are just too many factors and variables that are unique and distinct to each gonversion
request.

How long does it take to get a detailed, binding estimate?

Typicaily it takes approximately 10 to 16 weeks (pending agreement on easement lpcations) Lo obtain a
hinding estimate, However, this timeframe may vary due to the size and complexity of the job, the
facilities involved and other factors.

How does FPL ensure the binding estimates are consistent throughout the territory?

Al actual “for construction” estimates are valid for a period of 180 days where all material and labor are
inventoried in a computer-based estimating system, This is the same system used for construation
estimates for all FPL work system-wide. In addition, the PSC rule governing overhead to underground
conversions specifies exactly how the charges are to be calculated [see Florida Administrative Code 25-
6.115, and FPL's Eleclric Tariff sheets 6.300 ~ 6.330, specifically].

Are any credits available for existing facilities that can be salvaged and will they be factored
into my estimate?

Some salvage credits may be available. Selvage value Is only given for eq vipment that can be removed
from the field and then re-issued for use with no testing or refurbishing required before re-use, such as
concrete poles. Typically these credits are not significant [see FPL Electric Tarlff sheet 6.300].

Page 21

Page 201




ft 6A 1t

Attachment

(374 {s:A) uua) ueol
%00°E a3ey 15aE9U|
£T02/t/v a1eq aauenss)

:8umo[|0) BY3 U0 paseq asIALs 1983 fenuuy(Z)

06225 9813y [BIDIDIILIOY,, .

ST {saA) wira} ueot
%00t 21BY IsaIBU|
£10T/T/Y Fje(] Souenssi

:BUIMO[[0} 34} UO paseq XIS 199 jenuuy(T)

eeee———

UOIE30]jY 150 9IIAIDS 133 jenuuy
192{0id S3lIN punoddiapun
apisying 1o uMoj

S 71 00°0€ g 1€4€ 1e10]
S 41 +x 00°05-0002 S 0€¢ felIawwIo)
S [4) 00zt S TOSE [efiupisay

SNU3AIY 8101 SYIUOWN IUBLSSISSY SHUNH
uolAl Jad UONEI0||Y 150 51aW03SND 1dd
005'SS 00S'SS T 3pIS}ing Jo UMOL
0os'sss S1BWO0ISNT “1dd
UOREJ0HY 83tAlag 10ed
mw%muc_ /lediautid)
{z) 005'ss {¢) oos'ss {x) 008'SLS ) » B2IAIBS 3g2Q jenuuy
000'528 000'5Z3 ueot (e30}
{o00's£LT) {ooo'sLz) s1ayjoag Atejunjop 1adojaae 15591
000'001T 000°00T'T 000°0£89 jeioL
- - 000°0S 23uBNSS] JO 150D
000'001 000°00T 000°029 punyj aAasay adAl1ag 19aa
_00'000'002°8 00°000°000°T s 00°000°000'T $  ooo'ooz’s S jedjaupid 1afoid
auoydajal ajqed /L33
131y pueqpeoig ey 1d4
193Q jeuoiippY 1930 feyu)

Page 202



Tt 65 1

Attachment

ST (52A) wiaf ueo
%00°E 1eY J50I83U|

05 £7$ 98RIBAY |BIDIBLIWIOD,

11 (54A) wia ] ueoy
%00 818y 158493U|

UOIIEI0{fY 1500 BIJAIBS 108( jenuuy
3{oid SapiIN punodiepun
SpPISJNG JO uMmo)

ET0Z/T/Y 21eQ Aduenss| €T02/1/v 9]B(] BIUENSS|
:3umo||0) Y3 Uo paseq BdIAIFS 1ga( [enuuy{Z) :Buimolioy syl uo paseq ao1Alas 1g9Q jfenuuv{1)
vv0'08S 3 T 00°0€ 5 T€L€ " [e1eL -
006°SL S A" «* 000§-000¢ ] 0ge {12307
pPTv0S 5 1 00zt g 108€ |enuaplsay
InuaAsy |e3c] SYuoW JUDLISSBSSY sSHUNE

YIUOA] Jad UolIeI0||y 1507 19810351 1d4
000°6€T 005'69 - 005'69 R 3pIS}INS JO UMO].
005°5£8 00s's4s $18W0)ISN7) 1dd
HORBIONY BIIAIBS 1930
(1sasaquyfiedpulag)
00SYTL {(z) 005'69 {Z}) 005’69 {1} 00s'sLs & DIAISS 1o [enuLy
0000258 000'5z8 000'528 i UecT (210}
(000"058) {o00's£2) tooo‘sLz) 518}j0.d Areyunjop sadojanag :$59
000°0£0°6 000'00T'T 000001t 0000489 [B10]
000°0S - - 00005 aauenss] jo 3s0)
000078 000°00T 000'00t 000'0z9 puny sasasay aoadas 1qeq
00'000°00Z'8 s 00°000°000°T S 00" 000'000°T S cno‘onz’e S jedpupg 1afoig

Wi0L auoydaja) 3|geD ol I WERE!

181V puegpeo.tg Muepy d4
qaq jeuonippy 1GoQ |enli]

Page 203



1!6CH

Attachment

g1 (s4A} uniaf ueO]
%00'E aley 15e4ajuy
£T0Z/1/% ajeQ J2uenss|

Hu1Mm0||0) B4 Lo paseq aclalas 1gag |2auuy(z)

0¢ {s4A) wim ) ueay
%00'E By 1S4
ET0Z/1/v ale() BIUBNES|

[Fumo)o) 8yl U0 paseq adalag Jgaq [enuuv(r)

0ZE'SLY S [41 00°0€ 5 TELE 210l
00z7'ss S [41 00°0S - 00°0¢ S O£t [eprBwILIa)
0ZT'oTy 5 (43 000t g T0SE jeruapisay

SNUzAIY |BJO| SYILORN] B UISSassYy ww_mbm
YIUCA] Jad UORRIOJY 1507 513110353 Tdd
000'6ET 00569 005'69 apisjINg JO UMOL
00579Y 005191 SIBLI0IST) Tdd
Uonel||y adialasg gaeq
(¥saiaquj/jedioulid)
00SZLS {(z) 00569 (2) 005’69 {1} oos't9v « IS JgRQ |EnuUY
000°'0Z5°8 000'578 000'5Z8 ueo7 {eI0]
{000'055) (0o0's42) {ooo'sLt) sigjjoid Aeunjop Jadojaaad 15537
0000406 000°001°T 000'00T'T 000°0£8'9 [B10L
00008 - - 00005 BOUENSS] JO }50)
000'0Z8 000'00T 000°00T 000'023 pur aniasay 83138 12d
00°000'002'8 S 00°000'000'T S 000000001 $ 000’0029 g fedpuyig alold
Lol auoydaja] siged el Tl x gk
181y puegpeo.g JqUENY 1dd
B0 [BUSIHPPY 103Q [eUHY|

HORIONY 1503 NNIBS 3Go4 jenuuy
13afoid sainn punocidiapun
3p|SHNS JO UMO]

Page 204



g

P LA NS

N
(< Tomso

#/SURESIDRY

TOWN OF SURFSIDE ;

_ i‘ der-. sroundiy, o N

Frequently Asked
Questions

When considering a major project such as the undergrounding of
electric, cable and other utility lines, the Town of Surfside seeks to
provide information to residents so that informed decisions can be
made while contemplating the conversion.

Q: What is this undergrounding project about? Q: Why must some of the equipment in an

A: There are currently 23 miles of above ground elec- underground system remain above ground?

tric cable, 537 poles and 278 overhead transformers in A: Conduit and cable can be placed underground, which
Surfside. There are also miles of above ground AT&T eliminates poles. Switch cabinets need to be accessible
and Atlantic Broadband cables and related devices. All to utility crews at ground level for timely maintenance,
of this will be gone when the project is complete. outage repairs, rerouting power and other functions.
Q: What will replace all this? Q: Can | landscape around these boxes?

A: Yes, as long as the landscape does not deny access to

A: Fifty miles of underground electric cable, 24 water-
proof electric switching devices, 307 transformers and
22 splice boxes. There will also be boxes for cable and
telephone. All cables will be underground and any above Turn to the next page
ground boxes or switches will be located at lot lines to

the best of our ability.

the box.

Overhead lines and poles (inset)
would be replaced by access
boxes located on property lines
(shown at right).

Page 205



Utility Undergrounding

Q: Why go to all this trouble?

A: First and foremost is reliability. Our above ground
electric system is 50 years old and has been depreciated
to $104,000 on FPLs books.

Second, there is broad consensus that hurricane wind
damage to below ground systems is much less than
above ground systems. Flood surge recovery has less
consensus. That is why this project includes waterproof
switch gear boxes. The transformers on the ground are
relatively easy to replace compared to replacing a pole
particularly if that pole is in a backyard.

Q: Have there been any studies by
independent groups on the speed of recovery
issue or the cost effectiveness of these
underground projects?

A: There have been a number of studies and all reach
different conclusions. These studies are available on the
Town website and you are invited to draw your own
conclusions.

Q: What will this project cost?

A: The project will cost $8.2 million including FPL, At-
lantic Broadband and AT&T. Negotiations are underway
with the cable and telephone providers to lower their
costs. FPL has reduced its costs by 25 percent due to
the “hardening” of their system as required by Florida
law and the Public Service Commission.

A digitally altered photograph
(right) shows a streetscape dafter
undergrounding of utilities. |

The conversion would result

in the removal of poles and
overhead wires.

Q: How will the Town pay for this?

A: Depending on the cost reductions available from the
cable and telephone companies, the cost will be funded
with a $12 per month surcharge on electric bills for
residents and a $20 - $50 per month surcharge for com-
mercial businesses if the debt is paid off in |5 years. Ifit
is paid off in 20 years, the cost will be $10 per month.

Q: How many customers of FPL are there in
Surfside?

A: There are 3501 residential customers and 230 com-
mercial customers. They will all share in the cost.

Q: Is it fair that folks who are already under-
ground should help pay for this project?

A: Yes. The underground areas today were not paid for
by the builders of the projects along Harding and Col-
lins Avenues so the underground cost was not included
in the price of the original units. These underground-
ing costs were funded by the FDOT when Collins and
Harding Avenues were upgraded so everyone's gas taxes
paid the cost including non Surfside residents. Further,
we are a community where everyone will benefit by the
aesthetic and reliability benefits and our downtown will
be much improved.

Q: Will my property value increase when the
project is complete?

A: Most likely, however, property values are governed
by many complex factors including investment in the
property itself and the market factors for real estate in
general.




Town of Surfside

Q: Okay, enough with the big picture. What
will be in front of my house?

A: A six square foot transformer box painted green,
located to the best of our ability on property lines of ev-
ery third home. You may also have a small telephone or
cable box, however, these appear much less frequently
then the transformer boxes.

Q: You just replaced a portion of my driveway
for the water/sewer/storm drainage project.
Here we go again.

A: We understand. We will bore under your driveway
and it will not need to be replaced.

Q: What about the street, you just repaved it?

A: The Town spent $300,000 to install the conduits in
any location where the former above ground wires cross
the street. FPL provided the conduit at no cost to the
Town. The undergrounding project will not need to
break the new asphalt.

Q: Will my yard have to be dug up again?

A: Yes. The wires that go to your house above ground
will come in below ground. Just as we did with the
water service, there will be an individual plan to bring
the wires on your property. We will work with every
property owner to minimize the impact.

Q: That sounds expensive. Do I have to pay?

A: Just like the water service, the project absorbs that
cost from the easement to your house.

Q: My house is very old. Will I have to pay to
upgrade my wiring and my panel?

A: Possibly. There are approximately 100 homes in
Surfside with very old electric service which does not
meet current codes. We will work closely with every
home in this condition to minimize the cost to improve
safety related issues and you will have better service as
a result.

An advantage of
undergrounding utilites is
evident after a hurricane or
powerful wind event.

Q: Wait a minute, | am on a fixed income and
can’t afford the monthly cost plus the up-
grade.

A: There will be a program where truly fixed income
people without assets will have the upgrade funded by
the Town with the loan to be repaid when you sell the
house.

Q: We just suffered through a year of water/
sewer/storm drainage construction. Here we
go again.

A: We feel your pain. The construction for the un-
derground project will not start for at least a year. It
also goes quickly since the new wires go in the 5 foot
easement the Town controls and the entire road does
not have to be replaced. The Town will be divided into
three areas which will require 4-6 months each. We
will start on the South side again.

Q: Do you energize one home at a time with
the new system? Will | have a break in service?

A: No. An entire group of homes must be energized
with the new system and then the poles can be re-
moved. Every home or business in a defined area must
be connected before the area is converted. Not one
home or business will be left out and the downtime is
very brief and you will be notified well in advance.

Continued on the back page

FOR MORE INFORMATION:
www.townofsurfsidefl.gov




;,"':M; N, Frequently Asked Questions PRESORTED
7 ““Fs“’f on utility undergrounding STANDARD
@ ﬁ U.S. POSTAGE
“‘ s PAID
‘\‘Eﬁﬁmﬂg}ﬁ' MIAMI, FL
9293 Harding Avenue PERMIT NO. 457

Surfside, Florida 33154

IMPORTANT INFORMATION REGARDING THE

...Continued from the previous page

Q: Times are tough and this is not a necessity.
Why not wait?

A: There are a number of reasons to move forward.
The first is that we have a time limit of the end of
March, 2013 to decide. This time limit is established by
the laws and policies which govern FPL underground-
ing programs. Second, the cost of construction is about
as low as it will get. The building industry is starting to
recover and interest costs are very low. The loan neces-
sary for this project is projected to carry a 3 percent
interest rate.

Q: Will we lose any money if the project does
not move forward?

A: We spent $58,000 for the FPL study. That will be
lost. There is also $300,000 worth of conduit in the
ground that could be used if the project is done in the
future.

Q: Okay, you convinced me that this is a good
thing. Is there any other way to pay for it?
A: Yes. A voted assessment district which requires a 50

percent plus one majority. The assessment would go on
your tax bill.

COST OF UNDERGOUND[N

Gyo
OUR UTILITIES

Q: What if | am opposed to the project? How
do I express that opposition?

A: Come to any or all of the three remaining televised
public meetings and express your opinion. You will also
have an opportunity to express your opinion in the final
decision making discussion at the February 12, 2013 and
March 12, 2013 Town Commission meetings. This is and
will continue to be a very open process and your input is
welcome and encouraged.

Q: What happens if | can’t come to the meet-
ings? How can | get answers?
A: Email the Town Manager at rcarlton(@townofsurfside

fl.gov, use our new website or call the Town Manager at
(305) 993-1052. You will get a reply.

Q: One final question. Can I get AT&T U-
verse if this project occurs and will the Town

Commission meetings be broadcast?
A: We are working on that with AT&T and the answer
looks good.



snovoa
Typewritten Text

snovoa
Typewritten Text


9F

TOWN OF SURFSIDE

MEMORANDUM
DATE: February 12, 2013
TO: Mayor Daniel Dietch and Members of the Town Commission
FROM: Roger M. Carlton, Town Manager
SUBIJECT: Status Report Regarding Town Manager Recruitment Process

Pursuant to the direction given during the December 11, 2012 Town Commission meeting, the
selections of the Members include:

Daniel Dietch
Steve Alexander
Michael Crotty
Steven Crowell, Jr.
Hector Mirabile
0. Paul Shew
Christopher Rose

Marta Olchyk
Steve Alexander
Ana Garcia
John Taxis
James Gleason
Hector Mirabile

Joe Graubart

Did not submit a list of candidates.

Michaei Karukin

Anthony Carson
Michael Crotty
Ana Garcia
Calvin Peck
Christopher Rose
John Taxis

Michelle Kiigman

Steve Alexander
Ana Garcia
Christopher Rose
John Taxis

Roger Hernstadt*

*Note: Roger Hernstadt is currently the Manager of Marathon and he did not submit an
application as part of the process. His resume is attached and the same background check as
the rest of the listed candidates will be completed before the Town Commission meeting.


snovoa
Typewritten Text
9F


Analyzing the Town Commission submitted names results in the foliowing:

Steve Alexander 3 votes
Ana Garcia 3 votes
Christopher Rose 3 votes
John Taxis 3 votes
Michael Crotty 2 votes
Hector Mirabile 2 votes
Anthony Carson 1vote
Steven Crowell 1vote
James Gleason 1 vote
Calvin Peck, Ir. 1vote
0. Paui Shew 1 vote
Kristina Gulick 0 votes
Brently Mims withdrew

Roger Hernstadt added by Michelle Kligman

The Town Commission should determine if it wants to set a cut-off at 2 votes which will allow
the round robin interviews on February 26, 2013 and possibly rank the candidates at the end of
the process.

Roger M. Carlton
Town Manager

eth
yman Resources Director

Att



ser T, Mernstads
4 %ii’%é%% Lang
Mami, FL 330580
{305} 297-3000
fa mariner@mesn.ocom

Fareoral Phillosophy -~ "Good encugh never i

EXPERIENCE:
{city Manager
Gty of Marathon, Florida
Febryary 2010 to present
Pwas selected as City Manager after considering 88 other g;jgz}i;mﬁ?a notuding locals and ocurrent
smployees, nmy first yvear as O %y "‘J:%is?}g%a? all five mambers of the G ;y Councll gave me an
ouistanding rating and an 18% raise. | was also given anather 11.5% raise in February 2012 Hscat
y@czf 2012 budget is 383 million in gmﬁi and the $10.8 milllon general © md s ?}a&mﬁ on a millage rate
21988 (8550 municipal property tax/$250,000 net assessed value). Fund balance for general
mmﬁ equates 1o four months of operating costs. In 2012, Marathon received a §6M commercial
r@d@veiwmmi grant from the Slate of Florida. Since %‘ebmﬁ ry 2010, the City received in excess of
$8 million from m@ America Recovety and F%e,‘fw%men% Act of 2008 for eligible infrastructure
;:}ra;ec:is; $125 million wastewater, storm water and road resurfacing project was completed on
schedule in December 2012, Negotigied a new inter local to provide fire rescus services for a gister
city increasing associated net revenue paid to by Marathon's by 20%. Settled a §3 milion lawsuit at
zero cost to the City and resolved other potential lawsuits due to the actions of prior City
Managers, Updated all Depariment Directors’ job descriptions and set quantifiable goais fo be
achieved in the each fiscal year. | established a shorl and long-range {‘agétaé plan and 2 renewal and
rga»pﬁacemem schedule for City assets. Also | negotiated new City health insurance program at a less
than a 5% increase for FY 2012, Also | negotiated new fire rescue labor contract in 2012 that caps

the City's pension contribution at 15% (reduced from 42%).

Assistant City Manager/Chief of 8iaft, Office of the Clty Manager
City of Miami, Flovids
August 2007 i‘?ﬁ%mem%w 2009
Portiolio included %andga;t Procurement, General Services, Solid Waste, Code Enforcement and
Meighborhood Services. Previously, | supervised Public Works, Parks and Capital Improvements. |
was a team member on the successful Oracle ERP Employee Relations implemeartation project and
agsocigted change management aclivities. Successiully oblained electsed s}‘f‘f’@‘;a b approval for fwo
budgets in excess of $500 million (41 and 50 voles) for required 10% millage growth following
enactment of House Bill 18 (imis roll growth), voter approved Amendment 2 {ffmrci 525K exemption)
and Senate Bl 1588 (disallowsd effecis of Amendment 1 to millage adjustment to achisve rollback)
while malintaining a $100 million fund balance, no layoffs of filled positions and enhance public safely
and recreational staffing, Obtained an 11% Increase in solid waste fees o implement waste truck
and equipment replacement program. Developed and | ‘mpierm nied flest "@wac‘:@me nt strategias,
estimating methodologies and schedules. Initiated competitive costing reviews and established
activity based cost centers and objective performance indicators.  Authored Cerlified Small Business
legistation collaborated on "Green Procurement” miliatives and wrote legisiation to sireamiine code
enforcament hearings and enhance fine collection. Negotiated with the County and three museums
on behaif of the Ciy and drafted the 3400 million Museuwm Park project memorandim of
understanding, the subseguent lease, development agreament and environmenial remediation



Roger 1. Hernstadt — Page 2

agreament as well as the City’'s pari-mutual facilities agreemenis. Managed the command post and
coordinated all City staff functions for the 2008 US Conference of Mayors in Miami, Florida.

Director, Office of Capital Improvements, County Manager's Office
Miami-Dade County, Florida
2005 to 2007

Planned, developed referendum strategy and implemented the Building Better Communities Bond
Program and coordinated other Miami Dade County capital improvement projects. The $2.9 hillion
bond program inciuded more than 300 capital projects to be completed over a 15-year period, being
one of the most ambiticus capital improvement programs in the nation. | led the team that obtained
support in excess of 60% for aill 8-baliot questions. One year after the initial $263 million of bonds
were sold, $180 million of capacity was either under confract or spent. Other responsibilities included
the facilitation and coordination of the County's entire capital improvements program in accordance
with State Statutes 255 and 287, including the development of the centralized capital information and
process computer system and the standardization of construction contract language and forms.
Responsible for contraciing new projects and facility renovation {almost 60 projects fotaling almost
$145 million) plus the associated architectural and engineering selection process (25 projects),
coordination and administration of the open competitive architectural and engineering pool for small
projects (more than 150 projects valued at $8 million). In addition, | was responsible for more than
973 small (valued at less than 31 million each) construction projects totaling $65 million. | negotiated
project worksheets for Hurricane Katrina and Wilma in 2005. Obtained more than $50C million in
federal disaster recovery and grant funding for public infrastructure and adminisiered the
implementation of the associated projects.

Capital Improvement Coordinator, County Manager's Office
Miami-Dade County, Florida
1999 to 2005

Facilitated and monitored performance of departments o ensure that capital improvement projects
were compieted timely and on budget as well as achieved the policy cbjectives established by the
Elected Offictals and County Manager. Planned, designed, implemented and trained users on a
custom, comprehensive capital improvemeni software and project management system. Expedited
completion and implementation of more than $399 million in high priority infrastructure improvements
funded by general obligation and other bond proceeds; impiemented and monitored projects funded
through the Quality Neighborhoods Improvement Program, Safe Neighborhcod Parks Bond Program,
Storm water Utility and Impact Fees projects including design and construction contracts in excess of
$300 million. Miami-Dade County’s designated FEMA Coordinator responsible for handling public
assistance claims.

Assistant Director - Finance, Budget, Personnel, information Technology and Services
Public Works Department - Miami-Dade County, Florida
1995 to 1998

Planned, organized implemented and directed financial, project management, informational
technology operations and perscnnel management (700 employees). Oversaw expenditure controf
and fiscal strategic planning, purchasing, contracting for operational budget ($64 million), capital
projects ($36 million), special taxing districts ($14 million). | created implemented and trained users
on a custom, comprehensive service reguest and departmental cperations management software. |
was responsibie for preparing annual Transportation Improvement Plan for submission fo
Metropolitan Planning Organization. Following a scandal was out stationed {o the Water and Sewer
Department to retool design, engineering and construction pelicies and work methodologies.



Roger T. Hernstadt — Page 3

Negotiated and settied disputes with the Federal government resuiting in $51.0 million of reimburse-
ment to the County.

Chief of Services and Administration, Public Works Departiment
Miami-Dade County, Florida
1987 to 1995
Implement departmental service objectives and policies for finance, information technology,
computerized  revenue  collection  systems, code  enforcement  and  neighborhood
sarvices. Coordinated all departmental operations for capital budgeting and project scheduling, flest
management and inventory.

Chief of Causeways and Special Taxing Districts, Public Works Department
Miami-Dade County, Florida
1987

Planned, directed and coordinated the implementation of new service and capital improvement
special taxing districts, managed exiting special faxing districts and operated the County's toll
facilities. Responsibilities included fiscal management, revenue analysis, cash management, budget
preparation and special assessment calculations. Developed capital and operating budgets,
confractual services specifications, coniracts and managed performance. Oversaw special revente
funds and insured trust agreement compliance. Served as spokesperson and facilitated public
hearings on controversial items.

Code Compiiance Manager, Public Works Department
Miami-Dade County, Florida
1980 to 1987
Responsible for department-wide service request processing and responsiveness, code enforcement
activities and fine collections. First responder and lead public contact on neighborhood disputes
involving all segments of the community. Determined property ownership from real estate records
and maps, supervised twenty-three employees, prepared and controlied Office’s operational and
capital budgets, developed service proposals and contracted for services, and issued confractor
payments, fines and lien revenues and performed special investigations.

EDUCATION:

Master's Degree, Administration, University of Miami

Bachelor of Science, Brooklyn College

Most Recent Seminar: Harvard University — John F. Kennedy School of Government
Executive Fducation — Driving Government Performance

ACHIEVEMENTS:

2008 ~ Florida Engineering Society — Miami Chapter: Outstanding Service {o the Profession of
Government

2007 -~ National Association of Counties Award

20086 - National Association of Counties Award

2005 ~ American Society of Public Administrators: South Florida Public Adminisirator of the Year
2005 — Miami Today Newspaper “Newsmaker”

2005, 2000 & 1996 — National Association of Counties Award

REFERENCES:
Available upon request.





